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CORPORATE MILESTONE

1999

Established Yunnan Einsun Computer
Vocational Training Station and is
engaged in computer basic knowledge
training and education, the first school
providing IT international certification
training and examination certification
service in Yunnan Province, and entered
into the private education industry
BRYEEMEBRRTERBERIE R
EERERABZININHE EEFE
BEXRBTERAITEIREARER
B ORREARPRBETHE

2005

Established Yunnan Technology and
Business University (Yunnan School)
and was upgraded from junior college
to undergraduate school in 2011, the
first private undergraduate school in
Yunnan and is also the largest among
private schools

EMIBER(EMER)KY IR
Q0NERENABRBEANERER BES
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CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEIFEXEBERAT

Group headquarter moved to
Beijing from Yunnan

SEANHEEEELR

Established Guizhou
Technology and Business
Institute (Guizhou School),
offering a three-year junior
college program
EMNIFEEXZER (BENER)
B BE=ZFFHENRE
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2010

Ping An invested
in the Group
RYNFRZSR
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CORPORATE MILESTONE

2015

Obtained approval to
establish Northwest
Technology and Business
Institute (Northwest
School)

Bl THBESR
(ALER)EHER

Invested in Science and
Technology College of
Hubei Minzu University
(Central China School)
and planned the
construction of its new

campus
REHLEKRERBHK
BR(EHER) I E
2R R E

2016

CCB International invested in the
Group

Invested in Harbin Huade University
(Northeast School)
RENBWEERZR (RLER)

2017

Listed on the main board of SEHK
EARABXMERLT

Included as a constituent stock of the Hang
Seng Composite Small Cap Index and Hang
Seng Consumer Goods & Services Index for
the first time
BEXREMANEBEREPEREBRELHE
EmBRERBRBEEERHOR

Included as a constituent stock of MSCI
China Small Cap Index for the first time

BREMAMSCHZHEDNEEBKD R

Invested in Xinjiang Institute of Finance &
Economics

RENBUEREFEKER

2018 SR

Invested in Luoyang Science and
Technology Vocational College (Henan
School)

REZGRRBEZER CTHER)

Included as a constituent stock of Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index, with
effect on 5 March 2018
BhABERBRBERED K R20185F3
A5HEX
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MAJOR STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ITEMS

EFNR REFHEKSEERBRRREOFF =R
GROSS PROFIT MARGIN, PROFIT MARGIN FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS, AND CORE NET PROFIT

65.0%
62.6%
60.0%
56.3%

0,
55.0% 54.9%
50.0% 48.0%
45.0%
40.0% 38.1%

0,
35.0% 32.4%
30.0%
25.0%

FY2016 FY2017

= ER=H = REFEKSEERRN =R = BRI

Gross Profit Margin

I

GROSS PROFIT
(AR¥BERT)
(RMB million)

+39.1%

227.5

163.6

FY2016

FY2017

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEIFEXEBERAT

Profit Margin from continuing
operations

REFESEEBER
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS
(AR®BER)
(RMB million)

+111.1%
233.3

FY2016

FY2017

Core Net Profit Margin

B 3 R
CORE NET PROFIT

(AR®EERT)
(RMB million)

0,
+99.5% 959 4

130.0

FY2016 FY2017



MEBRBEYE BESLR
TOTAL DEBT AND TOTAL DEBT/TOTAL EQUITY RATIO

(AR®EE&ETR)
(RMB million)

61.4%

20.4%

2016.12.31 2017.12.31

= BEK R F
Total Debt/Total Equity Ratio

o HBEBEAIEARE
Total Debt = all interest-bearing debt

mEY BEELE
TOTAL DEBT/ TOTAL ASSET RATIO

(AR¥EBEER)
(RMB million)

28.8%

'\3..7%

2017.12.31

2016.12.31

- AEKBEE
Total Debt/Total
Asset Ratio

W AE% m BEE
Total Debt Total Asset

e MBBEAMEAE
Total Debt = all interest-bearing debt

TEEHEREHR
MAJOR STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ITEMS

FEBRBEYE EESLEE

NET DEBT AND NET DEBT/TOTAL EQUITY RATIO
(AR¥BER)
(RMB million)

36.8%

-\1;.8%
347

AR 204

2016.12.31 2017.12.31

- EEHREEH
Net Debt/Total Equity Ratio

o FREBEREMEABRERENBESFEYRE
ERER

Net Debt = All interest-bearing debt and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits

& R A
FINANCE COST
(AR®BEER)
(RMB million)
10.6% 9.7%
— —n
40
36
[ ]
FY2016 FY2017
B RERE - WAL %
Finance Cost Finance cost/Revenue
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w2
(Planned)

B RA =
SCHOOL NETWORK

EEIFER (EEER)
Yunnan Technology and Business University
(Yunnan School)

EMNIEBESZR (BEMNER)
Guizhou Technology and Business Institute
(Guizhou School)

BERBEEZSR (RIEER)
Harbin Huade University (Northeast School)

M RREZRBFEER (EPER)
Science and Technology College of Hubei
Minzu University (Central China School)

MEMEREEBER (HBEER)
Xinjiang Institute of Finance and Economics
(Xinjiang School)

BEREBESZER CTEER)
2018 F1 AR E

Luoyang Science and Technology Vocational College
(Henan School)

Invested in January 2018

AETEBXZER (ALER)
Northwest Technology and Business Institute
(Northwest School)
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ITREMES
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EHHENURER:

RAERRESEMAOSURREEARAEE
BZE2017F12A31BLNEBRS -

SE B

SEEAMNIMINF BR—XEIRERESE
HEREHEENHEKE HEEELKEN
MEBLER BABESRFERZ RTFEERER
ROTERAESEHEEBE 2 —-BA &
BEFEAELtEEEEE LS SRR &
RELFBELFERT T

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present to the
Shareholders the results report of the Group as of 31
December 2017.

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP

Founded in 1999, the Group is an education institution
dedicated to providing investment and management
in higher education focusing on applied sciences.
It is one of the fastest-growing companies focusing
on applied sciences higher education in China with
extensive operation and education experience and
distinctive competitive edges. Currently, the Group owns
seven higher education institutes in seven provinces in
Mainland China and a tenfold increase over the past
seven years in terms of the number of enrolled students.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED HEIi=m#sE
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FTRBESE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

As a forerunner and innovator of private higher education
institutes in China, by taking education as its principal
business, the Group adheres to the mission of “promoting
the education development in China by innovation”,
commits to the talent cultivation model that aims to equip
students with practicable skills based on “sustainable
and high-quality employment”, strives to improve student
experience and teaching quality, continues to relieve
poverty through education for continuous development and
innovation. As a result, the number of enrolled students
continues to increase and our market competitiveness and
social influence continue to strengthen.

The goal of developing students with “rich cultural
background and distinctive characteristics” as well as
practical and scalable education results of the Group are
fully recognized by all society peers. In recent years, the
employment rate and professional counterpart rate of
graduates in Yunnan School and Guizhou School maintained
at over 98% and 70%, respectively.

RESULTS PERFORMANCE

2017 is an exceptionally important year in the development
history of the Group. On April 19, the Group was
successfully listed on the main board in SEHK, set sailing
a new journey of capitalization and internationalization
development. The Group has delivered encouraging results
performance as of 31 December 2017. Comprehensive
Income (Revenue and other income and gains) up by
35.1%, amounted to RMB542.8 million. Profit for the
year from continuing operations increased by 111.1% to
RMB233.3 million. Excluding the listing expenses, the core
net profit for the year amounted to RMB259.4 million, up
by 99.5%. According to the latest result of the Hang Seng
Index quarterly review, the Group was included in the Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index which has officially
become effective from 5 March 2018, which implies that
the Group’s has been recognized by the Hong Kong capital
market. Mainland Investors can get access to invest in the
Group through Stock Connect.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT %
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OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

Currently, the Group operates and invests a total of 6
schools in Southwest China, Gentral China and Northeast
China, namely Yunnan School, Guizhou School, Central
China School, Northeast School and Xinjiang School, as
well as Henan School. Also, the Group planned to construct
of Northwest School. The academic year of our schools
generally starts on September 1 of each calendar year
and ends on August 31 of the next calendar year. As at
the 2017/2018 academic year, the Group has a total of
58,036 enrolled students in its two self-owned schools and
three schools under investment (excluding Henan School)
in China, representing an increase of 24.9% as compared
to the number of enrolled students as at the end of the
2016/2017 academic year. According to internal statistics,
as of 31 December 2017, the average employment rate of
Yunnan School and Guizhou School under the Group was
98.1%.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

As the Chinese government continues to implement
favourable policies for promoting the development of
private higher education and pushes forward the structural
reform of higher education on the supply front, the rapid
increase of residents’ wealth as well as the extensive
application of smart technology, private universities focusing
on applied sciences will be presented with valuable
development opportunities. Facing such unprecedented
industry landscape and operation environment, the Group
unswervingly implements the “discipline-based, majors
support, employment breakthrough and quality-driven”
strategy to seek new opportunities in “integrating into
national strategies, integrating into regional development
and integrating with industry progress”.

On one hand, the Group will accelerate the expansion of our
national network layout and increase our industry market
share by carrying out investment, merger and acquisition
in the key areas of higher education with enormous growth
potential. The Group will also build our own school by
rapidly replicating our value-added model when suitable

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEIFEXEBERAT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

opportunities arise with a view to increasing our financial
returns. On the other hand, the Group will continue to
increase student enroliment at our existing schools, optimize
systems and mechanisms, focus on the objectives such as
key disciplines, majors with advantages, social reputation,
student satisfaction and high-quality employment, put
strenuous efforts to achieve cultural development, nurture
first-class teachers, enhance school reputation, strive for
balance between raising tuition fees and increasing market
shares, further optimize revenue from tuition fees and
boarding fees, and expand its streams of revenue from
aspects such as training for professional tests and property
management of schools.

Looking forward, the Group will adhere to the education aim
of “nurture the growth of our students with a parental heart
and help students in accomplishing their dreams”, practice
the educational philosophy of “enhance morality and
foster talents, provide education tailored to each student’s
individual needs and circumstances”, proactively implement
the dual drivers of “talent + capital”, promote the four main
strategies of “grouplization, digitization, internationalization
and branding”, and strive to the leader of China higher
education focusing on applied Science, to become the most
respected first-class education group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to all students and their parents. | would also
like to thank local governments and our Shareholders
for their continued support for the development of New
Higher Education. Also, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to the Board members and senior management
for their contribution and hard work during the year, as well
as to the management and teaching staff in schools for
their unwavering dedication to quality education.

China New Higher Education Group Limited
Li Xiaoxuan
Chairman

28 February 2018
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BUSINESS REVIEW
POSITION

The Group commissioned China Insights Industry
Consultancy Limited (“CIC”), an industry consulting company
to conduct an industry research, and the results of the
research report are as follows:

1. The Group is a listed private higher education services
provider with leading employment rate.

The graduate employment rate of the Group for 2017
reached 98.1%, which makes us a leading position
among listed peers, based on the information as
publicly disclosed by the listed peers.

2. The Group is a listed higher private education services
provider with fastest growing number of enrolled
students in terms of the CAGR (Compound Annual
Growth Rate) of total student enroliment from 2013 to
2017 for the schools of the Group.

As at the end of 2013, the Group had two
self-established schools, namely Yunnan School and
Guizhou School, with total student enrollment of
18,590. The CAGR for the total student enroliment of
the two self-established schools from 31 December
2013 to 31 December 2017 was 20.5%, representing
the fastest growing among the listed peers.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEIFEXEBERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

By 31 December 2017, we owned and invested in
Yunnan School, Guizhou School, Northeast School,
Central China School and Xinjiang School, with the
total student enrollment of 58,036.

3. The Group is a listed private higher education services
provider with highest region penetration rate in recent
three years.

From 2015 to 2017, through acquisition and
establishment of our own schools, the Group stepped
foot into four provinces including Hubei, Heilongjiang,
Gansu and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, which
marks the highest region penetration in recent three
years among the listed peers. The Group also started
to deploy footprint in Henan Province in January 2018
by agreeing to acquire Henan School.

4. A leading position in the private higher education
market where the Group has business as measured by
number of students enrolled in the relevant provinces.

For 2017/2018 academic year, in terms of number
of students enrolled, Yunnan School of the Group
occupies top one in private higher education market in
Yunnan Province, same as Guizhou School in Guizhou
Province.

FEATURES OF APPLIED SCIENCES

As a private higher education provider focusing on applied
sciences, the Group strives to provide high quality higher
education in a wide selection of fields in applied sciences.
Our course offerings are designed to equip students with
practical experience and readily applicable skills and
prepare them for the job market. Meanwhile, the Group
will adjust its course offerings from time to time to meet
changing market demand. As a result, we outperformed
our industry peers in terms of industry-leading graduate
employment rates. Each of the Group’s schools has gained
wide recognition in the region where it is located and
continues to attract students and quality teachers.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT %k
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Market demand for talents with practical experience and
readily applicable technical skills will continue to grow.
The Group believes there is significant market potential
for the growth of private higher education in the PRC. In
light of this industry background, as a private provider of
higher education focusing on applied sciences, the Group
is well-positioned to capture on the growth opportunities in
the PRC higher education sector.

OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
operated and invested in five higher education institutions
in the PRC, including Yunnan School and Guizhou School
founded by the Group, and Northeast School, Central China
School and Xinjiang School invested by the Group. Further,
the Group agreed to acquire Henan School in January 2018.
The Group is a leading private higher education group in
the PRC in terms of employment rate in 2017 according
to the CIC Report. In addition, we are under application to
establish the California School in US as at the date of this
report.

OUR SCHOOLS, SCHOOLS TO BE ESTABLISHED,
SCHOOLS TO BE INVESTED IN THE PRC AND
EDUCATIONAL CURRICULUMS

The Group endeavors to help each student maximize his
or her potential and live his or her life to the fullest. The
Group’s fundamental educational philosophy is mainly
composed of two integral parts: (i) to nurture the growth
of our students, and provide tailor-made education to each
student’s individual needs and circumstances; and (i) to
equip our students with practical and readily applicable
skills that meet market demand.
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EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUR SCHOOLS
Yunnan School

Located in Songming County, Kunming City, Yunnan
Province, the predecessor of Yunnan School, Software
College was established in 2005 and was successfully
upgraded in 2011 with qualification to grant bachelor’s
degrees. It is now a formal higher education institution
providing undergraduate education and junior college
education focused on applied sciences. Yunnan school
has a site area of approximately 535,800 sg.m., including
classroom buildings, student dormitory buildings, teacher
dormitory building, simulation training building and other
facilities such as library and dining halls. Yunnan School
currently offers over 50 majors in six colleges with students
mostly enrolled from Yunnan Province and other provinces
of Southwest China (such as Guizhou, Sichuan and
Chongging).

Guizhou School

Located in Qingzhen City, Guiyang City, Guizhou Province,
Guizhou School is a formal higher education institution
established in 2012. It provides junior college education
focused on applied sciences. The school has a site area
of approximately 284,850 sqg.m., including classroom
buildings, student dormitory buildings, teacher dormitory
building, simulation training building and other facilities
such as library and dining halls. Guizhou School currently
offers approximately 30 majors in six colleges with
students mostly enrolled from Guizhou Province and other
provinces of Southwest China (such as Yunnan, Sichuan and
Chongging).
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SCHOOLS TO BE INVESTED
Northeast School

Located in Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, Northeast School
is an independent institute established in 2004 under the
laws of the PRC. Northeast School is a private institution
of formal higher education focused on applied sciences,
providing undergraduate education and junior college
education focused on applied sciences. Northeast School
has a site area of approximately 623,000 sg.m. and
currently offers over 30 undergraduate and junior college
majors in ten colleges.

On 20 April 2016, Haxuan Company, one of the Company’s
subsidiaries, entered into an agreement with the current
school sponsors of Northeast School, pursuant to which
Haxuan Company agreed to acquire the entire school
sponsor’s interest of Northeast School. As of 31 December
2017, the application to transfer the school sponsorship
from the current school sponsors to Haxuan Company is
pending the final approval of MOE and the registration
with the provincial civil affairs authorities. Upon the
completion of the approval and the entering into of
the structured contracts, Northeast School’s results of
operations will be consolidated into the Group’s results of
operations. According to the Implemental Rules on Private
School Registration (R EBR D EE L E e 41 Al)
promulgated on 30 December 2016, MOE has designated
the education bureau at the provincial level to approve
the change of the school sponsor of the private schools
that provide higher education. The Company will follow up
closely with the department of education in Heilongjiang
Province in this regard.
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EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 23 August 2016, Northeast School and Huihuang
Company entered into an exclusive technical service and
education consultancy service agreement, as effective on
1 September 2016 pursuant to which, Huihuang Company
agreed to provide technology and management consulting
services to Northeast School prior to the transfer of the
school sponsorship from the current school sponsors
of Northeast School to Haxuan Company and, in return,
Northeast School would pay 73.91% of its surplus from
operations on a monthly basis to Huihuang Company as
service fees during the term of this agreement.

Central China School

Located in Enshi City, Hubei Province, Central China School
is an institution of formal higher education established in
2003 under the laws of the PRC.

Enchang Company, one of the Company’s subsidiaries,
entered into a cooperation agreement with Minzu College to
establish the new campus of Central China School in August
2015. As of 31 December 2017, the application to make
Enchang Company as a joint school sponsor of Central
China School is pending the final approval of MOE and the
registration with the provincial civil affairs authorities. Upon
its completion, Enchang Company will become a joint school
sponsor of Central China School and the results of the
Central China School will then be included into our results.
As disclosed above, due to the promulgation of Implemental
Rules on Private School Registration ( R 3% 22 £ 2 8 &
SCEMAR) , the Company will follow up closely with
the department of education in Hubei Province in relation to
the change of school sponsor of the Central China School.
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On 15 May 2017, Huihuang Company and Central China
School entered into an exclusive technical service and
education consultancy service agreement, pursuant to
which, Huihuang Company agreed to provide technology
and management consulting services to Central China
School prior to the approval of the change to the school
sponsorship of Central China School and, in return, starting
from 1 January 2017, Central China School would pay
100% of its surplus from operations on a yearly basis to
Huihuang Company as service fees.

Xinjiang School

Located in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, Xinjiang
School is a private institution of formal higher education
established in 2003 under the laws of the PRC.

The school is principally engaged in private higher
education in Xinjiang which offers undergraduate education.
The school obtained the approval to grant bachelor’s
degrees and is allowed to recruit students for 4 academic
years, while Xinjiang School only began to recruit students
for the 2016/2017 and the 2017/2018 academic years.

On 27 December 2017, Beijing Daai Consulting, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Yun Ai Group, agreed to acquire
an aggregate of 56% equity interest of Xinjiang School
Sponsor. Upon closing of the acquisition, Xinjiang School
Sponsor will be held as to 56% by Beijing Daai Consulting
and as to 44% by an independent third party. Beijing Daai
Consulting, Xinjiang School and Xinjiang Siyuan Education
Investment Co., Lid. (FIBERRBBEREEBRA

will enter into the structured contracts with Hmhuang
Company, the terms and conditions of which shall be the
same as the existing structured contracts in all material
aspects, after which each of the Xinjiang School Sponsor
and Xinjiang School will be treated as a consolidated
affiliated entity of the Company and the Xinjiang School’s
results of operations will be consolidated into the Group’s
results of operations. The Company will publish further
announcement(s) according to the Listing Rules and
HKEx-GL77-14 upon closing of the acquisition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Henan School

Located in Luoyang, Henan Province, Henan School is a
private institution of formal higher education established
under the laws of the PRC in 2003.

Henan School has 9 secondary institutions and 21 higher
level vocational majors, focusing on electronic commerce,
software technology, Internet of things application
technology, etc..

On 8 January 2018, Beijing Daai Consulting, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Yun Ai Group, agreed to acquire 55%
school sponsor interest of Henan School. Upon closing of
the acquisition, the sponsor interest of Henan School will
be wholly owned by Henan Rongyu and Henan Rongyu
will be held as to 55% by Beijing Daai Consulting, as to
45% by Mr. Rong and Ms. Kong. Among others, Henan
Rongyu and Henan School will enter into the structured
contracts with Huihuang Company, the terms and conditions
of which shall be the same as the existing structured
contracts in all material aspects, after which each of
Henan Rongyu and Henan School will be treated as a
consolidated affiliated entity of the Company and Henan
School’s results of operations will be consolidated into the
Group’s results of operations. The Company will publish
further announcement(s) according to the Listing Rules and
HKEx-GL77-14 upon closing of the acquisition.
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SCHOOL TO BE ESTABLISHED

Northwest School

On 4 January 2018, the Group acquired the state-owned
land use right in respect of the land situated within the
Lanzhou New Development Zone, Gansu Province, the PRC
by a successful bidding. The land covers a total site area of
approximately 390,605.60 sq.m.

NUMBER OF ENROLLED STUDENTS

In order to be admitted for higher education, a student must
pass and attain certain scores in China’s National Higher
Education Entrance Examination. Being institutions providing
higher education services, the respective education
authorities will specify a quota for the number of new
students that each of the Group’s schools may admit each
year.

The Group believes the educational philosophies of its
schools and its well-developed curriculums as well as
its high graduate employment rates help the Group to
attract high-quality students who are seeking a pathway
to satisfactory employment. Moreover, the quality faculty
team is also a major factor that has played in the past, and
will continue to play in the future, an important role in the
success of the schools.
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Number of Enrolled Students
B3 E MO

Academic Year Vot ©

Schools 2017/2018 2016/2017
Yunnan School 23,642 19,490
Four-year undergraduate program 8,891 8,568
Three-year junior college program 12,958 10,922
Other programs "o (" 1,793 -
Guizhou School 15,584 13,972
Three-year junior college program 15,584 13,972
Northeast School " @ 9,355 9,518
Four-year undergraduate program 9,224 9,232
Three-year junior college program 131 286
Central China School "% © 5,709 3,480
Four-year undergraduate program 4,328 2,308
Three-year junior college program 1,070 506
Pre-undergraduate program 311 666
Xinjiang School "¢ © 3,746 -
Four-year undergraduate program 3,746 -
Total 58,036 46,460

Henan School (invested in
January 2018) " © 18,243 -

Total 76,279 46,460
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Notes:

(1) Other programs refer to the five-year college programs. Yunnan School
developed the five-year college programs in 2017-2018 academic year.
Those students will commence their study in partner schools during the
first and second academic years and will commence their study in Yunnan
School and pay tuition fees to Yunnan School from September 2019
onwards.

2) The acquisition of Northeast School by the Group is still pending MOE
approval and registration with the provincial civil affairs authorities.

(3) The investment in Central China School by the Group is still pending MOE
approval and registration with the provincial civil affairs authorities.

(4) The acquisition of Xinjiang School is still pending approval by provincial
education authorities and registration with the provincial civil affairs
authorities.

5) The acquisition of Henan School is still pending approval by provincial
education authorities and registration with the provincial civil affairs
authorities.

(6) An academic year generally starts from September 1 of each calendar year
to August 31 of the following calendar year.

GRADUATE EMPLOYMENT RATE

As a private higher education provider focused on applied
sciences, the Group uses graduate employment rate as
an important criterion to measure the teaching results.
The Group believes that its industry-leading graduate
employment rate help to enhance its reputation and attract
talented high school graduates, while at the same time
facilitate the Group’s acquisitions of other schools in the
PRC.
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BEERMER
Graduate Employment Rate
HZ=128318
As of 31 December
20175 20165
2017 2016
98.8% 98.8%
97.2% 97.6%
98.1% 98.3%
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Graduate employment rate is defined as a rate calculated by dividing the
number of students who find employment within six months after their
graduation (including students who find employment in business entities,
start own businesses or pursue further studies) by the total number of
students graduated from the school for the relevant academic year.

Average employment rate is calculated by dividing the total number of
students employed by total number of students graduated.

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations refers
to tuition fees and boarding fees we charge by person.
The Group usually requires students to pay tuition fees
and boarding fees at the beginning of each new academic
year. The tuition fees are mainly determined based on the
demand for the educational programs, cost of operations,
the geographic markets where the Group operates its
schools, the tuition fees charged by same type of schools,
the pricing strategy to gain market share and general
economic conditions in China and the areas where the
Group’s schools are located.
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Other income and gains includes service income (including
service fee recognized under the exclusive technical
service and education consultancy service agreement
between Northeast School and Huihuang Company and
under the exclusive technical service and education
consultancy service agreement between Central China

BSHE R EAM - School and Huihuang Company, respectively), rental income,
government grants and others.
BA(AREBER)
Revenue (RMB million)
BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164 21t
2017 2016 Change
BE Tuition fees
EEER Yunnan School 249.4 201.2 +24.0%
BEMER Guizhou School 131.3 109.5 +19.9%
BEAE Total tuition fees 380.7 310.7 +22.5%
BFREE Boarding fees 33.7 30.3 +11.2%
Hipzm K iEa Other income and gains 128.4 60.9 +110.8%
s Total 542.8 401.9 +35.1%
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EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUE FROM MANAGEMENT SERVICE

The revenue from management service of the Group, which
is included in other income and gains, increased by 225.2%
from RMB13.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 to RMB43.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. Such increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in management service fees charged by Northeast
School by 124.4% to RMB30.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, and the management service fees of
RMB13.6 million charged by Central China School. Upon the
approval by the educational authorities and the completion
of registration with the provincial civil affairs authorities, all
financials will be consolidated to the Group, including the
revenue, and the current management fee arrangement will
be terminated.

TEACHERS

The Group believes the quality of education is largely
dependent on the quality of teachers. The Group primarily
seeks to recruit (i) high quality experienced teachers who
are knowledgeable in both theory and practice; (ii) teachers
who have working experience in relevant industries, such
as experienced accountants, engineers and managers; and
(iii) teachers who hold relevant professional qualifications or
credentials. In its recruitment efforts, the Group also places
a strong emphasis on strong communication skills and a
passion for teaching.
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EEBRR
BEMNERHKEMEB
Number of teachers in Yunnan School
and Guizhou School

HZ=12H318
As of 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
ZEm Teachers
2 B A Full-time teachers 1,103 1,093
FRER 2D Part-time teachers 592 403
&5t Total 1,695 1,496
AEEEESE OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS OF THE GROUP
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The Group has presented some new highlights and features
in its operation:

1. In 2017, the Group had five higher education
institutions which are self-established and invested
with the total number of students exceeding 58,000.
As of January 2018, the Group announced to invest in
Henan School.

2. Yunnan School was approved to increase its admission
quota by double. The education department of Yunnan
Province has approved to increase the scale of student
enroliment of Yunnan School to 44,000 during the
“13th Five-Year Plan” period.
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EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Enhancing the experience of enrolled students. We
implement transformation and upgrade of the school
environment of Yunnan School and Guizhou School.
Yunnan School newly constructed the phase Il
business district, upgraded canteen and dormitory
and established various activity space to meet the
daily studying and living requirements of students.
The school carries out the environment-based
education and improves campus green environment,
Guizhou School built a fully functional and
provincially-advanced nursing simulation training room
with an area of more than 5,000 sq.m..

Improving teaching quality. The Group has
concentrated resources on developing state-level
advantageous majors, provincial-level key majors
and school-level key majors for Yunnan School and
Guizhou School. The Group has also introduced
emerging majors such as internet-of-things application
technology, internet finance, cloud computing
technology etc. The Group has further expanded the
application of college of excellence model, increased
the number of classes and majors. The Group has also
optimized the motivational education as well as the
020 Teaching Mode, such as inviting honored scholar
Professor Yu Dan and other renowned lecturers to
participate in teaching our courses, with an aim
to improve teaching quality and students’ learning
experience.
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5. Brand marketing. Yunnan School successfully held
the inaugural meetings of Information Technology
Professional Society of National Applied Technology
University Association ( 2B FE B £ ilf K2 (7))
HREREMEZERHES), Non-Government
Education Committee of the China Education
Development Strategy Association ( Bl %1 B 2% &
BHREgRMWHEZZT) and other important
events. The school made its own voice heard in the
field of vocational education and private education,
which gained recognition and respect from the same
industry. At the same time, the Entrepreneurship
Development Arena of Yunnan School has officially
become a national Entrepreneurship Development
Arena. The school was also rated as the only 5A
social organization among the private higher education
institutions in Yunnan Province.

6. Establishing an intelligent and safe campus. Put online
“paperless” examinations, and the development of all
functions of the online examination system has been
completed, which improved teaching management
efficiency. Yunnan School rolled out the first “ Safe
Campus Intelligent Management Platform” ( £ % #¢
EEEZEEFEE)in Yunnan Province, aiming to
promote campus safety management in an all-round
way through intelligent information system.

Improve the Quality of Employment

Apart from employment rate, the Group also focuses
on professional counterpart rate, employment rate in
renowned enterprises and graduates starting salaries and
regards them as the indexes in measuring employment
quality. In 2017, Yunnan School and Guizhou School
jointly held several campus special recruitment sessions
and large-scale campus job fairs for graduates, showing
the Group’s relentless efforts in promoting high-quality
employment of graduates through different channels. The
Group keeps close cooperation with various chambers of
commerce and industrial associations of different provinces,
forming a school-enterprise linkage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In recent years, the number of graduates from Yunnan
School going to Korea and Thailand to take up paid
internship and serve as international Chinese teachers is
increasing year by year.

For entrepreneurship, Yunnan School has successfully
upgraded and revamped the “Entrepreneur Development
Arena of Yunnan School” to provide entrepreneurs an
arena to start their own business and generate the effect
of promoting employment through business startups with
the low-cost, convenient and all-important entrepreneurial
service platform.

Optimize and Adjust the Structure of Majors

The Group actively adjusts the structures of majors to meet
the economic and social development needs. In order to
proactively meet the demands of the economic development
in the location and economic circle they belong to, we
adjust the structure of majors and keep on perfecting the
training scheme to actively serve its regional economic
development. For instance, Yunnan School has formed
the discipline and major structure with economics and
management science as the dominant features, engineering
and education as the key majors and coordinated
development of multidisciplinary.

Guizhou School is determined to apply for teaching
the preschool education, urban rail transit engineering
technology, big data technology and application, electrical
automation technology, new energy vehicle technology and
care (such as oral care direction) and other majors in 2018,
and restart the teaching of tourism management as a major.
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Construction of College of Excellence

The Group established a secondary college, the college
of excellence, at both Yunnan School and Guizhou School
to provide our students with a full term of modern
apprenticeship training during their final academic year. This
model is taking reference to the case study method adopted
at Harvard University and the dual education system widely
adopted in Germany, aiming to equip our students with
practical work skills required for specific job positions and
help them find satisfactory employment.

As of 31 December 2017, 1,211 students had participated
in our apprenticeship training, including 723 students from
Yunnan School and 488 students from Guizhou School.
As of 31 December 2017, the starting salary of the 2017
fresh graduates from the college of excellence at Yunnan
School is RMB5,601 per month, which is way above market
standard, and its employment rate is 100%.

Cooperation with Overseas Schools

In order to provide our students with necessary exposure
to various cultures and opportunities to seek education
overseas, Yunnan School has established academic
cooperation with several overseas universities, including
University of Worcester in the UK (ZREI{RET4F KE)
University of Northampton in the UK (B4t ZE 18 X
E) and the Dhurakij Pundit University in Thailand ( 2=
Bfl {8 1= K2 ) . Under the cooperation, these overseas
universities will recognize the credits obtained by students
for their study at Yunnan School. Upon completing the
agreed additional term of study (typically one year) at these
overseas universities, these students are able to obtain
the degree granted by these overseas universities. The
cooperation is confined to students studying for specified
majors.
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In addition, Yunnan School entered into cooperative
arrangements with Nanhua University ( 8 = E K2) in
Taiwan in 2013 and Overseas Chinese University ( & & {5
HRHE K E) in Taiwan in 2014 respectively for a term of
five years regarding students exchange programs. Yunnan
School also entered into a cooperative agreement with
the Korea University of Technology and Education in South
Korea (BEEI £ T #X A K& ) in January 2014 regarding
student exchange programs. In 2017, Yunnan School
achieved breakthroughs in international cooperation as
Panyapiwat Institute of Management, Thailand ( Z= Bl IE X
S EPr) officially set up its graduate office in Yunnan
School, which further expand the channels for students to
further their studies abroad.

FUTURE PROSPECTS
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Investment in Schools

The Group intends to expand its school network and
increase its market penetration and its market share
in the private higher education sector in the PRC.
Specifically, the Group has formed an investment team
headed and managed directly by its senior vice president.
This investment team is responsible for identifying and
evaluating potential acquisition targets across China. The
Group has also established an investment and acquisition
management committee headed by the chairman of the
Board. This committee will periodically review the feasibility
of acquisitions and determine which ones to pursue.

The Group intends to expand into western and central China
where it believes of having significant growth potential
because the higher education enrollment rates in these
regions are relatively lower than the national average
enroliment rates, and, in particular, that of economically
more developed regions in the PRC. Following the
completion of acquisitions or investments, the Group plans
to leverage on its replicable business model to optimize the
operations of the acquired or invested schools and rapidly
replicate the value-added service revenue model of Yunnan
School to increase financial returns.
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Increase student enroliments at existing schools

The Group will continue to increase the student enroliments
at existing schools. Both Yunnan School and Guizhou School
have large areas of reserved land, which could be used
for further expansion. Northeast School and Central China
School also have large areas of reserved land, in which the
Group could develop after both acquisitions are completed.

During the first half of 2017, four blocks of dormitories at
Yunnan School were completed and its second simulation
training building was also completed in the second
half of 2017 to provide students the practical training
opportunities. Guizhou School completed the construction of
two blocks of dormitories and a simulation training building.

Establish our own schools

The Group will target the areas where the higher education
enroliment rates are relatively lower than the national
average enrollment rates as the key areas to establish
our schools by copying from the successful models of
our two self-established schools to our new schools to be
established.

Further optimization of sources of revenue and other
income

1. Increase in tuition fees and boarding fees

The Group is able to maintain the current tuition rates
and raise the tuition rates and recruit more students
as its brand awareness and reputation have grown.
For instance, with the recognition and support of local
education bureau, the number of approved enrolled
students of Yunnan School can be increased to 44,000
during the period of the “13th Five-year Plan”.

2. Increase in examination training fees

The Group obtains examination preparation and
training fees from the preparation and training courses
that it offers for professional qualification examinations
and standardized tests. Both of which are expected to
increase as the number of students increases.
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Strategic plan in respect of talents

The Group will further improve the team building system
with an emphasis on pushing ahead with the work in
relation to recruitment and training of the teams of
management cadres, teachers and students management.
The Group has planned and commenced the implementation
of projects relating to the introduction of high-end
innovative talents and talents specializing in new subjects
that are in shortage with a view to facilitating the nurture
and development of young talents and enhancing the quality
of our talent pool. The Group will adopt long-term incentive
schemes such as share option scheme for key personnel of
the Group.

The Group intends to continue to attract, incentivize and
retain quality teachers and build a first-rate faculty team. To
this end, we will step up our efforts in recruiting renowned
experts and professors, experienced business administrators
and other highly skilled persons. The Group will also provide
training to our teachers and staff in various aspects for
their improvement.

In addition, the Group plans to continue to offer competitive
compensation and benefits to the teachers to attract the
most competent talent in the market.

CONCLUSION

Looking forward, the Group will adhere to the mission of
“Promoting Education Development in China Innovatively”
and the education tenet of “Nurture the Growth of Our
Students, Help Students Become The Best They Can
Be”, practice the educational philosophy of “Strengthen
Moral Education and Cultivate Talents, Teach Students
in Accordance with “Their Aptitude, Apply What One Has
Learned”, actively implement the dual drivers in “Talents +
Capital” to promote the four strategies of conglomeration,
digitization, internationalization and brandization.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The Group’s revenue increased by 21.5% from RMB341.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB414.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. This increase
was primarily due to (i) increase in tuition fees by 22.5%
from RMB310.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 to RMB380.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2017, which was attributable to the adjustment of tuition
fee rates of newly admitted student by some majors in
Guizhou School in 2017 and higher student enrollments in
Yunnan School and Guizhou School.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales of principal business increased by 5.4% from
RMB177.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
RMB186.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.
This increase was relatively primarily due to the Group’s
adjustment of compensation system commenced in April
2016 leading to increase in staff costs.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit increased by 39.1% from RMB163.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB227.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017, which was in line with
the growth of the Group’s business. The gross profit margin
increased to 54.9% for the year ended 31 December 2017
from 48.0% for the year ended 31 December 2016, which
was primarily due to the increase in revenue was higher
than the increase in costs.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains increased by 110.8% from
RMB60.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to RMB128.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
management service fees from Northeast School and the
commencement of charge management service fees from
Central China School in 2017.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased from RMB3.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB3.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. This increase
was primarily attributable to the Group’s intensified
promotion for its branding as a listed group and enhanced
promotion quality after Listing.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by 3.0% from RMB59.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB58.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily due
to the decrease in bank handling fees.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses decreased from RMB12.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB4.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was primarily
due to the foreign exchange losses of RMB10.2 million in
2016, as compared to foreign exchange gains recorded in
2017, which was recorded to other income and gains.
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FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by 9.7% from RMB36.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB39.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017, which was mainly due
to the increase in interest expenses of the loan granted
by the CITIC Bank in the amount of US$64 million in
September 2016. The loan from CITIC Bank was fully repaid
on 12 September 2017.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

As a result of the foregoing, we recognized a profit before
income tax of RMB250.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2017, as compared to a profit before income
tax of RMB112.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2016, representing an increase of 121.4%.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s income tax expense increased from RMB2.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB16.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, which was
primarily due to the service fees from Northeast School and
Central China School of the Group charged by Huihuang
Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, the
service fees charged from the schools of the Group under
the Structured Contracts, and withholding income tax on
dividend payout.

PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded a net
profit from continuing operations of RMB233.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017, increased by 111.1%
from RMB110.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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CORE NET PROFIT

Core net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017,
excluding listing fee, increased by 99.5% to RMB259.4
million as compared with the year ended 31 December
2016.

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

201746 20164
2017 2016
ARBBERT ARBEER
RMB million RMB million
REFELEEMH  Profit for the year from continuing
FEREA operations 233.3 110.5
hn: Add:
FHRX Listing expenses 26.1 19.5
o 3 A Core net profit 259.4 130.0
RBEERERRE LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

SENESFTEANBHEEES
ER - BEVE BERZEUR
BEEERRHEBEFNEMX - KRAR
R EEFEULKLMERS
RITER BRRLEEREZREESH
BREFEARERMES -&H
RAEBBRUBRESRKRETHEE
WEERE - RITERRHEMMER
RTBREATESEENHEHMES
HMERBEEF R -BE2017F12
B31H SENRERBSEEY
BARY1186EEB T

The Group’s primary uses of cash are to fund our working
capital requirements, purchase of property, plant and
equipment and loan repayment and related interest
expenses. As at the date of this report, the Group has
funded its operations principally with the cash generated
from our operations, bank borrowings, shareholder
contributions and net proceeds from Global Offering. In the
future, the Group believes that our liquidity requirements
will be satisfied with a combination of cash flows generated
from our operating activities, bank loans, other borrowings
and other funds raised from the capital markets from time
to time. As of 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and
cash equivalents of RMB118.6 million.
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HERE CASH FLOW
TRBJFATEEREREREH N : The following table sets out a summary of our cash flows

for the years indicated:

BZEZ12A31BLEEE
Year ended 31 December

20174 20164
2017 2016
ARBBEERT AR¥BER
RMB million RMB million
KESEE TSI E  Net cash generated from
FEE operating activities 287.1 225.1
REEEFT AR S FE8 Net cash used in investing activities (697.0) (666.6)
RMEEEFTSIR L FE Net cash from financing activities 350.0 537.3
RERBRESEFEYE S Effect of changes in exchange rate
2EREE on cash and cash equivalents (0.3) -
FHNRERIREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 178.8 83.0
FRAESRWEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year 118.6 178.8
RETHMEBHESRE Cash Flows generated from Operating Activities

RENKETHFEREFERHE The Group generates cash from operating activities
BELIBEE - KL TEHMBESL  primarily from tuition fees and boarding fees. Cash flows
RERBRORBEANEF ; (VEEE from operating activities have reflected (i) profit before tax;

2 EH; R(iiNEMIEELEE B (i) movements in working capital; and (iii) other cash items
FENMEHRREREWFRE - consisting of income tax paid and interest received.
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Cash Flows used in Investing Activities

Investing activities comprise primarily purchases of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, prepaid land
lease payments, proceeds from purchase and disposal of
wealth management products, and pledged deposits or
withdrawals of pledged time deposits.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to RMB697.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, which
had primarily reflected the property, plant and equipment
purchased by Yunnan School and Guizhou School, the
investment prepayments of Northeast School, and the
release of pledged time deposits.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Financing activities primarily include borrowing and repaying
bank loans, and the fund raised from the Group’s listing by
way of share offer.

Net cash generated from financing activities amounted to
RMB350.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2017,
which had primarily reflected the fund being raised from the
Group’s listing by way of share offer and the net new loans
raised.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group capital expenditures consisted of purchase or
construction costs relating to property, equipment, prepaid
land lease payments and other intangible assets. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, our capital expenditures
were RMB172.1 million. The Group’s capital expenditures
during the year ended 31 December 2017 were primarily
related to the construction of buildings and school facilities
at the new campus of Yunnan School, Guizhou School and
Central China School, prepaid land lease payments and
purchase of equipment and software. The Group financed
these capital expenditures primarily using the cash
generated from operations and bank loans.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments were primarily related
to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

IR BHNEREAERE: The following table sets out a summary of our capital
commitments as of the dates indicated:
B 220176 B E20165F
12A31H 12A31H
As of As of
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARBEERT AR¥BEER
RMB million RMB million
EEEREE ST Contracted but not provided for:
ME -BERRME Property, plant and equipment 30.9 22.7
RE Investments 124.0 -
154.9 297

BZE2017F12A318 EB X EF
MERBEEBRTINEREREIE-

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant
capital commitment authorized but not contracted for.
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INDEBTEDNESS
BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group’s bank loans and other borrowings primarily
consisted of short-term working capital loans and long-term
project loans for the construction of our school buildings
and facilities.

The Group primarily borrows loans from banks to
supplement our working capital and finance our
expenditure. The bank loans amounted to RMB352.3 million
as of 31 December 2017, all denominated in Renminbi.
As of 31 December 2017, our bank loans bore effective
interest rates ranging from 4.75% to 7.13% per annum.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigations
or claims of material importance, pending or threatened
against any member of the Group.

NET DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

Net debt to equity ratio equals total interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the year divided by total equity
at the end of the year. The Group’s net debt to equity ratio
decreased from 42.4% as of 31 December 2016 to 13.5%
as of 31 December 2017, which was primarily attributable
to the cash received from the issue of shares during the
Listing.
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GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by total equity as of
the end of the year. Total debt includes all interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings. The Group’s gearing
ratio decreased from 61.4% as of 31 December 2016 to
20.4% as of 31 December 2017, which was primarily due
to the Group had applied part of the proceeds from Listing
to repay part of the borrowings and the Company’s share
capital was enlarged as a result of the Listing.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this report, the
Group did not have other plans for material investments and
capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other
significant investments held, no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year, nor was there any plan authorized by the
Board for other material investments or additions of capital
assets during the year ended 31 December 2017.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The functional currency of the Group is RMB. The majority
of the Group’s revenue and expenditures are denominated
in RMB. As at 31 December 2017, certain bank balances
were denominated in USD and HKD. The Group did not
enter into any financial instrument for hedging purpose as
it is expected that foreign exchange exposure will not be
material.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not pledge any
assets.
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EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately
2,068 employees (1,824 as of 31 December 2016). As
required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group
participates in various employee social security plans for
our employees that are administered by local governments,
including housing, pension, medical insurance, maternity
insurance and unemployment insurance. The Group
believe we maintain a good working relationship with our
employees, and we have not experienced any material labor
disputes during the year ended 31 December 2017.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

As of the date of this report, the Group had not entered into
any off-balance sheet transactions.

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMB0.025 per Share for the year ended
31 December 2017. The final dividend will be declared in
Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate
adopted for conversion was the average middle exchange
rate published by the People’s Bank of China of the five
business days prior to the declaration of the final dividend
(i.e. 14 February 2018 to 27 February 2018) (HK$1.0 to
RMB0.8103). Accordingly, the amount of the final dividend
payable in Hong Kong dollars will be HK$0.0309 per Share.

The final dividend will be paid on or about Thursday, 31
May 2018 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 18 May
2018.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 10 May
2018, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 7 May 2018 to Thursday, 10 May
2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 May 2018.

In order to be qualified for the final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed by the Group
from Wednesday, 16 May 2018 to Friday, 18 May 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected. All share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Group’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15 May 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan ( Z=2&F) , aged 43, the founder of the
Group. He was appointed as a Director of the Company on 8
July 2016. He is the chairman of the Board. Mr. Li has more
than 19 years of experience in education and is responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of
the Group.

The following table shows the key working experience of Mr.
Li:

HA AT B #%
Period Company Position
19994 £20045F 1Z 3k o=
1999 to 2004 Training Station Director
2005F ERS EEEH FE
2005 to present Yun Ai Group Chairman

1E 219994 ZE2004F B 1L 3| b 1Y E
EZREEBERIUNBEEEE
MEE - 3Z P uh 0 2 58 E 1 A 8 ag
BROUREALENTHELN
REK o

As a director of the Training Station from 1999 to
2004, Mr. Li was in charge of the daily operation and
management of the Training Station, overall management
and strategic development of the Training Station, as
well as decision-making on significant operational and
administrative matters.
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TREIFEERENER:

The following table shows the awards received by Mr. Li:

H HA #15 EREE
Date Awards Awarding Authority
2009%2H EEEFRIXERE EEEFRAEEREEHA

February 2009

20095128
December 2009

2010108
October 2010

2011568
June 2011

2013524

February 2013

Yunnan Youth Entrepreneur Award

ERHE 8%
Yunnan Education Contribution
Award

FE_EERERERRER
The Second Huang Yanpei
Outstanding Principal Award

FERPBSEHELEBA
The Advanced Individual of China’s
Private Higher Education

FELtEPESFRIFERE
RER

The Seventh China Youth
Entrepreneurship Nominee
Award

Bzes

Yunnan Youth Entrepreneur
Governor Award Organizer
Committee

EHEEEE
Education Department of Yunnan
Province

FEREHRBEH
The National Association of
Vocational Education of China

TERREEHS
The China Association for
Non-Government Education

HEERRRPEARLM
BADERMEESRES

Central Communist Youth League
of China and Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security
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Mr. Li became the first vice president of the China Private
Education Association* in March 2010, a council member
of the 6th China Higher Education Association* in August
2012, a member of the standing committee of the 11th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Yunnan
Province™ in January 2013 and a member of the 11th
Committee of the All-China Youth Federation* in August
2010. Mr. Li is currently a representative of the 13th
National People’s Congress*, a member of the Standing
Committee of Yunnan Provincial Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference*, the vice
chairman of the Yunnan Provincial Committee of China
Association for Promoting Democracy* and a member of
the Standing Committee of All-China Youth Federation™.
He also serves as the vice president of Chinese Society
of Educational Development Strategy*, the vice president
of The China Association for Non-government Education®,
the vice president of Association of Universities (Colleges)
of Applied Science* and the vice president of Non-profit
Private University Alliance™.

Mr. Li completed his undergraduate studies in administrative
management at the Army Officer Academy of PLA ( #
ARBBMEMEIER), the PRC, in June 2008, and
subsequently obtained the qualification as senior economist
in October 2009. Mr. Li was subsequently awarded a master
degree in business administration from Nankai University
(FAFI K E) , the PRC, in June 2010.

Mr. Zhao Shuai (#Rb) , aged 38, joined the Group in
April 2004, and was appointed as the chief executive officer
and an executive Director of the Company on 19 August
2016. Mr. Zhao has more than 14 years of experience in
education and is responsible for setting annual operational
targets and day-to-day management.
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TRITHEHEENETET/ELER: The following table shows the key working experience of
Mr. Zhao:
HA A B % AGREMR
Roles and
Period Company Position responsibilities
200448 £20085F88 EMER BEEE EE84%
April 2004 to August 2008  Yunnan School Student recruitment In charge of student
director recruitment
2008FF9H £2014F3A8 ZEMER Bt & BERE THHN#E
B
September 2008 to March ~ Yunnan School Associate dean In charge of student
2014 recruitment,

administrative and
logistics matters

2014F 4B E2015F48 ZEE&H TRER A 1 BERB -2PNE
g
April 2014 to April 2015 Yun Ai Group General manager In charge of
of administration procurement, logistics
department and infrastructures
20155 8 £2016%F3A B MER HIThR & EEEE MM
R-EIBERHE
1T E &K
May 2015 to March 2016 Guizhou School Executive dean In charge of
management

and strategic
development, staff
recruitment and
other administrative

matters
2016F3B &S EEKE S RBE EEEEMERR
BR
March 2016 to present Yun Ai Group Senior president In charge of

management and
strategic development
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Mr. Zhao obtained the qualification as senior economist
in December 2013. He was awarded a bachelor degree
in Mechanical Engineering Automation from Kunming
University of Science and Technology ( ERBIE T KE) |
the PRC, in July 2004, and is currently pursuing a master
degree in software engineering at Jilin University ( & Ak X
2).

Mr. Zhang Ke (347 ) , aged 45, joined the Group in March
2000 and was appointed as the chief operating officer and
an executive Director on 19 August 2016. Mr. Zhang has
more than 18 years of experience in education or training
and is responsible for day-to-day operations and external
communications and publications.

The following table shows the key working experience of Mr.
Zhang:

HAR AT B %
Period Company Position
2000538 £2005%F 128 12 30 3k BlEE BEHEEBBEEU

March 2000 to December 2005

Training Station

KA EE
Vice-director, in charge of setting

business objectives, and internal

and external communications

200751 B £220155%9A

January 2007 to September
2015

2015 11AZHRS

November 2015 to present

b K & B T
BRAFE

Beijing Crystal Stone Technology
Training Co., Ltd.

ZEHE

BT
kel

Yun Ai Group

BEREEE

Chief operating officer

SREEE BEEBEAKES
HHWRER -BE -mH5EHE
MAYRIRE

Senior vice president, in charge
of decisionmaking in significant
operational matters, student
recruitment, marketing and
publications, and investment
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Mr. Zhang was awarded a diploma in accounting from
Northwest University ( 784t X&) | the PRC, in June 1997
and was awarded a master degree in agricultural marketing
from Beijing Forestry University (3t XK ZE K E) | the
PRC, in December 2015.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Shuo (BR#) , aged 39, was appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 19 August 2016.

The following table shows the key working experience of
Mr. Chen:

HA AT B %

Period Company Position

200258 £2010%F58 EE e BAEMR H FETANT i i 4 8
CRIIPEAE

May 2002 to May 2010 Shenzhen office of Deloitte Touche Taxation manager
Tohmatsu Limited

20107 RS FLEAXBREMEAT BATHRKIE

July 2010 to Present Ping An Trust Co., Ltd. Executive general manager

20121 A 22015528 BRIMEMBROBRAT FHITES

CRIEZRZRET R

&) R348 1 002600)
January 2012 to February 2015 JPMF Guangdong Co., Ltd., Non-executive director
a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002600)
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Mr. Chen obtained the qualification as registered tax agent
from Shenzhen Personnel Bureau in June 2009. He was
awarded a bachelor degree in real estate management from
the University of Shenzhen (3R3I| K2 ) | the PRC, in June
1999, and a master degree in management from University
of Nottingham, the United Kingdom, in December 2001.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis (& 3 %) , aged 53, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 20 March 2017.

The following table shows the key working experience of Mr.
Wong:

HA S YN B 7%
Period Company Position
19858 H £1991F 128 25 R By AR IR

August 1985 to December 1991  KPMG

Assistant manager

19921 A 21993104 ERPREERRAFA BhIE A58

January 1992 to October 1993 Hong Kong Securities Clearing Co., Assistant manager
Ltd.

19965 Z£2007 4 B RETHAI S EEHAKE
BRAF

1996 to 2007 Francis Wong C.P.A. Co., Limited Managing Director

2002F £20185F4 8 TESTMEBAERAT ESHKE

2002 to April 2018 Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited Managing Director

20094 £2018F 4 A hEDIARSE(EHR) =)
B KA AR A T

2009 to April 2018 Union Alpha CAAP Certified Public  Director
Accountants Limited

2008F 2/ S BEXREZEESHRAT Al ES

2008 to present Francis M.C. Wong Charitable Founding director
Foundation Limited

2004 2B S PERLSEBEEZERERAT BIUFHTES
(B2 91X 3% 1 581)

2004 to present China Oriental Group Company Independent non-executive director

Limited (stock code: 581)
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A YN B %
Period Company Position
2004F 2R S EREEERAT BYFHTES

2004 to present

2006 F 2 RS

2006 to present

2013F10B 2RSS

October 2013 to present

2015 7TAERS

July 2015 to present

2016 FF4R 2R S

April 2016 to present

201656 R 23S
June 2016 to present

20173R RS
March 2017 to present

2018F4A RS
April 2018 to now

2018F4R 2/ S

April 2018 to now

(IR P 1X3% 1 610)
Wai Kee Holdings Limited
(stock code: 610)

NS R A PR A A
(IR P 1X 3% 1 861)

Digital China Holdings Limited
(stock code: 861)

FERREBRRAF
(B2 5% - 923)

Integrated Waste Solutions Group
Holdings Limited
(stock code: 923)

FOEBAERAA
(IR K3K 1 94)

Greenheart Group Limited
(stock code: 94)

RAMEERIERBRA T
(B 404X 5% : 3800)

GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3800)

EREMKBERMDERA A
Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment
Co., Ltd

BEERERAT
(B0 4R35 : 1623)

Hilong Holding Limited
(stock code: 1623)

FTESHMEBKABERA A
Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited

FEDIAAE(FB)SEHEM
EXRBERRATA

Union Alpha CAAP Certified Public
Accountants Limited

Independent non-executive director

BYFHTES

Independent non-executive director

BYFHITES

Independent non-executive director

BYFHITES
Independent non-executive director
BYFHITES

Independent non-executive director

BYKHITES
Independent non-executive director
BYHHITES
Independent non-executive director

FHUTER

Non-executive Chairman
FHITES

Non-executive director
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Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising). He
was admitted as a Certified Public Accountant in October
1990 and in September 2012, enrolled in a master
programme in management at Jinan University ( 2 fa X
E) | the PRC, and was subsequently awarded the master
degree in management in June 2005. Mr. Wong is currently
a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Society of
Chinese Accountants and Auditors, and a Certified Tax
Advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (EB{£15) , aged 52, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 20 March 2017. Mr. Kwong has more than 10
years of experience in corporate finance and equity capital
markets in Asia. Mr. Kwong is an executive Director of China
Metal Resources Utilization Limited (stock code: 1636),
in charge of its corporate and strategic development. Mr.
Kwong was the president of Gushan Environmental Energy
Limited, a company whose American depositary shares were
listed on the New York Stock Exchange from December
2007 to October 2012. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Shunfeng International Clean
Energy Limited (stock code: 1165) since 16 July 2014,
C.banner International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028)
since 26 August 2011 and China Outfitters Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1146) since 8 June 2011, all of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
since 13 July 2011, 23 September 2011 and 9 December
2011, respectively. Prior to joining Gushan Environmental
Energy Limited in 2006, he was the managing director of
investment banking and he held the position as the head of
Hong Kong and China equity capital markets at CLSA Equity
Capital Markets Limited from March 2004 to July 2006. Mr.
Kwong was a director from 2002 to 2003, and the general
manager of the corporate finance department from 1997
to 2003 for Cazenove Asia Limited. After graduating from
University of Cambridge, England with a bachelor’s degree
in Arts in 1987, he qualified as a chartered accountant in
the United Kingdom in 1990. Mr. Kwong is currently an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountant
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Hu Jianbo, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 22 December
2017. Mr. Hu has over 20 years of experience in the
education industry. He received his bachelor degree in
engineering from Northwest Institute of Architecture and
Engineering* (AL E TE P ) , now known as
Chang’an University* (R Z K&) | in July 1984, and his
executive master degree in business administration from
China Europe International Business School* ( A & Bl B
TREEPR) in September 2007. From July 1984 to July
1992, Mr. Hu worked at Xi'an University* (FA&Z KE) |
now known as Xi'an University of Art and Science* (78 &
XIEEPR) | as a teacher. From July 1992 to July 1996,
Mr. Hu served as the vice chairman of the board of Xi'an
International University* (78 Z #PE £ B7) . From June
2014 to June 2017, Mr. Hu served as an independent
director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc.* (£ 6% (&
E)RMDAERLQT), alisted company on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600080). Since July 1997, Mr.
Hu has been the dean and chairman of the board of Xi’an
Eurasia University* (78 Z B2 22F5% ) . He is currently the
vice chairman of Chinese Association for Non-Government
Education* (R B R #¥# B &) and the vice chairman
of 21st Century Education Research Institute* (211 42 2%
Bk .
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Qin Hongkang (Z&& & EE) , aged 42, joined the Group
in December 2004, and was appointed as a vice president
of the Company on 19 August 2016.

The following table shows the key working experience of Mr.

Qin:

B & YNES] B %

Period Company Position

199947 B £2004%F 128 Bt R Rt HEFERE EENERY
KEEEE

July 1999 to December 2004 Dianchi Morning News Agency* Reporter of social news, director of

CEMERE) important news and economic

news

200412 8 2200911 8 EMER I

December 2004 to November
2009

20095128 £2013F 128
December 2009 to December
2013

2013F12A 2B S

December 2013 to present

Yunnan School

BEMBER

Guizhou School

= 5

i
R}
)

Yun Ai Group

Associate dean

HITERER
Executive dean

EAH BENE -RLHA
REBEREZH

Vice president in charge of
mergers and acquisitions, online
education and students career
advice
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Mr. Qin obtained the qualification as lecturer from
Intermediate Title Evaluation Committee* ( H £ 5& %8 5F
FEZEZEE) of Software College in September 2008. He
was awarded a bachelor degree in applied chemistry from
Yunnan University ( 2/ K &) | the PRC, in July 1999.

Ms. Liu Fengming ( I /@ B8 ) , aged 48, joined the Group
in September 2002, and was appointed as a vice president
of the Company on 19 August 2016.

The following table shows the key working experience of
Ms. Liu:

B A F] B %

Period Company Position

2002598 £2003F 108 1% 3 vk HEMRBAEEE

September 2002 to October 2003 Training Station Teacher and director of education
research office

2003%10A #2005 1 A EEEK BRMEERERE

October 2003 to January 2005 Zhuan Xiu School Director of education department
and vice principal

200518 22011434 EEER &bz &

January 2005 to March 2011 Yunnan School Associate dean

2011538 £2015%9A EEZEkK (T

March 2011 to September 2015 Zhuan Xiu School Dean

2015598 £2016%F7 A RS B

September 2015 to July 2016 Beijing Lianhe General manager

2016F7R &S EEEE RS

July 2016 to present Yun Ai Group Vice president
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Ms. Liu was awarded a master degree in business
administration from Yunnan University (Z2f K2 ) | the
PRC, in December 2009. She obtained the qualification
as senior economist from Yunnan Township Enterprise
Senior Professional and Technical Position Evaluation
Committee* (EMBHELCESNEERMB B
FFEZEZE ) in November 2012 and the qualification
as associate professor from Yunnan Higher Education
Institution Professor and Associate Professor Evaluation
Committee* (EFME S RAMBRBEBRAETEE
=) in October 2013. She is currently studying for a doctor
degree in management science and engineering at Kunming
University of Science and Technology ( EBRIE T KE) .

Ms. Zheng Yanli (ER%88) , aged 47, joined the Group
in May 2014, and was appointed as a vice president of
the Company in 19 August 2016. She was subsequently
promoted as a senior vice president of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zheng worked at Ambow
Education Group Limited (ZBHEEBHR 2 7))
from April 2003 to April 2014, where she left as the general
manager of the operations centre. Since May 2014, Ms.
Zheng serves as the vice president and general manager of
the investment department at Yun Ai Group, where she is in
charge of mergers and acquisitions.

Ms. Zheng was awarded a master degree in business
administration from University of International Business and
Economics (¥ HMNEFEE 5 KE ) | the PRC, in January
2010.
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Ms. Luo Yuanyuan ( Z8 & #8) , aged 37, joined the Group
in June 2013 and held various positions including the head
of the finance division of Yunnan School and the head of the
budget division and the head of the finance division of the
Company. She was appointed as the joint financial officer
and the general manager of the finance department of the
Company on 20 December 2017.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Luo worked at the Finance
Department of Chuzhou Branch, Anhui Electric Power
Co. (ZBWAENLNTMME L 2T in 2003. She
worked at the Finance Department of Wuhan Aier Eye
Hospital in 2005 and re-designated to Kunming Aier Eye
Hospital for participating in preparation of construction
in 2010. Ms. Luo graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
Sichuan University in 2003.

Mr. Li Xiaoshen (Z=/N£%) , aged 50, was appointed as
the chief executive officer of California Academy on 19
August 2016. The following table shows the key working
experience of Mr. Li Xiaoshen:

B A F] B % AGRER

Roles and
Period Company Position responsibilities
20035F8 A E£20065F7H BRMWHAKRBER WMRYPEHRE B TARG T ER

S A FE R
Krasnow Institute,
George Mason

August 2003 to July 2006

University

20065F8 A £20155%F10A4
Inc.

August 2006 to October
2015 Inc.

CyberData Technologies

CyberData Technologies

EEET 3
Research on computer

simulation of

neuronal system

Research assistant
professor

SR TIZED BB RABUT
A BRI

Software development
and providing training
for government

personnel

Senior software
engineer
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Mr. Li was awarded a bachelor degree in biology from
University of Science and Technology of China ( AR B &} 22
F AT ARE) in January 1991 and a doctor of philosophy
degree from University of Wisconsin — Madison in May
1999.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary of the Group is Ms. Wong Wai Ling.

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (B E %) , aged 38, was appointed
as a joint company secretary on 19 August 2016. She
has over 10 years of experience in providing company
secretarial services in Hong Kong. Ms. Wong is assistant
vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited and
is responsible for assisting listed companies in professional
company secretarial work. Prior to joining SW Corporate
Services Group Limited, she worked in a corporate service
provider and the company secretarial department of an
international accounting firm. Ms. Wong has been awarded
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Marketing and Public Relations
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Master of
Corporate Governance degree from The Open University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong is an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 19 April 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is leading private formal higher education
group in China, as measured by the graduate employment
rates in 2017, according to an industry research conducted
by China Insights Industry Consultancy Limited (“CIC”),
an industry consulting company. Analysis of the principal
activities of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out in the note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at
31 December 2017 are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 177 of this annual report.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of
a final dividend of RMB0.025 per Share (total dividend
of RMB35,778,000) for the year ended 31 December
2017. The final dividend will be declared in Renminbi and
paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate adopted
for conversion was the average middle exchange rate
published by the People’s Bank of China of the five
business days prior to the declaration of the final dividend
(i.e. 14 February 2018 to 27 February 2018) (HK$1.0 to
RMBO0.8103). Accordingly, the amount of the final dividend
payable in Hong Kong dollars will be HK$0.0309 per Share.
The final dividend will be paid on or about Thursday, 31
May 2018 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 18 May
2018.

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Business Review” of this annual report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

EXPAND THE SCHOOL NETWORK COVERAGE AND
INCREASE OUR MARKET PENETRATION.

We intend to expand the School network and increase our
market penetration and our market share in the private
higher education sector in the PRC. Specifically, we have
formed an investment team headed and managed directly
by our vice president for investment. This investment
team is responsible for identifying and evaluating potential
acquisition targets across China. We plan to establish
an investment and acquisition management committee
headed by the chairman of our Board. This committee
will periodically review the feasibility of acquisitions and
determine which ones to pursue.
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We intend to expand into western and central China where
we believe there exist significant growth potential because
the higher education enrollment rates in these regions
are lower than the national average enrollment rates, and
compared with economically more developed regions in
China.

CONTINUE TO STRENGTHEN OUR MARKET
POSITION AND ENHANCE OUR REPUTATION.

We believe that the reputation of a school is one of the
most important criteria students would normally consider
when selecting a university. To increase our enrollment and
expand our business, we intend to continue to enhance
our market position in the higher education industry in the
PRC. We believe that our high graduate employment rates
and comprehensive curriculums with diversified offerings
of practical courses distinguish us from our competitors
and make us attractive to potential applicants. We plan
to design new courses and adjust our existing courses
to continue to best reflect evolving market trends and
meet the demands of employers. We intend to continue
and expand our market research to better understand
employer preferences and student needs. Specifically, we
plan to collaborate with well-established online recruitment
platforms to conduct data analysis in order to further our
understanding of market demand and employment statistics,
and with third-party organizations to analyze nationwide
employment data relating to students in those majors that
we offer. We also plan to obtain relevant data from social
security agencies to understand employer hiring needs and
from local government education departments to understand
employment rates of university graduates to gain a
comprehensive and objective understanding of the market
demand and supply of university graduates. In addition, we
plan to gather human resources plans from corporations
and career plans from our students, and provide career
planning and job placement counselling services to our
students in order for them to find the most suitable
position. We plan to further enhance our reputation among
well-known companies and other potential employers,
establish long-term collaborative relationships with them,
and create employment opportunities for our students.
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We plan to promote the Schools and programs through
both online and offline media. Specifically, we intend to
arrange for periodic reports on our major school activities
through traditional media. We plan to continue to promote
the Schools online where appropriate. We believe that these
promotional activities may help raise our profile among
the general population and enhance our reputation among
parents and students.

CONTINUE TO ATTRACT, INCENTIVIZE AND RETAIN
TALENTED TEACHERS AND SUPPORT THEIR
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT.

The quality of our education services largely depends on
our teachers. We intend to continue to attract, incentivize
and retain talented teachers and build a first-rate faculty
team. To this end, we plan to recruit well-recognized
technical experts, experienced business administrators
and other highly skilled persons to teach in the Schools on
either a full time or a part time basis. We will continue to
apply stringent standards in our recruitment of teachers.

FURTHER EXPAND OUR EDUCATIONAL
SERVICE OFFERINGS TO CAPTURE GROWTH
OPPORTUNITIES.

We plan to continue to expand and diversify our course
offerings in response to industry trends and market
demand, including establishing new major offerings based
on market developments.
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CONSTRUCT ADDITIONAL WORKPLACE
SIMULATION TRAINING STUDIOS AND FURTHER
IMPROVE THE SCHOOL FACILITIES.

We believe that we can distinguish ourselves from our
competitors by our ability to offer our students opportunities
to develop practical skills and knowledge, which we believe
help them to secure employment upon graduation and
succeed in their careers.

ENHANCE OUR PROFITABILITY BY OPTIMIZING
OUR SOURCES OF REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME.

The tuition fees and boarding fees we charge are a
significant factor affecting our profitability. We believe that
we are able to maintain the current tuition rates and raise
the tuition rates charged by the Schools where appropriate
as our brand awareness and market recognition have
grown. In addition, we retain discretion to adjust the tuition
rates charged by the Schools, and the Schools are only
required to make a filing with relevant authorities regarding
proposed tuition fee adjustments but are not subject to
approval requirements or any pre-set fee limits. Historically,
we have kept our tuition rates at levels we believe are
competitive in order to attract more students and thereby
increase our student enrollment and market share. As we
have established a strong reputation for providing quality
education to our students, we believe we are in a position
to optimize our pricing without compromising our reputation
and our ability to attract and retain students. In addition, we
plan to diversify our sources of revenue and other income.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties for the Company
include the followings:

(1)

Our business is heavily dependent on the market
recognition of the brand and reputation of each of the
Schools.

We were among the first movers in China to provide
private formal higher undergraduate education focused
on applied sciences according to Frost & Sullivan.
We believe that each of the Schools has gained wide
recognition in the region where it is located and
continues to attract students and qualified teaching
staff. We believe that our success is heavily dependent
on the market recognition of the brand and the
reputation of each of the Schools.

However, we cannot assure you that our marketing
efforts will be successful or sufficient in further
promoting the Schools’ brands or in helping us to
remain competitive. If any of the Schools is unable to
further enhance its reputation and increase market
awareness of its programs and services, or if it is
required to incur additional promotional expenses in
order to remain competitive, our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected. If the Schools are unable
to maintain or sustain their brand reputation and
recognition, they may also be unable to maintain
or increase student enrollment, which may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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(2)

Our business and results of operations depend on the
level of tuition fees and boarding fees we are able to
charge and our ability to maintain and raise tuition and
boarding fees.

One of the most significant factors affecting our
profitability is the tuition fees we charge at the
Schools. For the years ended 31 December 2015,
2016 and 2017, tuition fees constituted 90.6%,
91.1% and 91.9% of our total revenue from continuing
operations, respectively, while boarding fees accounted
for the remainder. However, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to maintain or raise the tuition
and/or boarding fee levels we charge at the Schools in
the future at the same levels as historically, or at all,
or even if we are able to maintain or raise tuition fees
or boarding fees, we cannot assure you that we will
be able to attract prospective students to apply for the
Schools at such increased fee rates at the same levels
as historically, or at all.
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Our business and results of operations depend on the
number of students we may admit, which in turn is
subject to the admission quotas approved by relevant
education authorities and limited by the capacity of
the School facilities.

Each year the education authorities specify a quota for
the number of new students each of the Schools may
admit, which is subject to adjustment by the education
authorities. The number of students we may admit at
each of the Schools is therefore subject to the quota
set by the local education authorities on a year by
year basis, as adjusted by the education authorities.
The maximum number of new students each of the
Schools may admit each year is therefore beyond
our control. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
to determine the admission quota to be granted to
each school, the local education authorities take into
account factors including the number of students
enrolled and number of applications received by the
school, quality of education, social recognition and
reputation of the school and the overall regional
economic and educational conditions and policies. In
addition, the number of students we are able to admit
at each of the Schools is also constrained by the
education facilities and number of beds for students of
the Schools, which are limited in space and size.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT %

71



72

EETEHRS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(4)

AR - BUA ~ (S AR ROE
FENBFBRN AR 2 E19 0
BEHEMAER  MBAARR &
EXBURRASEXNEKRT
M &

REEE BUR R EAMRRE
RBERXENZTEBIEHR
TE - BEEB - BF2HAR
E-#EKF - BRE - IHIEE
HEABRE BEREE-B
RERE S FEARR 1978
FERMAERBMBEK A
B ERBETEEE-

EER ABEBNFREREF
B fY 45 75 B8 ) F0 B AT 2R 48 o 45
m-ERE=TFR PEBF
CERLSERERERAEHE
RENBERPINATEHEN
B - ZERECRREEN
KREBRMHAERRE AWM &
BREERUTESERETREN
TERE ARG A E -
CHER: XK

BFEAFANMEEZEERM
BRHARRNER  BBEARR
FEEEBEEREREMTRF
TE - BEERZSEBRNE
kiR PERFEEEESR
BRR-BRERRHEMERD
BE-fE EERE¥EENE
T#EBEDEEZEAE MEM
BERFPRERTSEBET
RBRERER T AEREXR
ERBSEBHYTSEN-

(4)

Adverse changes in the PRC economic, political and
social conditions as well as laws and government
policies, may materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects.

The economic, political and social conditions in the
PRC differ from those in more developed countries
in many respects, including structure, government
involvement, level of development, growth rate, control
of foreign exchange, capital reinvestment, allocation of
resources, rate of inflation and trade balance position.
Before the adoption of its reform and opening up
policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a planned
economy.

In recent years, the PRC government has been
reforming the PRC economic system and government
structure. For example, the PRC government has
implemented economic reform and measures
emphasizing the utilization of market forces in the
development of the PRC economy in the past three
decades. These reforms have resulted in significant
economic growth and social prospects. Economic
reform measures, however, may be adjusted, modified
or applied inconsistently from industry to industry or
across different regions of the country.

We cannot predict whether the resulting changes
will have any adverse effect on our current or future
business, financial condition or results of operations.
Despite these economic reforms and measures,
the PRC government continues to play a significant
role in regulating industrial development, allocation
of natural and other resources, production, pricing
and management of currency, and there can be no
assurance that the PRC government will continue
to pursue a policy of economic reform or that the
direction of reform will continue to be market friendly.
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ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

The business of the Group is not in violation of the
applicable PRC Environmental laws and regulations in any
material aspects.

The Group is dedicated to protecting the health and safety
of the students. The Group has on-site medical staff or
health care personnel at each of the schools the Group
operates to handle routine medical situations involving
students. In certain serious and emergency medical
situations, the Group promptly sends the students to local
hospitals for treatment. With respect to school safety, the
Group engaged a qualified property management company
to provide property security services at the Group’s school
premises.

As far as the Board and management of the Company are
aware, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the Reporting Period, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for
the last five financial years are set out on pages 296 to 297
“Financial Highlights” of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

Net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting underwriting
fee and relevant expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$733.2 million. As at 31 December 2017, a total amount
of HK$600.1 million out of the net proceeds had been used
by the Group according to the allocation set out in the
Prospectus.

The following sets forth a summary of the utilization of the

net proceeds:

CEHREE KBALE
HEEN RERE (R2017E (R2017E
BAK HE 12A31R) 12A318)
Utilised Unutilised
amount amount
(at 31 (at 31
Percentage to December December
A& Purpose total amount Net proceeds 2017) 2017)
BT B BT
(BBx) (BBx) (BEET)
HKD (million) HKD (million) HKD (million)
R2017TE W R R L Acquiring or establishing schools
R in 2017 27.7% 203.1 70.0 133.1
BRALEBRNER Constructing school facilities at
B the Northwest School 15.9% 116.6 116.6 0
THREILERMIZE  Settling a portion of the outstanding
HEBHREERE consideration for the investment
in the Northeast School 19.4% 142.2 142.2 0
MEREEMRELRE  Improving the Group's financing
MEEBHBITER structure and repay a portion of
the bank loans 27.0% 198.0 198.0 0
BAEEESR K Financing working capital and
t¥RE general corporate use 10.0% 733 733 0
@t Total 100.0% 733.2 600.1 133.1
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
customers primarily consist of the Group’s students and
their parents. The Group did not have any single customer
who accounted for more than 5% of the Group’s revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 56% of the Group’s
total purchases and the Group’s single largest supplier
accounted for 28% of the Group’s total purchases.

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors
or any of their close associates or any Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining
a good relationship with its employees, suppliers and
customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
The Group maintains a good relationship with employees,
suppliers and customers. During the year ended 31
December 2017, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers
and/or customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 268 of this annual report and note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserve available
for distribution was RMB39,753,000 (as at 31 December
2016: Nil).
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan (Chairman of the Boara)
Mr. Zhao Shuai
Mr. Zhang Ke

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Chen Shuo

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis
Mr. Hu Jianbo

(Appointment on 22 December 2017)
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

In accordance with article 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Chen
Shuo, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson and Mr. Wong Man Chung
Francis shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election at the proposed annual
general meeting (“AGM”).

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until first general meeting
of Members after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Hu Jianbo will
hold office until the AGM, and being eligible, shall offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.
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Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM will be
set out in the circular to the Shareholders.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 49 to 63 of this
annual report.

Mr. Chung Yue Ping Stephen tendered his resignation as an
independent non-executive Director as well as the chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company with effect from 22 December
2017.

Mr. Hu Jianbo has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee with effect
from 22 December 2017.

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, who was a member of the
remuneration committee, has been appointed as the
chairman of the remuneration committee with effect from
22 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December
2017, there is no change in information of directors and
chief executives of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Lidong has resigned as an executive Director, the
chief financial officer, the joint company secretary and one
of the authorized representatives with effect on 23 March
2018.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
from each of the independent non-executive Directors and
the Company considers such Directors to be independent
since their appointment and remain so as of the date of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of Mr. Li Xiaoxuan, Mr. Zhao Shuai and Mr. Zhang Ke,
being the executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a specific term
of three years commencing form the Listing Date, and will
automatically continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other, which notice shall not expire until after
the fixed term.

Mr. Chen Shuo, being the non-executive Director of the
Company, has entered into a letter of appointment with us
for an initial fixed term of one year commencing from the
Listing Date and will continue thereafter until terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by the
non-executive Director to the Company or with immediate
effect following the notice in writing served by the Company
to the non-executive Director.
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Each of Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis, Mr. Hu Jianbo
and Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, being the independent
non-executive Director of the Company, has entered
into a letter of appointment with us for an initial fixed
term of one year commencing from 19 April 2017, 19
April 2017 and 22 December 2017, respectively and will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing by served by the independent
non-executive Director to the Company or with immediate
effect following the notice in writing served by the Company
to the independent non-executive Director,

The above service contracts are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with the Articles.

The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting,
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt
Continuing Connected Transaction” and otherwise disclosed
in this annual report, no Director or its connected entity
(within the meaning of section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance) had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this annual report.

Apart from the contract relating to the reorganization of
the Group in relation to the Listing and save as disclosed
in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transaction” and otherwise disclosed in this annual report,
none of the Controlling Shareholder or any of its connected
entity (within the meaning of section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance) had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this annual report.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
by the Controlling Shareholder of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of
this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior management and
comparable market practices.

The Directors and senior management may also receive
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme. For
further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
page V-33 of the Prospectus “Share Option Scheme”.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest
paid individuals during the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of
the Company are set out in note 3 and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFQ), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were
as follows:

() LONG POSITION IN THE COMPANY

[ = NN
iR 8 A8E &Y
" A BB fEntE il - §= B
Approximate
percentage of
Capacity/Nature of Number of  shareholding in
Name interest Shares the Company
Z S A R TEEHEEER
Mr. Lit@e) Interest in a
controlled corporation 792,000,000 55.34%
HH B EREAA
Zhao Shuai Beneficial owner 71,000 0.01%

2017 ANNUAL REPORT &3 83



84

EETEHRS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(1)

e

Z= 5 4 2 Aspire Education Managementfy
ME— B R A M R B % A Aspire
Education Managementffri3 % 19 RO RESS o

2 % 4 35 F Aspire Education Technology
M953.35% M ELBEWRABESR
Aspire Education Technologyff 13 I8 43 19
o

Z % 4 #%5 A5 Aspire Education Consulting
M79.20% 7 ELHBERBERES
Aspire Education Consultingf7 3% B% 13 19
o

Aspire Education International F (i) 15 1%
ERBERENMBEERA (X%
H AEBUEREE RILEEBRRE
ROBEMABIE=FAHNEAN) &
(i)— % #E B Aspire Education International
BEEREREAQATINHEMBEARSEK
B(ZEENPERE—BBIE=R)
5 ° Aspire Education Internationalfy %
URRHGECERZTEERBITER
% B Aspire Education International 49 3% =
B-MEAEREESRBERAE
18 7 ¥ A Aspire Education International it
EROKER-

Notes:

Mr. Li is the sole shareholder of Aspire Education Management
and he is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Aspire Education Management.

Mr. Li holds 53.35% shares in Aspire Education Technology and he
is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire
Education Technology.

Mr. Li holds 79.20% shares in Aspire Education Consulting and he
is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire
Education Consulting.

Aspire Education International is owned by (i) all partners of
Chengxin Investment and Huihuang Investment, being Mr. Li, 44
employees of the Group, the Principal of the Northeast School and
9 other individuals who are Independent Third Parties; and (i) one
other individual, Chan Tung Hoi (PR %38 ) , a friend of Mr. Li and
an Independent Third Party, who invested in the Company directly
through Aspire Education International. Each of the shareholders
of Aspire Education International has authorized Mr. Li to exercise
his or her voting rights in Aspire Education International. Mr. Li is
therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire
Education International under the SFO.

REBEIENT R () LONG POSITION IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION:
EEREEH Yun Ai Group
FrfEZ A 7]
= it AR 2 IR REBE A
A B ERnME W& Bat
Approximate
Amount of percentage of
Capacity/ registered  shareholding in
Name Nature of interest share capital the Company
FRE BERERA ARH 29.88%
Mr. Li Beneficial owner 10,428,6007T
RMB
10,428,600
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interest or short position in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the
equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate or had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the following persons (other than being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO:

() INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN OUR
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY:

RAERATNEE Long position in the Company
2 A 7]
i FE L 49
mE LB B EnME g2 §E| Ba
Approximate
percentage of
Capacity/Nature of Number of  shareholding in
Name interest Shares the Company
Aspire Education Management EZBEEA 502,160,000 35.09%
Aspire Education Management® Beneficial owner 502,160,000 35.09%
Aspire Education Technology EREBA 196,000,000 13.70%
Aspire Education Technology™ Beneficial owner 196,000,000 13.70%
THRAED TEHEE#ER 792,000,000 55.34%
Mr. Lit Interest in a controlled 792,000,000 55.34%

corporation

Advance Vision®@ EREBA 177,760,000 12.42%
Advance Vision® Beneficial owner 177,760,000 12.42%
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[ S YN
iR REAE 4
mE LB 5%, EEMtE gk - = Ao
Approximate
percentage of
Capacity/Nature of Number of  shareholding in
Name interest Shares the Company
EBAXE® STEEEEER 177,760,000 12.42%
Shanghai Taifu® Interest in a controlled 177,760,000 12.42%
corporation
YD FRERRE TEEEEER 177,760,000 12.42%
BRAE®
Shenzhen Pingan Decheng Interest in a controlled 177,760,000 12.42%
Investment Co., Ltd.*@ corporation
FYNFLZERBHEH STEEEEER 177,760,000 12.42%
BRAREE
Shenzhen Pingan Financial Interest in a controlled 177,760,000 12.42%
Technology Consulting Co., Ltd.*@  corporation
HEFZRE (KE) RO TEEEEER 177,760,000 12.42%
BRAR
Ping An Insurance (Group) Interest in a controlled 177,760,000 12.42%
Company of China, Ltd.® corporation
iR & E R0 2 E AR 88,230,811 6.17%
STEHLERER 157,000(S)® 0.01%
UBS Group Security interest in 88,230,811 6.17%
Shares/Interest in a 157,000(S)® 0.01%
controlled corporation
FEiREY TEEEEER 71,529,000 5.00%
Jiang Jinzhi® Interest in a controlled 71,529,000 5.00%

corporation

2017 ANNUAL REPORT %

87



88

EETEHRS

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
Ji S NN
IR RERE A
wE LR B RERtE R & A Bok
Approximate
percentage of
Capacity/Nature of Number of  shareholding in
Name interest Shares the Company
Unique Element Corp® SEHEEES 71,529,000 5.00%
Unique Element Corp® Interest in a controlled 71,529,000 5.00%
corporation
Greenwoods Asset Management TEFEEES 71,529,000 5.00%
Holdings Limited®
Greenwoods Asset Management Interest in a controlled 71,529,000 5.00%

Holdings Limited®

corporation
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Biat:

Z 54 2 Aspire Education Managementhy
ME— R R B L1 15 1R B % B Aspire
Education Managementff 13 iR 2 Y 4
o

Z % 4 $% B Aspire Education Technology
M53.35% K1 Rt BWRAER
Aspire Education TechnologyFf 33 B% 12 #Y
e

2 % 4 35 5 Aspire Education Consulting
M79.20% %40 A REBEAESR
Aspire Education ConsultingFff 33 I8 19 #Y
o

Aspire Education International F (i)3% {5 1%
ERBERENFMBEEEA (=%
£ AEBEMUZEEE RLEERRE
ROZEMABBUE=ZFTHNEA) &
(i)— % #E 1B Aspire Education International
BEERERALAMNEMBEARSE
B(ZEENPRE—BBIE=R)
8 © Aspire Education Internationalfy %
NRRYERESTEERRBITER
% PA Aspire Education International iy 38 =
E-MEREREEFSFRBE R
8 535 4 Aspire Education International B
BROWER-

L+ K =E B Advance Visionfy 2 B iR
2 8 £ & 1R A ¥ B Advance
Visionfi iR EZ - L BRKEMN
EERABAAFITERERRKRE
BERATB -ZEBEBABRFINER
SRRAEZAERLAAEZEREE ™
FIFZemBEFEAEBRA A A
HPEFYZREBE(EE)ROERA
A (—BERPBEEMA LR ER
AT WRABERZ T EMR (RO A
2318) R LB ER BT (RMDKSE -
601318) £ ) #H96.52% > L8 K
E RINTELERREBRAR
FINTFZemMBEZANEBRIATR
FEFZREBE(EE)BROERAR
) #I8 B R Advance VisioniF B 8 IR 5
hEEER

Notes:
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Mr. Li is the sole shareholder of Aspire Education Management
and he is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Aspire Education Management.

Mr. Li holds 53.35% shares in Aspire Education Technology and he
is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire
Education Technology.

Mr. Li holds 79.20% shares in Aspire Education Consulting and he
is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire
Education Consulting.

Aspire Education International is owned by (i) all partners of
Chengxin Investment and Huihuang Investment, being Mr. Li, 44
employees of the Group, the Principal of the Northeast School and
9 other individuals who are Independent Third Parties; and (ii) one
other individual, Chan Tung Hoi (BR &) , a friend of Mr. Li and
an Independent Third Party, who invested in the Company directly
through Aspire Education International. Each of the shareholders
of Aspire Education International has authorized Mr. Li to exercise
his or her voting rights in Aspire Education International. Mr. Li is
therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire
Education International under the SFO.

Shanghai Taifu holds 100% shares in Advance Vision and it is
therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Advance
Vision upon the Listing. The general partner of Shanghai Taifu is
Shenzhen Pingan Decheng Investment Co., Ltd. GRIITH P & &
MIREABRAT) . Such general partner is wholly owned by
Shenzhen Pingan Financial Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. (;&3Il
FLemRBEEHAER2QT), which is in turn owned as to
96.52% by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. ( F
B Z R (£E)RMERLDE), a joint-stock company
incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2318) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601318). Each of the Shanghai Taifu, Shenzhen Pingan
Decheng Investment Co., Ltd. GRYI T FZERREGR D
7]) , Shenzhen Pingan Financial Technology Consulting Co., Ltd.
(CFRYIFLZemB AR AEMR 2 E) and Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. (B F 2R (£E) R E
PR A 7)) is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Advance
Vision.
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B FHISIEZEBEREERANX (3)  The letter “s” donates the entity’s short position in such shares.
o
(4) Greenwoods Asset Management Holding (4) Each of Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited, Unique

Limited ~ Unique Element Corp% i# $8
B & B WK A MNGreenwoods Asset
Management Limitedfff 3% 78 #Y IR 10 b 4§

Element Corp and Jiang Jinzhi is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Greenwoods Asset Management Limited.

90

B
(I AMEBLIENEE (1) LONG POSITION IN ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS
REBEENHFRE Long position in Yun Ai Group
FsER
&t i BR A< SERE
mE S EB BH RERMtE W& BMAOBD
Approximate
Amount of percentage of
Capacity/Nature of registered  shareholding in
Name interest capital Yun Ai Group
REEH ESEERA AR 22.8102%
7,960,964 7T
Daai Partnership Beneficial owner RMB 22.8102%
7.960964 million
PR HE BERBEBA ARH 20.0568%
7,000,000t
Pai Dui Pai Beneficial owner RMB7 million 20.0568%
EEXE BERBEBA ARH 15.5265%
5,418,904 7T
Shanghai Taifu Beneficial owner RMB 15.5265%

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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RBREIATANEFR Long position in Haxuan Company
Fir FE s
EER Y N ERE
wE S EB B EEtE W& E BMAB DL
Approximate
percentage of
Amount of shareholding
Capacity/Nature of registered in Haxuan
Name interest capital Company
BENT BEmfERA AR 26.09%
31,308,0007T
Ningde Company Beneficial owner RMB 26.09%
31.308 million

Br £ SCPTIR & E SN R20175F12A
1 EBYAMBEEMAL (I
FEERIARARABRSITHRAE)R
BROSIARBEERD P HEERE
HHENBE R EXVEE2R E3D
HEAFHRENEZRIAR RRE
HERHBE KA EI6MAERLR
ZIRFTEEN S EMANERIXRE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (who were not
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20
March 2017 (“Adoption Date”) for the purpose of giving the
eligible persons an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company and help motivate them to optimize their
future contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for
their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with such eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the
Group, and additionally in the case of executives (as defined
below), to enable the Group to attract and retain individuals
with experience and ability and/or to reward them for their
past contributions.

Eligible persons include (a) any executive director of,
manager of, or other employee holding an executive,
managerial, supervisory or similar position in any member
of the Group (“Executive”), any proposed employee, any
full-time or part-time employee, or a person for the time
being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any
member of the Group (“Employee”); (b) a director or
proposed director (including an independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group; (c) a direct or
indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (d) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group;
(e) a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any
member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to
any member of the Group; (g) an associate of any of the
persons referred to in paragraphs (a) to (f) above; and (h)
any person involved in the business affairs of the Company
whom our Board determines to be appropriate to participate
in the Share Option Scheme (the person referred above are
the “Eligible Persons”).
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the Listing Date, which is 143,110,000 Shares excluding
Shares which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of the
over-allotment option granted by the Company, representing
approximately 10% of the issued shares as at the date of
this annual report.

No option may be granted to any one person such that
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted to that person
in any 12-month period exceeds 1% of the Company’s
issued share capital from time to time. Where any further
grant of options to such an Eligible Person would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted to such eligible person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the Shares in issue, such further grant shall be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with such
eligible person and his close associates (or his associates if
such eligible person is a connected person) abstaining from
voting.

The Board shall be entitled at any time within 10 years from
the Adoption Date to offer the grant of an option to any
eligible person as the Board may in its absolute discretion
select to subscribe at the subscription price for such
number of Shares as the Board may (subject to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme) determine (provided the same
shall be a board lot for dealing in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof).
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Subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may
determine (including such terms and conditions in relation
to their vesting, exercise or otherwise), there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised and no performance target which need to be
achieved by the grantee before the Option can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance by the eligible person concerned for a period of
28 days from the offer date provided that no such grant of
an option may be accepted after the expiry of the effective
period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall be
deemed to have been granted and accepted by the eligible
person and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance in favor
of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company on or before the
date upon which an offer of an option must be accepted by
the relevant eligible person, being a date no later than 28
days after the offer date.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the subscription price shall
not be less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the nominal
value of a Share; (b) the closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date; and (c) the average closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately
preceding the offer date.
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The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years from the date on which it becomes
unconditional, after which no further options will be granted
or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in force and effect in all other respects. All
options granted prior to such expiry and not then exercised
shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme. The remaining
life of the Share Option Scheme is around 9 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no options
under the Share Option Scheme have been granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled. On 1 March 2018, the
Group granted 7,112,000 share options, among which,
1,144,000 share options were granted to the Directors, at
the exercise price of HK$5.55 per Share.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this annual report and in the Prospectus,
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this annual report, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had entered into (i) any agreement that
will or may result in the Company issuing Shares; or (ii)
any agreement requiring the Company to enter into any
agreement specified in (i).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of
this annual report, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
that would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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NON-COMPETITION
BEIJING LIANHE

Please refer to the section headed “Relationship with
our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus for the
business scope of Beijing Lianhe and the reason to exclude
Beijing Lianhe out of the Group. In order to safeguard the
interests of our Company in respect of the future business
opportunities in Beijing Lianhe and against potential
competition, we have adopted measures including options
to acquire Beijing Lianhe, right of first refusal and right of
selling request.

As at the date of this annual report, Beijing Lianhe
has obtained the business license for the expanded
business scope the internet culture operation license,
the value-added telecommunications business operating
license and radio and TV program production and business
operating license. Considering that Beijing Lianhe is
still at preliminary stage of its business as at the date
of this report, the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) consider it not appropriate to
acquire Beijing Lianhe at the current stage.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In addition, the Controlling Shareholders have entered
into the Deed of Non-competition on 20 March 2017 in
favour of the Company, pursuant to which our Controlling
Shareholders have jointly and severally and irrevocably
undertaken with the Company (for itself and for the benefit
of its subsidiaries) that it or he would not, and would
procure that its or his associates (except any members of
the Group) would not, during the restricted period set out
below, directly or indirectly, either on its or his own account
or in conjunction ith or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be
interested or engaged in or hold (in each case whether
as a shareholder, partner, agent, employee or otherwise)
any business which is or may be in competition with the
business of any member of the Group from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the
date of this annual report, none of the Directors or their
respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has entered
into the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule:

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS
A. Background and overview

We currently conduct our private higher education
business through the PRC Operating Schools in the
PRC as PRC laws and regulations generally restrict
foreign ownership in the private education industry in
the PRC. PRC laws and regulations currently restrict
the operation of higher education institutions to
Sino-foreign cooperation ownership, in addition to
imposing qualification requirements on the foreign
owners. We do not hold any equity interest in the PRC
Operating Schools. The Structured Contracts, through
which we obtain control over and derive the economic
benefits from the PRC Operating Schools, have been
narrowly tailored to achieve our business purpose
and minimize the potential conflict with relevant
PRC laws and regulations. We had entered into the
Structured Contracts for the existing PRC Operating
Schools and expect to enter into structured contracts
for the schools to be newly established or invested in,
the terms and conditions of which shall be the same
as the existing Structured Contracts in all materia
aspects.
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In order to comply with the PRC laws and regulations
as set out above while availing ourselves of
international capital markets and maintaining effective
control over all of our operations, on 8 September
2016, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
Huihuang Company, entered into various agreements
that constitute the Structured Contracts with, among
others, the PRC Operating Schools and the School
Sponsors, under which all economic benefits arising
from the business of the PRC Operating Schools and
the School Sponsors are transferred to Huihuang
Company to the extent permitted under the PRC laws
and regulations by means of service fees payable by
the PRC Operating Schools and the School Sponsors
to Huihuang Company. Although the Registered
Shareholders are not consolidated as part of the
Group, they are parties to certain agreements which
constitute the Structured Contracts to ensure that
the Shareholders’ rights of Yun Ai Group are actually
controlled by Huihuang Company.
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UTEEHRBREBEESNR The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow
ERPEHEEEERR HER of economic benefits from the PRC Operating Schools
BEREZARAEENKSBEFNZR and/or the School Sponsors to the Group stipulated
g under the Structured Contracts:
¥ N/NE|
The Company
100% N
v v |
Y SN €-300)_] RARBRR :
Huihuang Company Registered shareholders ' (4)65)
A | E |
1) 1 (2)(8 100% I
(1) | 6( )@) / 1 prC :
HEIGEHEER
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities

EYHRENEESERESERE

denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the equity interest
————— EBHEBMEYN

denotes Structured Contracts

KBrat - Notes:
1. TAREE- 1. Payment of service fees.
2. RHUBREMEREHEREEBEBRE- 2. Provision of exclusive technical and management consultancy
services.
3. WERTEEEERNE BRI H 3. Exclusive call option to acquire all or part of the School sponsors’
BREREEZRERERANS interest in the PRC Operating Schools and all or part equity interest
MREBOREZBRRERE- in the School Sponsors.
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4, Entrustment of school sponsors’ rights in the PRC Operating
Schools and the Northwest School by Yun Ai Group and Bei Ai
Company.

5. Entrustment of directors’ rights in the PRC Operating Schools by
directors of the PRC Operating Schools including directors’ powers
of attorney.

6. Entrust of Shareholders’ right including Shareholders’ power of
attorney.

7. Pledge of equity interest by the Registered Shareholders of their
equity interest in Yun Ai Group.

8. Provision of loans by Huihuang Company to Yun Ai Group.

9. According to PRC laws and regulations, entities and individuals
who establish private schools are commonly referred to as “school
sponsors” instead of “owners” or “shareholders.”

As of the date of this annual report, we have not
encountered any interference or encumbrance
from any governing bodies in our plan to adopt the
Structured Contracts and the consolidated financial
results of the PRC Operating Schools, which engage in
higher education service, are consolidated to those of
the Group.

Summary of the Material Terms of the Structured
Contracts

A description of each of the specific agreements that
comprise the Structured Contracts is set out below.

(1) Business Cooperation Agreement

Pursuant to the Business Cooperation Agreement,
Huihuang Company shall provide technical
services, management support and consulting
services necessary for the private education
business, and in return, the PRC Operating
Schools and the School Sponsors shall make
payments accordingly.
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To ensure the due performance of the Structured
Contracts, each of the PRC Operating Schools
and the School Sponsors agreed to comply,
and procure any of its subsidiaries to comply
with, and the Registered Shareholders agreed
to procure the PRC Operating Schools and the
School Sponsors to comply with the obligations
as prescribed under the Business Cooperation
Agreement set forth as follows:

(a)

to carry out its private education operations
in a prudent and efficient manner in
accordance with good financial and
business standards while maintaining the
asset value of the PRC Operating Schools
and the School Sponsors and the quality
and standard of private education;

to prepare school development plans and
annual working plans in accordance with
the instructions of Huihuang Company;

to carry out its private education activities
and other relevant business under the
assistance of Huihuang Company;

to carry out and manage its daily
operations and financial management in
accordance with the recommendations,
advice, principles and other instructions of
Huihuang Company;

to execute and act upon the
recommendations of Huihuang Company in
terms of employment and removal of senior
management and staff;

to adopt the advice, guidance and plans
given by Huihuang Company in relation to
their respective strategic development; and
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@)

to carry out its business operations and
renew and maintain its respective necessary
licenses.

In addition, pursuant to the Business Cooperation
Agreement,

(@)

Mr. Li undertakes to Huihuang Company
that, in the event of death, loss of or
restriction on capacity, divorce or other
circumstances which may affect the
exercise of his direct or indirect equity
interest in the Registered Shareholders, he
shall have made all necessary arrangement
and sign all necessary documents such that
his/their respective successor, guardian,
spouse, and any other person which may
as a result of the above events obtain the
equity interest or relevant rights shall not
prejudice or hinder the enforcement of the
Structured Contracts;
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(b)
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the Registered Shareholders undertake
to Huihuang Company that, in the event
of a merger and subdivision of the
Registered Shareholders (except for
Mr. Li), presentation by the Registered
Shareholders (except for Mr. Li) or the
Registered Shareholders (except for Mr. Li)
being presented any application for winding
up, liquidation, winding up restructuring or
reconciliation, dissolution and liquidation
of the Registered Shareholders (except for
Mr. Li) pursuant to an order, application for
involuntary dissolution of the Registered
Shareholders (except for Mr. Li) or other
reasons, or other circumstances which
may affect the Registered Shareholders
in exercising its direct or indirect interest
in Yun Ai Group, they shall have made
all necessary arrangement and sign
all necessary documents such that the
successor, administrator, liquidation
committee and any other person which
may as a result of the above events obtain
the direct or indirect interest or relevant
rights in Yun Ai Group shall not prejudice or
hinder the enforcement of the Structured
Contracts;
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(c)

the Registered Shareholders undertake
that, in the event of the dissolution or
liquidation of the PRC Operating Schools
and/or the School Sponsors, (i) Huihuang
Company shall have the right to exercise
all school sponsor’s right on behalf of
the School Sponsors/shareholders’ rights
on the PRC Operating Schools and/
or School Sponsors; (i) PRC Operating
Schools and/or School Sponsors and/
or the shareholders of the PRC Operating
Schools and/or School Sponsors shall
transfer all assets received or receivable in
its capacity as school sponsor of each of
the PRC Operating Schools/as shareholders
of each of the School Sponsors as a
result of the dissolution or liquidation of
the PRC Operating Schools and/or the
School Sponsors to Huihuang Company
or other persons designated by us at nil
consideration, and instruct all of the PRC
Operating Schools and/or the School
Sponsors to transfer such assets directly to
Huihuang Company before such dissolution
or liquidation; (iii) if consideration is
required for such transfer under the then
applicable PRC laws, PRC Operating
Schools and/or School Sponsors and/or
the shareholders of PRC Operating Schools
and/or School Sponsors shall compensate
Huihuang Company or the person as
designated by us the amount and guarantee
that Huihuang Company or other persons as
designated by us does not suffer any loss;
and
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(d) School Sponsors and the PRC Operating
Schools agreed that, without the prior
written consent of Huihuang Company,
the PRC Operating Schools and/or School
Sponsors shall not declare or pay to its
shareholders any reasonable return or other
interest or benefit. In the event that the
School Sponsors/the shareholders of the
School Sponsors receive any reasonable
return or other interest or benefit, the
School Sponsors/the shareholders of the
School Sponsors shall unconditionally and
without compensation transfer such amount
to Huihuang Company.

(2)  Exclusive Technical Service and Management

Consultancy Agreement

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Service
and Management Consultancy Agreement,
Huihuang Company agreed to provide exclusive
technical services to the PRC Operating Schools
and the School Sponsors, including but not
limited to, (a) design, development, update
and maintenance of software for computer and
mobile devices; (b) design, development, update
and maintenance of webpages and websites
necessary for the education activities of the PRC
Operating Schools and the School Sponsors; (c)
design, development, update and maintenance
of management information systems necessary
for the education activities of the PRC Operating
Schools and the School Sponsors; (d) provision
of other technical support necessary for the
education activities of the PRC Operating
Schools and the School Sponsors; (e) provision
of technical consulting services; (f) provision of
technical training; (g) engaging technical staff
to provide on-site technical support; and (h)
providing other technical services reasonably
requested by the PRC Operating Schools and the
School Sponsors.
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Furthermore, Huihuang Company agreed to
provide exclusive management consultancy
services to the PRC Operating Schools and
the School Sponsors, including but not limited
to, (a) design of curriculum; (b) preparation,
selection and/or recommendation of course
materials; (c) provision of teacher and staff
recruitment and training support and services;
(d) provision of student recruitment support
and services; (e) provision of public relation
services; (f) preparation of long term strategic
development plans and annual working plans;
(g) development of financial management
systems and recommendation and optimization
on annual budget; (h) advising on design of
internal structures and internal management;
(i) provision of management and consultancy
training; (j) conduct of market research; (k)
preparation of market development plan; (I)
building of marketing network; and (m) providing
other management technical services reasonably
requested by the PRC Operating Schools and the
School Sponsors.
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In consideration of the technical and
management consultancy services provided by
Huihuang Company, each of the PRC Operating
Schools and the School Sponsors agreed to
pay Huihuang Company a service fee equa
to all of their respective amount of surplus
from operations (after deducting all costs,
expenses, taxes, losses from the previous
year (if required by the law) and the legally
compulsory development fund of the respective
school (if required by the law)). The compulsory
development fund is included as statutory
surplus reserve at the Group’s level and retained
at schools’ level. Huihuang Company has the
right (but not the obligation) to adjust the amount
of such service fee by reference to the actual
services provided and the actual business
operations and needs of the PRC Operating
Schools and the School Sponsors, provided that
any adjusted amount shall not exceed the amount
mentioned above. The PRC Operating Schools
and/or the School Sponsors do not have any right
to make any such adjustment.
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Under the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, the
Registered Shareholders have irrevocably granted
Huihuang Company or its designated purchaser
the right to purchase all or part of the school
sponsor’s interest of the School Sponsors in the
PRC Operating Schools and equity interest in
the School Sponsors (“Equity Call Option”). The
purchase price payable by Huihuang Company in
respect of the transfer of such school sponsor’s
interest or equity interest upon exercise of the
Equity Call Option shall be the lowest price
permitted under the PRC laws and regulations
Huihuang Company or its designated purchaser
shall have the right to purchase such proportion
of the school sponsor’s interest of the PRC
Operating Schools and/or equity interest in the
School Sponsors as it decides at any time.
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(4)  School Sponsors’ and Directors’ Rights

Entrustment Agreement

Pursuant to the School Sponsors’ and Directors’
Rights Entrustment Agreement, Yun Ai Group
and Bei Ai Company have irrevocably authorized
and entrusted Huihuang Company to exercise
all its rights as school sponsor of each of the
PRC Operating Schools and the Northwest
School to the extent permitted by PRC laws.
These rights include, but are not limited to: (a)
the right to appoint and/or elect directors or
council members of the schools; (b) the right to
appoint and/or elect supervisors of the schools;
(c) the right to understand the operation and
financial situation of the schools; (d) the right
to review the resolutions and records of the
board of directors and financial statements and
reports of the schools; (e) the right to obtain
reasonable returns as school sponsor of the
schools in accordance with the laws and the
articles of association of each school; (f) the
right to acquire residue assets upon liquidation
of the schools in accordance with the laws and
the articles of association of each school; (g)
the right to transfer school sponsors’ interest in
accordance with the laws; and (h) other school
sponsor’s rights pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations and the articles of association of
each school as amended from time to time.
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Pursuant to the School Sponsors’ and Directors’
Rights Entrustment Agreement, each of the
directors of each school (the “Appointees”) has
irrevocably authorized and entrusted Huihuang
Company to exercise all his/her rights as
directors of the PRC Operating Schools as
appointed by the School Sponsors and to the
extent permitted by PRC laws. These rights
include, but are not limited to: (a) the right to
attend meetings of the board of directors as
representative of the directors appointed by the
School Sponsors; (b) the right to exercise voting
rights in respect of all matters discussed and
resolved at the board meeting of each of the
PRC Operating Schools; (c) the right to propose
to convene interim board meetings of each of
the PRC Operating Schools and the Northwest
School; (d) the right to sign all board minutes
board resolutions and other legal documents
which the directors appointed by Yun Ai Group
and Bei Ai Company have authority to sign in his/
her capacity as directors of the PRC Operating
Schools and the Northwest School; (e) the right
to instruct the legal representative and financial
and business responsible persons of the PRC
Operating Schools and the Northwest School
to act in accordance with the instruction of
Huihuang Company; (f) the right to exercise all
other rights and voting rights of directors as
prescribed under the articles of association of
the PRC Operating Schools and the Northwest
School; (g) the right to handle the legal
procedures of registration, approval and licensing
of the PRC Operating Schools and the Northwest
School at the education department, the
department of civil affairs or other government
regulatory departments; and (h) other directors’
rights pursuant to applicable PRC laws and
regulations and the articles of association of the
PRC Operating Schools and the Northwest Schoo
as amended from time to time.
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School Sponsors’ Powers of Attorney

Pursuant to the School Sponsors’ Powers of
Attorney executed by School Sponsors in favor
of Huihuang Company, the School Sponsors
authorized and appointed Huihuang Company,
the directors of which are Li Ming (Z88) ,
Jiang Hong (Z4I) and Fang Jinsheng (5 &
%5 ) (none of whom is a director of any of the
School Sponsors and/or PRC Operating Schools
and therefore does not give rise to any conflicts
of interest), as its agent to act on its behalf to
exercise or delegate the exercise of all its rights
as school sponsor of each of the PRC Operating
Schools and the Northwest School.

Directors’ Powers of Attorney

Pursuant to the Directors’ Powers of Attorney
executed by each of the Appointees in favor
of Huihuang Company, each of the Appointees
authorized and appointed Huihuang Company,
the directors of which are Li Ming (Z88)
Jiang Hong (34T ) and Fang Jinsheng (5 &
%5 ) (none of whom is a director of any of the
School Sponsors and/or PRC Operating Schools
and therefore does not give rise to any conflicts
of interest), as his/her agent to act on his/
her behalf to exercise or delegate the exercise
of all of his/her rights as directors of the PRC
Operating Schools.
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Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment
Agreement, each of the Registered Shareholders
and Yun Ai Group has irrevocably authorized
and entrusted Huihuang Company to exercise
all of his/their respective rights as shareholders
of Yun Ai Group, Enchang Company, Haxuan
Company and Bei Ai Company (together, “the
Relevant Subsidiaries”) to the extent permitted by
the PRC laws. These rights include, but are not
limited to: (a) the right to attend shareholders’
meetings of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as the
case may be; (b) the right to exercise voting
rights in respect of all matters discussed
and resolved at the shareholders’ meeting of
the Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case may
be; (c) the right to appoint directors or legal
representative of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as
the case may be; (d) the right to propose to
convene interim shareholders’ meetings of the
Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case may be; (e)
the right to sign all shareholders’ resolutions
and other legal documents which the Registered

ERTE)RENSHE Shareholders and Yun Ai Group have authority to
2, HEEEBHE QT sign in his or their capacity as shareholders of
(RBRME)EEZREA the Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case may be;
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(f) the right to instruct the directors and legal
representative of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as
the case may be to act in accordance with the
instruction of Huihuang Company; (g) the right
to exercise all other rights and voting rights of
shareholders as prescribed under the articles of
association of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as the
case may be; (h) the right to handle the legal
procedures of registration, approval and licensing
of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case may
be at the education department, the department
of civil affairs or other government regulatory
departments; and (i) other shareholders’ rights
pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations
and the articles of association of the PRC
Operating Schools as amended from time to time.
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Shareholders’ Powers of Attorney

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Powers of Attorney
executed by each of the Registered Shareholder
and Yun Ai Group in favor of Huihuang Company,
each of the Registered Shareholder and Yun
Ai Group authorized and appointed Huihuang
Company, as his or their agent to act on his or
their behalf to exercise or delegate the exercise
of all his or their rights as shareholders of the
Relevant Subsidiaries.

Spouse Undertakings

Pursuant to the Spouse Undertakings, the spouse
of Mr. Li has irrevocably undertaken that:

(@) the spouse has full knowledge of and
has consented to the entering into of the
Structured Contracts by Mr. Li, and in
particular, the arrangement as set out in
the Structured Contracts in relation to the
restrictions imposed on the direct or indirect
equity interest in Yun Ai Group, pledge or
transfer the direct or indirect equity interest
in Yun Ai Group, or the disposal of the direct
or indirect equity interest in Yun Ai Group in
any other forms;

(b) the spouse has not participated, is not
participating and shall not in the future
participate in the operation, management,
liquidation, dissolution and other matters
in relation to the School Sponsors and the
PRC Operating Schools;

2017 ANNUAL REPORT %

113



114

EETEHRS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

c EEEEFLLEDH
BREALIAERER
R A% 3% B 3 #h B 1B R
EZXEENRE (B
BERER) BT MBEL
EXHRBTHRAEL
ERF URELSR
MENETERELQT
MR IZEM T R
E-BHEEIAREE
— B RER

(d) P18 & 58 BT S 1E AT &
HBR BAERRE
TEEREEEEN
Hiz EEREEM -
W Ot H M E A
EMmERE BE-
ARHAZTEHMER
WAREE;

(6) e 18 =& 35 P 1 ) &
FOER RERKRE
FTEERT BEE
BEXRZR BB
R EMBLEGmE
B - BE ANIHZ
BAHEMAESXHTFE
2.8

(c)

the spouse authorizes Mr. Li or his
authorized person to execute all necessary
documents and perform all necessary
procedures from time to time for and on
behalf of the spouse in relation to the
spouse’s equity interest in Yun Ai Group
(direct or indirect) in order to safeguard
the interest of Huihuang Company under
the Structured Contracts and give effect to
the fundamental purposes thereunder, and
confirms and agrees to all such documents
and procedures;

any undertaking, confirmation, consent
and authorization under the Spouse
Undertakings shall not be revoked,
prejudiced, invalidated or otherwise
adversely affected by any increase,
decrease, consolidation or other similar
events relating to the direct or indirect
equity interest in Yun Ai Group;

any undertaking, confirmation, consent
and authorization under the Spouse
Undertakings shall not be revoked,
prejudiced, invalidated or otherwise
adversely affected by death, loss of or
restriction on capacity of the spouse,
divorce or other similar events; and
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() all undertakings, confirmations, consents
and authorizations under the Spouse
Undertakings shall continue to be valid and
binding until otherwise terminated by both
Huihuang Company and the spouse of Mr.
Li in writing. The Spouse Undertakings shall
have the same term as and incorporate
the terms of the Business Cooperation
Agreement.

(10) Equity Pledge Agreement

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, each
of the Registered Shareholders unconditionally
and irrevocably pledged and granted first priority
security interests over all of his/her/its equity
interest in Yun Ai Group together with all related
rights thereto to Huihuang Company as security
for performance of the Structured Contracts and
all direct, indirect or consequential damages and
foreseeable loss of interest incurred by Huihuang
Company as a result of any event of default on
the part of the Registered Shareholders, the
School Sponsors or each of the PRC Operating
Schools and all expenses incurred by Huihuang
Company as a result of enforcement of the
obligations of the Registered Shareholders,
the School Sponsors and/or each of the PRC
Operating Schools under the Structured Contracts
(the “Secured Indebtedness”).

The pledges under the Equity Pledge Agreement
were registered with the relevant Administration
of Industry and Commerce of the PRC on 20
September 2016 and became effective on the
same date of the registration of the pledge.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT %

115



116

EETEHRS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(11) B %%

REERBZ BELQF
RISRBABEEERER
AEERERHESER -
EXEEREREMBNE
TRASERARNEAE
REREINERERER
REIETHEEERKLA
tER-BHFREFBH
E2MHBEEARARRE
FEEEEXT-

C. HEEEERKEREREMN
EBED
rEENGREHBEEREEESD
BHEZE2RRERERE - F
HEE2R(HIEMERRE
MER)RESEHERS
BEREREDHAREERD
3o

(11) Loan Agreement

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Huihuang
Company agreed to provide interest-free loans
to Yun Ai Group in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations and Yun Ai Group agreed to
utilize the proceeds of such loans to contribute
as capital of the PRC Operating Schools and
the Northwest School in its capacity as school
sponsor or the shareholder of the school
sponsors of the Schools in accordance with our
instructions. Both parties agree that all such
capital contribution will be directly settled by
Huihuang Company on behalf of Yun Ai Group.

Business Activities of the PRC Operating Schools
and the School Sponsors

The consolidated affiliated entities of the Group
include the PRC Operating Schools and the School
Sponsors. The PRC Operating Schools, being Yunnan
School and Guizhou School are engaged in higher
education services. All of the School Sponsors are
investment holding companies.
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FEHSERHAEENEE D. Significance and financial contributions of PRC

% & Bt 7% & Rk Operating Entities to the Group

REBEBEESYN AEEESE Pursuant to the Structured Contracts, the Group
TEREEERREREBREN obtains control over and derives the economic benefits
ZHIE WP ESKERNG - from the PRC Operating Schools and School Sponsors.
THREINFPEEZEERRER The table below sets out the financial contribution of
ERMEHAKRENMEER the PRC Operating Schools and the School Sponsors

to the Group:

HASENEEHRHBEM
Significances and financial contribution to the Group
'ON A BEME
Revenue Net profit Total Assets
BZ017F BZE2017F
12A318 12A318 R2017%F
ILEE ILEE 128318
For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31 As of 31
December December December
2017 2017 2017
HAEEMEEMRFHBER Significances and financial contribution to
the Group 100% 126% 63%
HBMESHOMPBRAREE E. Revenue and assets involved in Structured Contracts
TREIREZE2017F12831 The table below sets out (i) revenue; and (i) total
HIEFEFRHZEEEREER assets involved in the PRC Operating Schools and the
SEWMEMRATSRBOBA R(E School Sponsors for the year ended 31 December
ERE FHEUAREERR 2017, they would be consolidated into the Group’s
BEBESHNHAREENE financial statements pursuant to the Structural
Bk Contracts:
A BE
Revenue Assets
AR¥ T AR T
RMB RMB
FEHEEERK PRC Operating Schools and
BREWRE School Sponsors 414,405,000 1,621,639,000
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F.

Regulatory Framework

1.

Higher Education

Pursuant to the Foreign Investment Catalog, the
provision of higher education in the PRC falls
within the “restricted” category. In particular, the
Foreign Investment Catalog explicitly restricts
higher education to Sino-foreign cooperation,
which means the foreign investor shall be an
educational institution and shall operate higher
education in the PRC through cooperation with
a PRC educational institution in compliance
with the Sino-Foreign Regulation. In addition,
the Foreign Investment Catalog also provides
that the domestic party shall play a dominant
role in the Sino-foreign cooperation, meaning
that (a) the principal or other chief executive
officer of the schools shall be a PRC national:
and (b) the representatives of the domestic party
shall account for no less than half of the total
members of the board of directors, the executive
council or the joint administration committee
of the Sino-foreign cooperative educational
institution (the “Foreign Control Restriction”).
We had fully complied with the Foreign Control
Restriction in respect of the Yunnan School,
the Guizhou School, the Northeast School and
the Central China School on the basis that (a)
the principals and the chief executive officers
of the aforementioned schools are all PRC
nationals; and (b) all the members of the board
of directors are PRC nationals. We will only
engage PRC nationals as the principals, the chief
executive officers and the members of the board
of directors of the Northwest School after its
establishment.
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In relation to the interpretation of Sino-foreign
cooperation, pursuant to the Sino-Foreign
Regulation, if we were to apply for any of the
Schools to be reorganized as a Sino-foreign
joint venture private school for PRC students at
higher education institutions (a “Sino-Foreign
Joint Venture Private School”), the foreign
investor in the Sino-Foreign Joint Venture
Private School must be a foreign educational
institution with relevant qualification and that
provides high quality education (the “Qualification
Requirement”). Furthermore, pursuant to the
Implementation Opinions, the foreign portion
of the total investment in a Sino-Foreign Joint
Venture Private School should be below 50%
(the “Foreign Ownership Restriction”) and the
establishment of these schools is subject to
approval of education authorities at the provincial
or national level.

Our PRC legal advisors have advised that as
of the date of this annual report, there are no
implementing measures or specific guidance
on the Qualification Requirement in accordance
with the existing PRC laws and regulations and
therefore it is currently uncertain as to what
specific criteria must be met by a foreign investor
(such as length of experience and form and
extent of ownership in the foreign jurisdiction) in
order to demonstrate to the relevant educational
authority that it meets the Qualification
Requirement. Accordingly, as a matter of policy,
due to the lack of implementing measures or
specific guidance on the Sino-Foreign Regulation,
including the Qualification Requirement, the
relevant education authorities will not accept
an application to convert the PRC Operating
Schools or the schools to be newly established
or invested by us into Sino-Foreign Joint Venture
Private Schools.
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Plan to Comply with the Qualification
Requirement

We have adopted a specific plan and begun
to take the following concrete steps which we
reasonably believe are meaningful endeavors to
demonstrate compliance with the Qualification
Requirement. According to the consultation with
the Relevant Education Authorities, there are no
implementing measures or specific guidance on
the Qualification Requirement and therefore they
will not accept an application to convert the PRC
Operating Schools or the schools to be newly
established or invested by us into Sino-Foreign
Joint Venture Private Schools at this stage.
However, the Relevant Education Authorities
confirmed that it is possible that approval may
be granted to an investor that is an education
institution that legally awards diploma certificates
in a foreign country, which gradually accumulates
education experience and reputation overseas
to be stipulated in the implementing measures
or guidance, to qualify for approval as a foreign
investor of a Sino-Foreign Joint Venture Private
School. Our PRC legal advisors are of the view
that based on the above, although it is not
possible for the Relevant Education Authorities
to accept our application to convert any of the
PRC Operating Schools or schools to be newly
established or invested by us into Sino-Foreign
Joint Venture Private Schools due to the lack
of implementation measures or guidance at the
current stage, the following steps taken by us to
demonstrate compliance with the Qualification
Requirements are reasonable and appropriate.
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Please also refer to the section headed
“Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus for the
Group’s efforts and actions undertaken to comply
with the Qualification Requirement. As of the
date of this annual report, we are still waiting
for approval from the BPPE to establish the new
school in the State of California.

In the opinion of our PRC legal advisors, if both
of the Foreign Ownership Restriction and the
Foreign Control Restriction are removed but the
Qualification Requirement remains and assuming
the new school to be operated by California
Academy, i.e. the California School or another
foreign educational institution established by us
gains a level of foreign experience sufficient to
demonstrate compliance with the Qualification
Requirement and obtains the approval of
the relevant education authorities for the
establishment of a Sino-Foreign Joint Venture
Private School in the future (provided that the
then PRC laws and regulations do not impose
new requirements, restrictions, or prohibitions in
relation to the establishment of the Sino-Foreign
Joint Venture Private Schools), we will be able
to operate the Schools in the PRC directly
through the new school operated by California
Academy, i.e. the California School or such other
educational institution subject to the approval
from the competent education authorities. Our
PRC legal advisors are of the opinion that an
educational institution which offers diploma
certificates at the university level in a foreign
jurisdiction, i.e. California School to be operated
by California Academy or such other foreign
educational institution subject to the approval
from the competent educational authorities
established by the Group that acts as the foreign
investor for the establishment of a Sino-foreign
joint venture private school for formal higher
education is in compliance with the general
requirements of the existing PRC laws.
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Furthermore, we have undertaken to the Stock
Exchange that we will:

()  under the guidance of our PRC legal
advisors, continue to keep ourselves
updated with regard to all relevant
regulatory developments and guidance
relating to the Qualification Requirement;
and

(i) provide periodic updates in our annual
and interim reports after Listing to inform
our Shareholders of our efforts and
actions undertaken with the Qualification
Requirement.

Draft Foreign Investment Law

The MOFCOM published a discussion draft of
the proposed Foreign Investment Law in January
2015 aiming to, upon its enactment, replace the
major existing laws and regulations governing
foreign investment in China. While the MOFCOM
solicited comments on this draft in early 2015,
substantial uncertainties exist with respect
to its enactment timetable, interpretation and
implementation. The Draft Foreign Investment
Law, if enacted as proposed, may materially
impact the entire legal framework regulating
foreign investments in China.
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Among other things, the Draft Foreign Investment
Law purports to introduce the principle of “actual
control” in determining whether a company is
considered a foreign invested enterprise, or an
foreign invested entity (“FIE”). The Draft Foreign
Investment Law specifically provides that entities
established in China but “controlled” by foreign
investors will be treated as FIEs, whereas an
entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction, but
confirmed by the authority in charge of foreign
investment as “controlled” by PRC entities and/
or citizens, would nonetheless be treated as
a PRC domestic entity for investment in the
“restricted category” on the “negative list” to be
issued subject to the examination of the relevant
authority in charge of foreign investment. For
these purposes, “control” is broadly defined
in the draft law to cover any of the following
summarized categories:

() holding directly or indirectly 50% or more of
the equity interest, assets, voting rights or
similar equity interest of the subject entity;
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(i) holding directly or indirectly less than 50%
of the equity interest, assets, voting rights
or similar equity interest of the subject
entity but (a) having the power to directly
or indirectly appoint or otherwise secure
at least 50% of the seats on the board or
other equivalent decision making bodies, (b)
having the power to secure its nominated
person to acquire at least 50% of the
seats on the board or other equivalent
decision making bodies, or (c) having the
voting power to exert material influence
over decision-making bodies, such as the
shareholders’ meeting or the board; or

(iiiy having the power to exert decisive influence,
via contractual or trust arrangements, over
the subject entity’s operations, financial,
staffing and technology matters.

In respect of “actual control”, the Draft Foreign
Investment Law looks at the identity of the
ultimate natural person or enterprise that
controls the foreign-invested enterprise. “Actual
control” refers to the power or position to control
an enterprise through investment arrangements,
contractual arrangements or other rights and
decision making arrangements. Articles 19 of
the Draft Foreign Investment Law defined “actual
controllers” as the natural persons or enterprises
that directly or indirectly control foreign investors
or foreign-invested enterprises.
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If an entity is determined to be an FIE, and its
investment amount exceeds certain thresholds
or its business operation falls within a “negative
list” to be separately issued by the State Council
in the future, market entry clearance by the
authority in charge of foreign investment would
be required.

The “variable interest entity” structure, or
VIE structure, has been adopted by many
PRC-based companies, and has been adopted
by the Company in the form of the Structured
Contracts, to establish control of the PRC
Operating Schools and/or the School Sponsors
by Huihuang Company, through which we operate
our education business in PRC. Under the Draft
Foreign Investment Law, variable interest entities
that are controlled via contractual arrangements
would also be deemed as FlEs, if they are
ultimately “controlled” by foreign investors. For
companies with a VIE structure in an industry
category that is in the “restricted category” on
the “negative list,” it is possible that the existing
VIE structure may be deemed legitimate only if
the ultimate controlling person(s) is/are of PRC
nationality (either PRC state-owned enterprises
or agencies, or PRC citizens). Conversely, if the
actual controlling person(s) is/are of foreign
nationalities, then the variable interest entities
will be treated as FIEs and any operation in the
industry category on the “negative list” without
market entry clearance may be considered as
illegal.
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Pursuant to the Draft Foreign Investment Law, as
far as the new VIE structures are concerned, if
a domestic enterprise under the VIE structure is
controlled by Chinese nationals, such domestic
enterprise may be treated as a Chinese investor
and therefore the VIE structures may be regarded
as legal. However, if the domestic enterprise is
controlled by foreign investors, such domestic
enterprise may be treated as a foreign investor
or foreign-invested enterprise, and therefore the
operation of such domestic enterprise through
VIE structures may be regarded as illegal if the
domestic enterprise operates in a sector which is
on the Negative List and the domestic enterprise
does not apply for and obtain the necessary
permission.

The Draft Foreign Investment Law stipulates
restriction of foreign investment in certain
industry sectors. The “negative list” set out in
the Draft Foreign Investment Law classified the
relevant prohibited and restricted industries into
the Catalogue of Prohibitions and the Catalogue
of Restrictions, respectively.

Foreign investors are not allowed to invest
in any sector set out in the Catalogue of
Prohibitions. Where any foreign investor directly
or indirectly holds shares, equities, properties or
other interests or voting rights in any domestic
enterprise, such domestic enterprise is not
allowed to invest in any sector set out in the
Catalogue of Prohibitions, unless otherwise
specified by the State Council.
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Foreign investors are allowed to invest in sectors
set out in the Catalogue of Restrictions, provided
that the foreign investors are required to fulfil
certain conditions and apply for permission
before making such investment. Notwithstanding
that the accompanying explanatory notes to the
Draft Foreign Investment Law (the “Explanatory
Notes”) do not provide a clear direction in
dealing with VIE structures existing before the
Draft Foreign Investment Law becoming effective,
which is still pending for further study as of the
Latest Practicable Date, the Explanatory Notes
contemplate three possible approaches in dealing
with foreign-invested enterprises with existing
VIE structures and conducting business in an
industry falling in the Negative List:

(@ to make a declaration to the competent
authority that the actual control is vested
with Chinese investors, then the VIE
structures may be retained for its operation;

(b) to apply to the competent authority for
certification of its actual control vested with
Chinese investors and upon verification by
the competent authority, the VIE structures
may be retained for its operation;

(c) to apply to the competent authority for
permission and the competent authority
together with the relevant departments shall
make a decision after taking into account
the actual control of the foreign-invested
enterprise and other factors.
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Where foreign investors and foreign-invested
enterprises circumvent the provisions of the
Draft Foreign Investment Law by entrusted
holding, trust, multi-level reinvestment, leasing,
contracting, financing arrangements, protocol
control, overseas transaction or otherwise, make
investments in sectors specified in the Catalogue
of Prohibitions, or make investments in sectors
specified in the Catalogue of Restrictions without
permission or violate the information reporting
obligations specified therein, the penalty shall
be imposed in accordance with Article 144
of (Investments in Sectors Specified in the
Catalogue of Prohibitions), Article 145 (Violation
of Provisions on Access Permission), Article
147 (Administrative Legal Liability for Violating
the Information Reporting Obligation) or Article
148 (Criminal Legal Liability for Violating the
Information Reporting Obligation) of the Draft
Foreign Investment Law, as the case may be.

If the Draft Foreign Investment Law is
promulgated in the current draft form, on the
basis that (i) Mr. Li, who is of Chinese nationality,
indirectly holds approximately 55.34% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report; (ii) the Company
through Huihuang Company exercises effective
control over the PRC Operating Schools and/or
the School Sponsors pursuant to the Structured
Contracts and (iii) Mr. Li is of Chinese nationality,
our PRC legal advisors are of the view that we
can apply for the recognition of the Structured
Contracts as domestic investments and it is likely
that the Structured Contracts will be considered
as legal.
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If the operation of higher education institutions
is no longer in the negative list and the Group
can legally operate the education business under
PRC Laws, Huihuang Company will exercise the
Equity Call Option under the Exclusive Call Option
Agreement to acquire the school sponsor’s
interest of the PRC Operating Schools and/
or the equity interest in the School Sponsors
and unwind the Structured Contracts subject to
re-approval by the relevant authorities.

If the operation of higher education is in the
negative list, the Structured Contracts may be
viewed as prohibited foreign investment. If the
Draft Foreign Investment Law is refined and
deviates from the current draft, depending on the
treatment of existing contractual arrangements,
the Structured Contracts may be regarded as
invalid and illegal. As a result, the Group would
not be able to operate the Schools through
the Structured Contracts and we would lose
our rights to receive the economic benefits
of the PRC Operating Schools and the School
Sponsors. As a result, the financial results of
the PRC Operating Schools and/or the School
Sponsors would no longer be consolidated into
the Group’s financial results and we would
have to derecognize their assets and liabilities
according to the relevant accounting standards.
An investment loss would be recognized as a
result of such derecognition.
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Nevertheless, considering that a number of
existing conglomerates are operating under
contractual arrangements and some of which
have obtained listing status abroad, our Directors
are of the view that it is unlikely, if the Draft
Foreign Investment Law is promulgated, that the
relevant regulations will take retrospective effect
to require the relevant enterprises to remove
the contractual arrangements. In future, the PRC
government is likely to take a relatively cautious
attitude towards the aspects of supervision as
well as the enactment, and make decisions
according to different situations in practice.

However, there are uncertainties as to what the
definition of control may be under the finally
enacted version of the Foreign Investment Law
in the future, and the relevant government
authorities will have a broad discretion in
interpreting the law and may ultimately take
a view that is inconsistent with our PRC legal
advisors’ understanding. In any event, the
Company will take reasonable steps in good faith
to seek to comply with the enacted version of the
Foreign Investment Law, if and when it comes
into force.
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Risks associated with the arrangements and the
actions taken to mitigate the risks

We entered into a series of agreements in which our
wholly-owned subsidiary, Huihuang Company receives
economic benefits from the PRC Operating Schools
pursuant to relevant clauses under the agreements.

Foreign investment in the education industry in China
is extensively regulated and subject to numerous
restrictions. We have been and are expected to
continue to be dependent on the Structured Contracts
to operate our education business.

If the Structured Contracts that establish the structure
for operating our China business are found to be in
violation of any PRC laws or regulations in the future
or fail to obtain or maintain any of the required permits
or approvals, the relevant PRC regulatory authorities,
including the MOE, which regulates the education
industry, would have broad discretion in dealing with
such violations, including:

e revoking the business and operating licenses of
our PRC subsidiaries;

e discontinuing or restricting the operations of
any related-party transactions among our PRC
subsidiaries;

e imposing fines or other requirements with which
we or our PRC subsidiaries may not be able to
comply;

e requiring us to restructure our operations in such
a way as to compel us to establish new entities,
re-apply for the necessary licenses or relocate
our businesses, staff and assets;
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imposing additional conditions or requirements
with which we may not be able to comply; or

restricting the use of proceeds from our
additional public offering or financing to finance
our business and operations in China.

If any of the above penalties are imposed on us, our
business, financial condition and results of operations
may be materially and adversely affected.

The Group has adopted the following measures to
ensure the effective operation of the Group with the
implementation of the Structured Contracts and our
compliance with the Structured Contracts:

(a)

major issues arising from the implementation and
compliance with the Structured Contracts or any
regulatory enquiries from government authorities
will be submitted to our Board, if necessary, for
review and discussion on an occurrence basis;

our Board will review the overall performance of
and compliance with the Structured Contracts at
least once a year;

the Company will disclose the overall
performance and compliance with the Structured
Contracts in its annual reports and interim
reports to update the Shareholders and potential
investors;
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the Company and our Directors undertake to
provide periodic updates in our annual and
interim reports regarding the qualification
requirement and our status of compliance
with the Draft Foreign Investment Law and its
accompanying explanatory notes as stipulated
under the section headed “Structured Contracts
— Background of the Structured Contracts”
and the latest development of the Draft
Foreign Investment Law and its accompanying
explanatory notes as disclosed under the section
headed “Structured Contracts — Development
in the PRC Legislation on Foreign Investment”,
including the latest relevant regulatory
development as well as our plan and progress
in acquiring the relevant experience to meet the
qualification requirement; and

the Company will engage external legal advisors
or other professional advisors, if necessary, to
assist the Board to review the implementation
of the Structured Contracts, review the lega
compliance of Huihuang Company and the PRC
Operating Schools and/or the School Sponsors to
deal with specific issues or matters arising from
the Structured Contracts.
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In addition, notwithstanding that our executive Director,
Mr. Li is also the Registered Shareholder, we believe
that our Directors are able to perform their roles in
the Group independently and the Group is capable of
managing its business independently after the Listing
under the following measures:

(a)

the decision-making mechanism of the Board
as set out in the Articles includes provisions to
avoid conflict of interest by providing, amongst
other things, that in the event of conflict of
interest in such contract or arrangement which
is material, a Director shall declare the nature
of his or her interest at the earliest meeting of
the Board at which it is practicable for him or
her to do so, and if he or she is to be regarded
as having material interest in any contracts or
arrangements, such Director shall abstain from
voting and not be counted in the quorum;

each of our Directors is aware of his fiduciary
duties as a Director which requires, amongst
other things, that he acts for the benefits and in
the best interests of the Group;

we have appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, comprising over
one-third of our Board, to provide a balance
of the number of interested and independent
Directors with a view to promoting the interests
of the Company and our Shareholders as a
whole; and
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(d) we will disclose in our announcements, circulars,
annual and interim reports in accordance
with the requirements under the Listing Rules
regarding decisions on matters reviewed by our
Board (including independent non-executive
Directors) relating to any business or interest of
each Director and his associates that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.

Material changes

As of the date of this annual report, there were no
material changes in the Structured Contracts and/
or the circumstances under which the Structured
Contracts were adopted.

Unwinding of the Structured Contracts

As of the date of this annual report, there has not
been any unwinding of any Structured Contracts, nor
has there been any failure to unwind any Structured
Contracts when the restrictions that led to the
adoption of the Structured Contracts are removed.
For more details, please refer to the section headed
“Structured Contracts — Operation of the Structured
Contracts — Termination of the Structured Contracts”
of the Prospectus. In the event that the PRC regulatory
environment changes and all of the Qualification
Requirement, the Foreign Ownership Restriction and
the Foreign Control Restriction are removed (and
assuming there are no other changes in the relevant
PRC laws and regulations), Huihuang Company will
exercise the Equity Call Option in full to unwind the
contractual arrangements so that the Company will be
able to directly operate the schools without using the
Structured Contracts.
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Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors will review
the aforesaid Structured Contract on an annual basis
to confirm that, during the relevant financial year:

()  the Structured Contracts have been entered into
in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) the Structured Contracts are on normal
commercial terms; and

(i) the Structured Contracts have been entered
into in accordance with relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation of auditors of the Company

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, were engaged
to report on the Group’s Continuing Connected
Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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The auditor of the Company has performed certain
pre-determined audit procedures regarding the
Structured Contracts and confirmed that:

(i)

(i1

(i)

the transactions carried out during the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Structured Contracts, and have been
operated so that the profit generated by the PRC
Operating Schools and the School Sponsors have
been substantially retained by the Group;

no dividends or other distributions have been
made by the PRC Operating Schools and the
School Sponsors to the holders of its school
sponsor’s interest which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the
Group; and

the Structured Contracts and if any, any new
contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced
between the Group and the PRC Operating
Entities and the School Sponsors during
the relevant financial period are fair and
reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the
Group is concerned and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as of the date
of this annual report, the Company had no connected
transactions which fell to be disclosed in accordance
with the provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in relation to the disclosure of connected
transactions.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the charitable
and other donations made by the Group amounted to
RMB2,788,000.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
was not engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and no litigation or claim of material importance
is known to the Directors to be pending or threatening
against the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company.

THE 2016 AMENDMENTS

Pursuant to the 2016 Amendments, the school sponsors of
a private school which provides education services other
than nine-year compulsory education may choose for the
school to be a for-profit private school or a non-profit
private school with effect from 1 September 2017. The
following table sets forth the key differences between a
for-profit private school and a non-profit school under the
2016 Amendments:
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HE EAMERPER FEFERBPRER
Item For-profit Private School Non-profit Private School
W B = & a R BEREBREATRIEE RN ZBREPREFLBREEERR

Receipt of operating profits

FE R K & 5C

Licenses and registration

=

Fees to be charged

mEERBRERTERQTE
UREMZEERZERKERE
b5}

School sponsors are allowed to
receive operating profits, and

the surplus from operations

shall be handled in accordance
with the provisions of the PRC
Company Law and other laws and
regulations

BAHZEALERERBRER
MBERE - EEHBREME
R F &

Private school operating licenses,
business licenses and other
registrations required to go
through by a corporate legal
person

EREREERARTISE
REE BBAESENEEE
#e

Determined based on school
operating costs and market
demand, and no prior regulatory
approval is required

MAABEERBEAMNERE
pE

School sponsors are not allowed to
receive operating profits, and all
surplus from operations shall be
used for the operation of the school

RPFEXEMHRBERN
BRRNECE

Private school operating licenses
and registration certificate of private
nonenterprise entities

ASSN

RIB T B HENREE

i

Determined pursuant to the
standards stipulated by the local
governments
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Item For-profit Private School Non-profit Private School
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Tax treatment

T i

Land

]
3R
iy
K

Public funding

Liquidation

Preferential tax treatment as
stipulated by the State

S

B £t Bkt it R EN

e

<.

Acquired either through land
allocation or land transfer

LRI -BLEEM RE
T HARWBARABAREE
ESTEABMARES

Public funding in the form of
purchase of services, student
loans, scholarships, lease or
acquisition of unused Stateowned
assets

BERARBHREARERTE
WIE -BRBPWEANFESR
R E %G 2R R &
BE

Liquidated in accordance with the
provisions of the PRC Company
Law. School sponsors can obtain
the school’s remaining assets after
the settlement of the school’s
indebtedness

S

e

Same preferential tax treatment as
public schools

BiE L it BCES

Acquired through land allocation

LETERE ZBLEER RE
L HASWERBABEEE
ENMBA@HE REEe kg
ZFXNBMARESR

Public funding in the form of
purchase of services, student loans,
scholarships, lease or acquisition

of unused Stateowned assets, and
government grants, incentive funds
and donations

EREPEEZRPERFR
K EHE ZERBRTEEHR
EBRANEEFNMERPERE
=

School sponsors will be
compensated or rewarded when
the private school is liquidated. The
remaining portion of school assets
should continually be used for the
operation of a non-profit private
school
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The 2016 Amendments has taken effect on 1
September 2017, and both the Implementing Measures
on Classification Registration of Private Schools and
the Implementing Measures for the Supervision and
Administration of For-profit Private Schools promulgated
by government authorities at the State level do not have
any definitive effective dates. In addition, according to
the 2016 Amendments, the detailed rules and regulations
regarding the conversion of existing private schools into
for-profit or non-profit schools shall be promulgated by the
local government authorities. As at the date of this annual
report, some provinces have stipulated implementation
rules with transitional period while some have not, and
therefore there are uncertainties involved in interpreting
and implementing the 2016 Amendments with respect
to various aspects of the operations of a private school,
such as (i) when should we notify relevant authorities
regarding our decision for the Schools to be for-profit or
non-profit schools; (ii) procedures to be undergone for a
school to become a for-profit school or non-profit school;
(iii) respective preferential tax treatment which may be
enjoyed by a for-profit school and a non-profit school;
and (iv) respective public fundings can be obtained by a
for-profit school and a non-profit school. Consequently,
we are unable to accurately evaluate the potential impact
on our operations at this stage, such as tax liabilities the
Schools may be exposed to if we choose for the Schools to
be for-profit private schools, public funding the Schools are
able to receive. Under the existing regulatory environment
and based on the current interpretation of the 2016
Amendments and the relevant implementing measures, it is
our intention to register the schools we currently own and
the schools we invested in or plan to establish as for-profit
schools after the 2016 Amendments and its implementing
measures become effective, and the detailed local rules and
regulations regarding the conversion of existing schools are
promulgated by relevant local authorities and take effect.
As of the date of this annual report, we had established
a special committee to pay close attention to rules and
regulations to be promulgated by relevant authorities at all
levels regarding interpreting and implementing the 2016
Amendments. The special committee comprises three
members. We will (i) consult with our PRC legal advisors
when relevant rules and regulations are promulgated
regarding the potential impact on all aspects of the
operations of the Schools; and (i) make announcements
when appropriate.
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As of the date of this annual report, neither the Yunnan
School nor the Guizhou School was required to pay
enterprise income tax in respect of its revenue from tuition
fees and boarding fees.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 164(1) of the Articles of Association, the
Directors, secretary and other officers and every Auditor
for the time being of the Company and the liquidator or
trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation to any
of the affairs of the Company and every one of them, and
every one of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices or trusts; and none of them shall be answerable
for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or
others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake
of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with
whom any moneys or effects belonging to the Company
shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out
on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage
which may happen in the execution of their respective
offices or trusts, or in relation thereto; PROVIDED THAT
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.
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EETEHRS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

The important events occurred since the year ended
31 December 2017 are disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee, together with the Board and external auditor,
has reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the Corporate Governance Code on pages 145 to
165 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued shares, the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange
and permitted under the Listing Rules, was held by the
public at all times from the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young was appointed as the auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The accompanying financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs have been
audited by Ernst and Young.
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Ernst & Young shall retire at the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the
reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor will be proposed
at the AGM.

RECOMMENDATION TO CONSULT PROFESSIONAL
TAX ADVICE

If the Shareholders of the Company are not sure about
the tax effect on the purchase, holding, sale, trading or
exercise of any rights attached to the relevant shares of the
Company, they are recommended to consult independent
experts for advice.

On behalf of the Board
Li Xiaoxuan
Chairman

China, 28 February 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a
view to being a transparent and responsible organization
which is open and accountable to the Shareholders. The
Board strives for adhering to the principles of corporate
governance and has adopted sound corporate governance
practices to meet the legal and commercial standards,
focusing on areas such as internal control, fair disclosure
and accountability to all Shareholders to ensure the
transparency and accountability of all operations of the
Company. The Company believes that effective corporate
governance is an essential factor to create more value for
its Shareholders. The Board will continue to review and
improve the corporate governance practices of the Group
from time to time to ensure that the Group is led by an
effective Board in order to optimize return for Shareholders.

Since the Listing Date to the date of this annual report,
the Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is
vested in the Board.

The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Group, including the formulation and approval
of all policy matters, overall strategic development of the
Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation and
financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the chief executive
officer (Mr. Zhao Shuai) and the senior management of
the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven Directors, consisting of three executive Directors, Mr.
Li Xiaoxuan (the chairman of the Board), Mr. Zhao Shuai and
Mr. Zhang Ke, one non-executive Director, Mr. Chen Shuo
and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong
Man Chung Francis, Mr. Hu Jianbo and Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson. Each executive Director is suitably qualified for his
position, and has sufficient experience to hold the position
S0 as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
Biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographic Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other
financial, business or family relationship among the
members of the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
complied with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules to appoint at
least three independent non-executive Directors. In addition,
at least one independent non-executive Director possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications or
financial management expertise in accordance with Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules and the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors representing
more than one-third of the Board and is in compliance with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the new code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code relating to board diversity which has come
into effect since 1 September 2013, the Board approved
a new board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
in March 2017. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the
Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.

MODEL CODE

The Company has also adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors in March
2017. Having made specific enquiry with all Directors of the
Company, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Since their appointments and up to the date of this annual
report, independent non-executive Directors have played a
significant role in the Board by bringing their independent
judgment at the Board meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s
performance. Their views carry significant weight in the
Board’s decision, in particular, they bring an impartial view
to bear on issues of the Group’s strategy, performance
and control. All independent non-executive Directors
possess extensive academic, professional and industry
expertise and management experience and have provided
their professional advices to the Board. The independent
non-executive Directors provide independent advice on the
Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account, and
the interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be
protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors
with one of them, Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis, possessing
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and
financial management expertise in compliance with the
requirements set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received confirmations of independence
from each of the existing independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Based on the contents of such confirmations, the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Any newly appointed Director would receive
an induction package covering the Group’s operations,
businesses, governance policies and the statutory
regulatory obligations and responsibilities of a director of
a listed company. The Directors have been informed of the
requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code regarding continuous professional
development. According to the records maintained by the
Company, the current Directors received the following
training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a director of a listed company in compliance with the
new requirement of the Corporate Governance Code on
continuous professional development for the year ended 31
December 2017;

RREER/ WA et/ B/ EEY
RARERNER HttER B8

Corporate Governance/Updates on
Laws, Rules and Regulations

Accounting/Financial/Management or
Other Professional Skills

HERE/ HEBE/
B &M R E5e B & M R HHRE
Attend Attend
Read Seminars/ Read Seminars/
EEps Name of Director materials Briefings materials Briefings
HITEE Executive Directors
TEHEE Mr. Li Xiaoxuan Y Y Y Y
icl: e Mr. Zhao Shuai Y Y Y Y
RAE4E Mr. Zhang Ke i Y Y Y
FHTES Non-executive Director
R4 Mr. Chen Shuo Y Y Y Y
BUEHTES Independent non-executive
Directors
BEXRELE Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis Y Y Y Y
BEREELE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson y y Y Y
HERLE Mr. Hu Jianbo (appointed in y y y Y
(R2017TE1NREEE) December 2017)
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential
legal actions against its Directors and officers.

MEETINGS

The Board meets to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group from
time to time. Directors may participate either in person or
through electronic means of communications.

The Board will convene the board meetings at least four
times a year.

The Board commits that once any Board meeting is held, it
will ensure that all Directors will be provided with relevant
materials relating to the matters brought before the
meetings. They will have separate and independent access
to the senior management and the company secretary of the
Company at all time and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense. Where queries are raised
by Directors, steps would be taken to respond as promptly
and fully as possible. All Directors will have the opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for Board meetings.
Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings will be given
to the Directors and Board procedures comply with the
Articles, as well as relevant rules and regulations.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee
meetings are/will be recorded in sufficient detail to include
the matters considered by the Board and the Board
committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the directors.

Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee
meeting are/will be sent to the directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and the general meetings during the

HEREEI DT : year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:
HE/EEE HE/BRER
2ERE RERE
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
EEMR Name of Director Board Meeting(s) General Meeting(s)
HITES Executive Directors
FZEHEL Mr. Li Xiaoxuan 4/4 111
iz e Mr. Zhao Shuali 4/4 0/1
R LA Mr. Zhang Ke 4/4 0/1
RAIREE Mr. Zhu Lidong 4/4 1/1
(720183 A BHE) (Resigned in March 2018)
FHTEE Non-executive Director
PR 4 Mr. Chen Shuo 4/4 0/1
BYEHITES Independent non-executive Directors
BEXREE Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis 414 1/1
BFEEE Mr. Chung Yue Ping Stephen 414 0/1
(FA2017512 A BHE) (Resigned in December 2017)
BEELE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 4/4 i
HERELE Mr. Hu Jianbo 0/4 0/1

(R2017F12R B & F) (Appointed in December 2017)

ZT EBERBRES

EFFPALECEEBEALTEL
FHITEERFHZESEIEUR
BEREZEEERE B2017F12822
HiB4ERK -

HEREECEZEABILIIEHIT
EE - FMNEEEREREREZE
EHRE B2017F12A228 BE K -

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Yue Ping Stephen tendered his resignation as an
independent non-executive director as well as the chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company with effect from 22 December
2017.

Mr. Hu Jianbo has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee with effect
from 22 December 2017.
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Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, who was a member of the
remuneration committee, has been appointed as the
chairman of the remuneration committee with effect from
22 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December
2017, there is no change in information of directors and
chief executives of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Lidong has resigned as an executive Director, the
chief financial officer, the joint company secretary and one
of the authorized representatives with effect on 23 March
2018.

Each of Mr. Li Xiaoxuan, Mr. Zhao Shuai and Mr. Zhang Ke,
being the executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a specific term
of three years commencing form the Listing Date, and will
automatically continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other, which notice shall not expire until after
the fixed term.
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Mr. Chen Shuo, being the non-executive Director of the
Company, has entered into a letter of appointment with us
for an initial fixed term of one year commencing from the
Listing Date and will continue thereafter until terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by the
non-executive Director to our Company or with immediate
effect following the notice in writing served by our Company
to the non-executive Director.

Each of Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis, Mr. Kwong Wai
Sun Wilson and Mr. Hu Jianbo, being the independent
non-executive Director of the Company, has entered into
a letter of appointment with us for an initial fixed term of
one year commencing from 19 April 2017, 19 April 2017
and 22 December 2017 and will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
by served by the independent non-executive Director to
our Company or with immediate effect following the notice
in writing served by our Company to the independent
non-executive Director,

The above service contracts are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with the Articles.
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The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting,
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of
the Board and senior management of the Company, whose
biographies are set out on pages 49 to 63 of this annual
report, for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FEE (AR%T)

Remuneration band (RMB)

AR

Number of individual

0-500,000
500,001-1,500,000
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) audit committee, (ii)
remuneration committee; and (iii) nomination committee,
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the board committees which explain their respective
role and the authority delegated to them by the Board
are available on the website of the Company at www.
xingaojiao.com and the website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk. The board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee pursuant to
a resolution of the Directors passed on 20 March 2017,
The primary duties of the audit committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and
removal of external auditors, review the financial statements
and material advice in respect of financial reporting, and
oversee the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company. Their composition and written terms of
reference are in line with the Corporate Governance Code.
As of the date of this annual report, the audit committee
comprises of three members, namely, three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis, Mr.
Hu Jianbo and Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson. Mr. Wong Man
Chung Francis is the chairman of the audit committee.

The Group’s unaudited financial results for the six months
ended 30 June 2017 and the audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2016 have been reviewed
by the audit committee, which was of the opinion that the
preparation of the relevant financial statements complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements
and that adequate disclosure has been made. The audit
committee has also reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and selection and
appointment of the external auditors. In addition, the audit
committee reviewed the internal control of the Group and
oversaw the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group during the year of 2017.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, 3 meetings
were held by the audit committee. The individual record of
each member of the audit committee at the meetings of the
audit committee is set out below:

H R
£Eg
FRNRE
Attendance/
Number of
Committee
BEEHR Name of Director Meeting(s)
BENREE Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis 3/3
BERE L& Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 3/3
HEREE Mr. Hu Jianbo 0/3
(R2017FE12 B EEE) (appointed in December 2017)
BFFLEE Mr. Chung Yue Ping Stephen 2/3
(FA2017512 8 B 1F) (resigned in December 2017)
FMZEES REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

R AE B 201793 820 B B 3 Hr B
ZES WA VEABEHE F
MWEEENFTERSEAMTEANT
BEENRSHREEAENGTFHEE (&
REYAZ ENRSEAREES
FH(ERREARKRILEBESRE
ENEE) ) REHTEENEHND
EESFHEBERZ -FTINZES
WERFEDBESZEFSLES
SASTAMERXMRE - RAFERB
FEESH=BXEHK B —
FHTES (ZZHEE)RMB
BB TES (HEBREERE
BELXLE) BEELEAFMHE
EEgXFE-

B ZE2017%F12A318 It F E » % B
ZEECRNEERSGNEEAER
HEMSE -

The Company established a remuneration committee
on 20 March 2017 with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the remuneration committee to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments (including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment), and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. Their composition and
written terms of reference are in line with the Corporate
Governance Code. As of the date of this annual report,
the remuneration committee comprises of three members,
namely, Mr. Li Xiaoxuan, an executive Director, and two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu Jianbo and Mr.
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson. Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson is the
chairman of the remuneration committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the senior management.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, 3 meetings
were held by the remuneration committee. The individual
record of each member of the remuneration committee
at the meetings of the remuneration committee is set out
below:

HERXRE,
£ZE®
SEBRE
Attendance/
Number of
Committee
EENE Name of Director Meeting(s)
BERELEE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 3/3
=ZHE4E Mr. Li Xiaoxuan 3/3
tHER EE Mr. Hu Jianbo 0/3
(R2017F12B B Z1E) (appointed in December 2017)
BFFLEE Mr. Chung Yue Ping Stephen 3/3
(FA2017F12 B B 1E) (resigned in December 2017)
REZES NOMINATION COMMITTEE

ARABER2017F3HA30H KRR
ZES W VEEREHE-1R
FEEEMNTIERSATHRFE
EEMEE - AERAK LRZE
BERZANBIMREREODE
ESHBERENEETAE UER
FMERBAFL L AH - YESHENWE
EAERODESSRHEBRRN
REZESETSRZTHEERE
AN EBEEFRRREER HELR
BOREHEBTENRREBAE
EHEEBBH - REZEGWAEANK
NEERESZEFSLEERTH
BYXMBRE-BEAFRA -BSR
ZEEH=ZBREAR -5
TEETZHEAERMBBILIEH
TESEXNREERBEELRE-
ZEZHELEAREBEEREF -

The Company established a nomination committee on
30 March 2017 with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on a
regular basis and to recommend to the Board the suitable
candidates for directors after consideration of the nominees’
independence and quality in order to ensure the fairness
and transparency of all nominations. In identifying suitable
director candidates and making such recommendations
to the Board, the nomination committee would also take
into account various aspects of a candidate, including but
not limited to his/her education background, professional
experience, experience with the relevant industry and
past directorships. Their composition and written terms
of reference are in line with the Corporate Governance
Code. As of the date of this annual report, the nomination
committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Li
Xiaoxuan, an executive Director, and two independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis and
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson. Mr. Li Xiaoxuan is the chairman
of the nomination committee.
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The nomination committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, during the year of 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 2 meetings
were held by the nomination committee. The individual
record of each member of the nomination committee at the
meetings of the nomination committee is set out below:

HE R

£ES

=EE YN

Attendance/

Number of

Committee

EEMA Name of Director Meeting(s)
TEEHEE Mr. Li Xiaoxuan 2/2
BN REE Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis 2/2
BERE L& Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 2/2

RERE

AATMARAMEAETEERL L
HERFBERAERIEERS
REBEENERFRS| G -BF
B+ ME L HE A 53.201%
ZHEE-AFE LHHRABIE3 29K
ZRE ADPERBEHRL R £
mOEBEEBRLZTERAAQNTER
BEZ2007F12A31B L HFE
B REESBEMEXERRES
EEEFTHEBFEIFTIOMNE
T e R2017F  EZTRAAF
FEBREABRIRLE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. Wong Wai
Ling, whose biography details are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. Ms. Wong Wai Ling
has been informed of the requirement of the Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. Mr. Zhu Lidong and Ms. Wong Wai
Ling have informed the Company that they have taken at
least 15 hours of training covering corporate governance
and accounting matters per annum starting from the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 to comply with
the requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Ms.
Wong’s principal corporate contact person at the Company
is Mr. Zhu Lidong during 2017.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company and the Group for
each financial year which shall give a true and fair view of
the financial position, performance and cash flow of the
Company and its subsidiaries for that period. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of Ernst & Young, the Company’s
external auditors, on the financial statements are set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Board is responsible for
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the authorized external
auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The
Company engages Ernst & Young as its external auditors.
Details of the fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows.

ARET T

RMB’000

2 E R 7% Audit services 2,500
I ER 7% Non-audit services 0
2,500
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before them for approval. The
management provides all members of the board with
monthly updates on the Company’s performance, positions
and prospects.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are featured with a defined management structure with
limits of authority and well-rounded policies and procedures,
and are designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify
and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the
Group. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
also recognises its overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. In addition, the
Audit Committee also has the responsibility for reviewing
and assessing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. From the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report, the Company has adopted the following
policies and procedures and taken the following measures
to improve the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.
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In order to ensure the effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control system, the Company has established
various management and control procedures a (“Risk
Management and Internal Control Procedures”) for
identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant
risks associated with the achievement of its operational
objectives. The Company will conduct complete the Risk
Management and Internal Control Procedures with scientific
analysis and assessment, to recognize potential risk points.
By virtue of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Procedures, the senior management of the Group reviews
and evaluates the internal control process, monitors any
risk factors on a regular basis, and reports to the Board on
any findings and measures taken to address such variances
and identified risks. The Board, with the assistance of the
senior management of the Company, also conducts regular
management meetings and on-site inspections to check
and monitor the potential risks associated with the business
operation and financial management of the Group.

With the integration of the real situation of the Company and
various applicable laws and regulations, the management
of the Company can act in concert with such to develop
solutions towards the risks, to organize the business
operation systematically, and to monitor and mitigate
possible risks. The Company also requires all staff of the
Group to comply with certain internal risk management and
internal control standards, and together build a regulatory
environment of risk control and standardized operation. In
addition, the Company has also established policies and
procedures with clear segregation of duties applicable to
certain operating units to ensure the effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls. The day-to-day operation
is also entrusted to the individual department or school,
which is accountable for its own conduct and performance,
and is required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the
Board or the Audit Committee. This process is subject to
continuous improvement.
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Meanwhile, with the assistance of the professional auditor,
the Audit Committee will supervise the Company’s revenue
and expenditure for the financial and economic activities,
to further strengthen the functions of risk management, to
ensure the effective implementation of risk management
and internal control system and the Company’s standardized
operation and healthy development. In order to comply with
the relevant requirements under the Corporate Governance
Code in relation to the corporate risk management and
internal controls, the Company has established an internal
audit department for the purposes of simultaneous
updates between the corporate governance and the Code
on Corporate Governance and continuously improving the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal controls.

In the preparation for the Listing, the Company provided
inside information training courses to the Directors and
senior management of the Company to ensure that all
relevant facts and circumstances that may have material
effect on the share price of the Company is assessed in
a timely manner and that any material information which
comes to the knowledge of any one or more officers of the
Group be promptly identified, assessed and, if appropriate,
escalated for the attention of the Board to determine
whether a disclosure is required.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective internal control systems are maintained
so as to safeguard the Group’s assets and the interest
of Shareholders. The Board has developed its systems
of internal control and risk management and is also
responsible for reviewing and maintaining an adequate
internal control system to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



RESHE ESESEEKEES
ROt B T © ¥l B ' 32 I A9 AR 42
ETRH YR A A ANEREEE
MABEHEAGAZIBELSEIE
MER-BERARNEERERFTE
REHER BB ERMNEER
AR E bk E R

EESHEERZEENHBYTIRCE
BMELHRABAVERNTEE S5
Ko 0 2 2 K B 75 B ¥R B B2 75 T Y
BETEERER BIREREE
RERIRE -

R R R

BRREMBARRAERARK
RAELREEZNEFR

R A5 4 A S5581% A QT EM— A
FULRREFEREAFEADOR
AAAHMERE (BERMNEARR
ARRAERE) T2 Z2—HERR
(TRERNPUFHRARAES S
HH: PEEtRESHHESFEAER
BO)LUEHEREETERZER
BIEEAEBRZ &SRR
RE BEZSEREANRFEHEE
REMBERABR -fIEFE&21H
NEEZSREEHAEARE AR
FERNATESTEBEABAIRA
MASE BEAXRRBEBARFBERD
ATHEREESRERRAAREM
BITERASEENTBEEERX -

TEERBTH
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the Reporting Period, the Board, with the assistance
of the Audit Committee, has conducted review of the risk
management and internal control and considered the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company
are adequate and being implemented effectively. Such
review covered all material controls, financial, compliance
and operational controls as well as risk management
mechanisms.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee,
has also reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of
the Company’s resources, the staff’s qualifications and
experience, the training courses and the related budgets in
accounting, internal review and financial reporting functions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
member(s) of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board of
the Company by mail at 9/F, Jinze Building East, Financial
Street, Beijing, PRC, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Board of Directors
of the Company (Board of Directors) by mail at 9/F,
Jinze Building East, Financial Street, Beijing, or by email
ir@xingaojiao.com. The joint company secretary of the
Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities
to the Board and communications relating to ordinary
business matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the
chief executive officer of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the Memorandum and the
Articles on 20 March 2017, which has been effective since
20 March 2017 and the Listing Date, respectively. Save as
disclosed herein, there has been no significant change in
the Company’s constitutional documents during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with Shareholders
of the Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is
committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency
to ensure the investors and the shareholders of the
Company receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group by the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circular. The Company also
publishes all corporate correspondence on the Company’s
website www.xingaojiao.com. The Board maintains regular
dialogues with institutional investors and analysts from
time to time to keep them informed of the Group’s strategy,
operations, management and plans. Members of the Board
and of the various board committees will attend the annual
general meeting of the Company and answer questions
raised during the meeting. Separate resolutions would be
proposed at the general meeting on each substantially
separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company
would explain the procedures for conducting poll before
putting a resolution to vote. The results of the voting by
poll will be declared at the meeting and published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.
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To the shareholders of
China New Higher Education Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China New Higher Education Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 177 to
295, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
issued by HKICPA, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

BERENSE

Income Tax

Fr %

No corporate income tax was provided on the income
from provision of formal educational services of the
Guizhou School and the Yunnan School because of the
preferential tax treatment. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
as there are uncertainties in interpreting the relevant tax
laws and regulations in respect to the preferential tax
treatment enjoyed by the schools. The Group engaged
external tax advisor for the assessment of income tax
obligations, and there were significant judgements
included in the management’s analysis and assessment,
such as an assessment on possible outcome of the tax
provision based on historical experience, and estimates
about future events after 31 December 2017 that may
cause the Group to change its judgment regarding the
adequacy of the tax liabilities. Such changes to tax
liabilities will impact the tax expense in the period that
such determination is made.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENNMNEERFARETSH

Our audit procedures included understanding
the basis for the income tax provisions made
and assessing the consistency of provisioning
applied. We also assessed management
estimation and judgements by reference to the
historical experience, such as the historical
tax returns filed to the relevant tax authorities
and the confirmation obtained therefrom, and
reviewed subsequent events after the reporting
period. In performing audit procedures, we
involved our internal tax specialists to assess
the basis of provision applied to calculate the
tax provision. We also checked confirmations
from the local tax bureaus and read the opinion
of the Group’s tax advisor about the income
tax position made by the Guizhou School and
Yunnan School particularly in respect of the
eligibility of the preferential tax treatment under
the applicable PRC tax rules and regulations.
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AEMEHBENREEE-FEETH
EMNEREEEZERE RGP EE
ABRBEAREZRETHRRNERSGEE
AT RN EHBERELTHBER
MERREE SEEBBEBNVER-
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Key audit matter

BERENSE

According to the Implementation Rules for the Law
for Promoting Private Education of the PRC (the
“Implementation Rules”), private schools, whether
requiring reasonable returns or not, may enjoy
preferential tax treatment. The Implementing Rules
provide that the private schools for which the sponsors
do not require reasonable returns are eligible to
enjoy the same preferential tax treatment as public
schools, and relevant authorities under the State
Council may introduce preferential tax treatments and
related policies applicable to private schools requiring
reasonable returns. Up to 31 December 2017, no
separate policies, regulations or rules have been
introduced by the authorities in this regard.

RE(PEARRINBRPBABBRELZERIK
f) (TEREA]) ERSEREREEERS
BOHK HUEZIHEEZFTE-BEREMNSR
EERETERCEOBNRRERSERE
ZRANBERABNHKREZSTE  MEKE
TEHENMARERETERANRERSELRE
MERNBWEEFTBERMEBEEK -HE2017
F12ANH T EHETEBIEK ERIRA -

The Group’s disclosures about income tax are included
in Note 4 and Note 11 in the financial statements.

EEEEREMEBHNEESRN Y B RERK T4
KHIaE11 -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENNMNEEFARETSR
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Key audit matter

BERENSE

Revenue Recognition

WA TR

Revenue mainly comprised the tuition fees and boarding
fees from students, and these fees are collected
through the official payment channels at the beginning
of each academic year. Students’ identity and applicable
program are registered with the relevant education
authorities. Tuition and boarding fees are calculated
by reference to number of students and the annual fee
of applicable program for the academic year, and is
recognized proportionately over the relevant period of
the applicable program. For the portion of tuition and
boarding fees received from students but not earned
is recorded as deferred revenue. Given the significant
amount and volume of transactions and the risk of
overstatement of revenue, we considered it a key audit
matter.

WATEHBLEBEREBEEAR ZFWA
RESBEREKEBESI XN REWER B4
MEOREARECREBEREERER -2
BENEIBEDNZSRZEFNELHEREAR
ENFEFE UREAREHERFRLH
BRAR-BREHARARNELEZERFE
BN AEZERA - ZEIARGHNEEREY
BEEARBRBANEE EERELBARESR
B2

The Group’s disclosures about revenue recognition are
included in notes 3 and 6 in the financial statements.

AEFBEEHWAEINBEECHARBRE
M EE3 %6 °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENNMNEERFARETSH

Our audit procedures included understanding
the basis of revenue recognition and the overall
transaction process and procedures adopted by
the management; and we tested the applicable
internal controls relating to the revenue
receipts process made through the official
payment channels. On a sampling basis, we
reviewed and checked the relevant supporting
documentation including the student payment
records, official student records registered
with the relevant education authorities, and
the payment remittance receipts of tuition and
boarding fees. In addition, we recalculated the
amount of deferred revenue and the revenue
recognized in the period.

EENETREFERTHEEERAMN
WABREERBEAXZBERER-
BERATREAREBESREXNME
EHWANREBES R ET RN - R FIH
BREABEXHEXH (BRELEHERT
FOREBEAEHBEMNEANEZELE
CHERZNBERFTBEENERKE)
ETERARBRE- LN RMEFAE
BEEWASERRYPAEZHOUA -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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MESALBRTG BEERES
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EHE BELRABRYUFLEE.
5 BR It iz Sh 3 48 HL Ath BB AT AT AV 3
FOBAARBUSEELERER
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ENEESHE EQANESZET
REEE SEBHBEREEFH
BfEe

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Leung Wai Lap, Philip.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

28 February 2018
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HEBERRABSVIFL2ANALEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

REKEXR®
ON
HEMRAE

E7
Hig s &% 18 &%
HEK D HMAX
TR X
Htf %
[ELE=§ RN

BR Bt Al 2 7
PSR <

FRARBFHE
RERBRF

EREREX
FRARBEEKILE
HEXBRN

FRER

UTALTHER:
FREEEA
FERES

BREF
BRAAEBRR
R R PB4

EX(AR®E)
—F R EF

BE(AR%)
—F R EF

Rrat

Notes

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE 6
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains 6
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs 7
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8
Income tax expense 11

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 12

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

Basic (RMB)

— For profit for the year 14
Diluted (RMB)

— For profit for the year 14

20175 20165
2017 2016
AR® T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
414,405 340,996
(186,905) (177,409)
227,500 163,587
128,347 60,859
(3,640) (3,174)
(58,117) (59,929)
(4,580) (12,365)
(39,554) (36,089)
249,956 112,889
(16,634) (2,358)
233,322 110,531
- 1,666
233,322 112,197
233,368 111,755
(46) 442

0.17 0.10
0.17 0.10
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METHWHERBZ07F2ANALEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

F A a

Hitb 2 HE R

RERPBEBREF 28

ERENHEMEZE
B8

BMEBIEBNER
=5

RERBEREH
DEERBEMNEM
EHEEFH

FREMEZEERE
0 BR B IH

FRAEEKERE

U AL FEfL:

BRARAERA
FERERS

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
NOT TO BE RECLASSIFIED
TO PROFIT OR LOSS IN
SUBSEQUENT PERIODS

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive 10ss not
to be reclassified to profit or l0ss
in subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

20175 20164
2017 2016
AR® T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
233,322 112,197
(20,384) (15,594)
(20,384) (15,594)
(20,384) (15,594)
212,938 96,603
212,984 96,161
(46) 442
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 DECEMBER 2017

20174 20164
2017 2016
Krat AR¥ T AR®F T
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y% -BEKRME  Property, plant and equipment 15 985,301 867,240
REWYE Investment properties 16 47,331 31,817
T LA EFKIE  Prepaid land lease payments 17 96,910 99,173
Hitt@E&EE Other intangible assets 18 11,127 8,318
HitERBEE Other non-current assets 19 1,185,973 720,585
FREBEELE Total non-current assets 2,326,642 1,727,133
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEMNFRIE-ZEL K Prepayments, deposits and other
H b e K18 receivables 20 88,666 50,516
[RE:EREEN Pledged deposits 21 30,000 52,749
BEeREELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21 118,648 178,785
HRaEE Other current assets 5,947 3,415
REBEEHLE Total current assets 243,261 285,465
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
IEIE W A Deferred revenue 22 249,599 217,047
HttEARIER Other payables and accruals
FEstE R 23 192,983 240,262
FFEHRTR Interest-bearing bank and
H th & K other borrowings 24 207,819 102,500
5 HE YR = Deferred income 25 4,088 2,122
FE A %18 Tax payable 13,507 1,511
REBEEEZE Total current liabilities 667,996 563,442
RBEERE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (424,735) (277,977)
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A B AR R &R 20175128318
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 DECEMBER 2017

EERER
RBRE

ERBEE
FTERITR
HAtb & 5K
iR 3 W 2
EERIREE

FRBEERE
EERE

Rz
FREERA
FEAL FE 2R
&N

it

FERES

RER

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

liog=a

Notes

24
25
26

27
28

20175 201645
2017 2016
AR¥T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,901,907 1,449,156
144,440 476,128
28,637 30,512
3,975 -
177,052 506,640
1,724,855 942 516
983 -
1,723,872 888,169
1,724,855 888,169
— 54,347
1,724,855 942,516
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HEBRERERBVIFANALEE

Bt aE
Notes
KRETEIEELSARE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BRFGATER] - Profit before tax:
REBFELELEK  From continuing operations
RE Eﬁiﬂ:ﬁ‘“ — From discontinued operations
EF 12
FRUTEEHAE:  Adjustments for:
& A AN Finance costs 7
) B &% Interest income
REWZE Investment income
H:IE%% M=K  Gain on disposal of items of
REIE B Wi s property, plant and equipment
tl:'ni’E NG Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
29
H:I%E‘,%JJ:,@% Gain on disposal of discontinued
EBREE operations 12
S JF&J%& &%  Depreciation of items of
EHENIFE property, plant and equipment
REVENITE Depreciation of investment
properties
XY #75 Bl 1 84 Amortisation of government
grants
HEWE -BENR  Amortisation of deferred gain
% IR A 1T on disposal of property,
5 plant and equipment
A LA E Amortisation of prepaid land
FRIE lease payments
/H\@ﬂ%ﬁ? Amortisation of other intangible
1# o assets
FERIE ?ké& Impairment of prepayments,
H b fE U TR T deposits and other
/J'JHE receivables
A FRIE ?zz%& Increase in prepayments,
H th FE UL X deposits and other
B n receivables
HMREBEEE I  Increase in other current assets
HEASRER (Decrease)/increase in other
J‘E‘Jrﬁﬁﬁ payables and accruals
/j\ ) /i\iﬂ jJu
LLBZ)\i“ hn Increase in deferred revenue

20175 20164
2017 2016
AR® T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
249,956 112,889
- 1,838
39,554 36,089
(2,808) (1,415)
- (2,875)

- (125)

- (758)

- (1,267)
32,374 33,259
906 904
(6,595) (2,917)
— (3,834)

2,263 2251
2,448 1,595
318,098 175,634
167 496
(38,741) (163,751)
(2,532) -
(24,629) 179,243
32,552 38,072
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GEBEESREREBEN07FEI2ANBLEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

20174 20164
2017 2016
iz AR%®Tx AR®T T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
4% 2 3£ 5% P 2= 4 3R & Cash generated from operations 284,915 229,694
2 WF 2 Interest received 2,808 1,415
EER Income tax paid (663) (3,491)
Eﬂ%?ﬂﬁ*ﬂ% Interest element of finance lease
BB E) rental payments — (2,518)
KEEERE Net cash flows from operating
fﬁfﬂlbgﬁﬁ activities 287,060 225,100
REEEHHELMRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEYE- -MEN Purchases of items of property,
HiBIEE plant and equipment (159,255) (155,458)
H:'.%%% ‘M=K  Proceeds from disposal of items
REIE B TS FIE  of property, plant and equipment — 344
?Eﬁiﬂﬂﬂ%?k B Prepaid land lease payments (115,130) (10,153)
™ %Eﬁﬂﬂﬂ/ﬁis Additions to other intangible assets (6,119) (4,922)
W BE IE IR M 2R Acquisition of non-controlling
interests (71,000) (570)
W BE —RMIB AT Proceeds from acquisition of
& RIE a subsidiary 31 = -
H:'.’EI?TTE’D\ﬁFﬁ% Proceeds from disposal of
FRIE subsidiaries 29 - 9,309
ﬁ%ﬁ HEB &I Net cash inflow in respect of
KEEKDN disposal of discontinued
iﬂ%um)\@%ﬁi operations — 4,874
HEERER Proceeds from disposal of
Fri8 1= wealth management products - 20,000
HEFLHR 1‘% Proceeds from disposal of
REMBNRIE unlisted equity investments — 4,500
REFENRE Prepayment on investments (368,246) (507,822)
2R E W= Investment income received - 649
BEE=FEX Repayment of advance to
third parties - 5,452
f’f HEHFRIG 7Jl] Increase in pledged time deposits - (52,749)
=1 TEFEHHT? Returned of pledged time deposits 22,749 20,000
REEEFTAIERSE  Net cash flows used in investing
FEEE activities (697,001) (666,546)
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HREBEESREREBE07FI2ANBLEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issues of shares

Listing expenses paid

Capital injection from investors

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Receipt of government grants for
property, plant and equipment

Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders
Capital element of finance lease

rental payments

Net cash flows from financing
activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

20175 20164
2017 2016
AR T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
702,803 -
(52,031) -
- 430,660
522,249 725,368
(765,996) (587,806)
(33,576) (50,437)
(30,053) -
6,686 11,864

- 18,605

- (10,885)
350,082 537,369
(59,859) 95,923
178,785 82,979
(278) (117)
118,648 178,785
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GEBEESREREBEN07FEI2ANBLEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

20174 20165
2017 2016
KaE ARET T AREFT T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HERBVELEEY  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
HEERD T CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERRWITER Cash and bank balances 73,648 123,785
RITEREBEN Pledged deposits for bank loans
EHFR 21 (30,000) (52,749)
AUWEBRFRZIEIE  Time deposits with original
A={EBHEL LA maturity of three months or
EHFER more when acquired 21 75,000 107,749
FRE BN & Cash and cash equivalents
B ER as stated in the consolidated
REeEEEY statements of financial position 27 118,648 178,785
FERERER Cash and cash equivalents
FrNEBEER as stated in the consolidated
ReEEY statements of cash flows 21 118,648 178,785
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B3R R M 3 (BE017E128318 LEE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

YNETR-—§2

KA TF 201657888 R 15 H
ERERNRETMRIIAER
RERAB - RAAFREMPE
= 3 A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands o Z4x 22
AIR2017F4B19OB EE BB E
REMBRAT ([BERFT])
R

RRBH/H—RREERAA-
RAFER N2 AREKE
NA(EBIAEE]DETEE
BREREARANME ([H
B RERBRBBRS -

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands on 8 July 2016. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company was listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 19 April 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company.
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
principally engaged in rendering private education
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
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B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

1. AEER (HF) 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EREBATNER INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

RABMBRARFBOT

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as
follows:

188

Place and date of incorporation/

registration and place of

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to the

Name business capital Company Principal activities
AR S i B R BRTER/
£ FHREELE ZRAEE AQREGRERINE FEED
Direct Indirect
=E:: &
Aspire Education Information Co., Ltd. 29 October 2015, United States 100% - Investment holding
BVI dollar (“USD")
50,000
Aspire Education Information Co., Ltd. 2015108290 - 50,000% 7T 100% - REER
REEARES (EFA)
Aspire Education Holding Co., Ltd. 30 October 2015, Hong Kong dollar - 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong (“HKD") 1
Aspire Education Holding Co., Ltd. 2015108308 - BT - 100% REER
g (Mr&xl)
Yunnan Einsun Education Investment 19 May 2005, RMB28,570,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Group Co., Ltd. (* Yun Ai Group”)* PRC/Mainland China
ZHEARKAREEEARAT 2005558198 AR - 100% REER
([EE£8])" HE/ HERY 28,570,0007T
Yunnan Technology and 29 September 2005, RMB16,000,000 - 100%  Rendering of
Business University (“Yunnan School”) * PRC/Mainland China education
services
ERIRER ([E@ER]) " 200559A 298 AR - 100% REHKBERH
HE/ PER 16,000,0007¢
Guizhou Technology and 3 July 2012, RMB64,240,000 - 100%  Rendering of
Business Institute (“Guizhou School”) * PRC/Mainland China education
services
ENIHRESR [ENER]) - 201267A3R8 AR - 100% REBERH
HE/ PER 64,240,0007
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

RNAEH (&) 1.
FERHEBAINER (&)

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Place and date of incorporation/
registration and place of

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to the

Name business capital Company Principal activities
ML Bt 5 R ERTEE/
% BHREELY ZMRAEE AARDEGAREEIE FEED
Direct Indirect
E# %
Beijing Aiyinsheng Education 16 October 2012, RMB300,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Investment Co.,Ltd. * PRC/Mainland China
TREREBEREBREMELF 20125108168 AR - 100% HEER
HE/ RERL 300,000,0007T
Harhin Xuande Technology Co., Ltd. 19 April 2016, RMB120,000,000 - 73.91%  Investment holding
(*Haxuan Company”) * PRC/Mainland China
MEEHENEERAR 201648198 AR - 7391% REZER
([BEAF]) HE/ PER 120,000,0007C
Yunnan Daai Fangzhou Information 16 March 2016, RMB300,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Consultancy Co., Ltd. * PRC/Mainland China
ERAEFAGEZABRAR"  2016F3A168 - AR - 100% REER
HE/ RE R 300,000,0007%
Tibet Daai Huihuang Information 5 August 2016, USD1,000,000 - 100%  Rendering of
and Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China technical and
(*Huihuang Company”) * management
consultancy
Services
ARAEBEEENRARAA 2016F8 A58 » 1,000,000% 7T - 100% RURTRER
(AR HEL HEIR B R%
Enshi Autonomous Prefecture 13 November 2014, RMB300,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Changaing Education Development PRC/Mainland China
Co, Ltd. (“Enchang Company”) *
BieBAaNEERERERRAT  2014F11 8138 ARH - 82% REZR
([REAF]) HE/ RE R 300,000,000
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B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

1. REIER (&) 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
ERIBATMNER (&) INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Nominal value of
Place and date of incorporation/  issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and place of registered share interest attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
MBI MR BRTER/
£ RHREE LA ZMBRAHE AAAECRESILE FEEH
Direct Indirect
E# &
California Academy of Business, Inc.* 18 July 2016, UsD10 - 100%  Rendering of
United States technical and
management
consultancy
Services
California Academy of Business, Inc.* 2016578188 ES - 100% RERTRER
ES= A L R A
Gansu Lanbo Education Technology 11 August 2017, RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Lanbo Company”) * PRC/Mainland China
HERBAANERRAA 2017888118 AR - 100% REER
([EEARD) HE/ PERY 50,000,0007¢
Beijing Daai Education Consulting 26 July 2017, RMB90,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Daai Consulting”)* PRC/Mainland China
EZRAEHERABRAA 2017878268 AR - 100% REER
([ERAEZEA] HE/ PER 90,000,007
* HARAZZENATEXREMESH * The English names of these companies represent the best effort
VEB ARZELENINEXTEEH made by management of the Company to directly translate the
AANFEEBEINRDI Y EBHEE Chinese names as the companies do not register any official English
BET AL o names.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements has been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The Group recorded net current liabilities of
RMB424,735,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB277,977,000).

In view of the net current liabilities position, the
Directors have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity and performance of the Group and
its available sources of finance in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern.

Having considered the cash inflow from operations, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group is able to meet
in full its financial obligations as they fall due for the
foreseeable future. To mitigate any liquidity issues that
might be faced by the Group, the Group has obtained
adequate banking facilities from reputable financial
institutions to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due.
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B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

21 RBEXE (F)

it EERP/REELELEE
ERAEVBRERRBEGBE - K
SERERSEREELE A
AFHARUMBREEEES
AU E & LR SRR
MR At & E1FHBE =%
EHENZELE RN
HERA -

2.1

mEE%E
REMBEBRRBEALAARA
MEBEAR (RRBIA&EE])H
Z2017F12B31H L FEE W B
BHRER-MMBAREARARAE
ElEEFNER (BFEE
BLER) EXAKERBESH
REHSZWBEBEHMAIED
SRIHMHVEAKRIEREZE T
B - WEHERIDERHRKRE
HRPOEHD(NSAEEHBA
BRI FTEREHZNERE
FHNREERN XEZEZEO R
B BDENAS = I 4E -

EXANAEEIBEEFIR
REHFRZHRRFEM
B EFEERSERER
BEHENWEIN AEEEZ
BFBEHEBEENEL 81

HEREHRHEMRRES
BENESHNRHE

(a)

HEa N2 HELENER
53
REBNRRAEREBEER
IRFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on
a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable
to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, and to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the financial
statements.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a)

the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c)

the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.
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B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) issued by the HKICPA that are relevant for
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses
Amendments to Disclosure of Interests in
HKFRS 12 included Other Entities:

Clarification of the
Scope of HKFRS 12

in Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has
had a significant financial effect on these financial
statements. Disclosure has been made in note 30(b)
to the financial statements upon the adoption of
amendments to HKAS 7, which require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS

The Group has not adopted the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective and are expected to be applicable to the
Group, in the financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’

Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’
HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to Transfers of Investment
HKAS 40 Property’

Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 1
2014-2016 Cycle and HKAS 287

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that
these new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes
in accounting policies and are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below. The actual impacts upon adoption could be
different to those below, depending on additional
reasonable and supportable information being made
available to the Group at the time of applying the
standards.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)
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2.3

@)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of
the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39
and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group expects to will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2018. During 2017, the Group has performed
a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relating to the
classification and measurement and the impairment
requirements are summarised as follows:

Classification and measurement

(@)
The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at
fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Equity investments currently held
as available for sale will be measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income as
the investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to
apply the option to present fair value changes in
other comprehensive income. Gains and losses
recorded in other comprehensive income for the
equity investments cannot be recycled to profit or
loss when the investments are derecognised.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income, lease
receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS
9, to be recorded based on an expected credit
loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses
that are estimated based on the present values
of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all
of its prepayments deposits and other receivable.
Furthermore, the Group will apply the general
approach and record twelve-month expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the
possible default events on its other receivables
within the next twelve months. The Group has
determined that, the initial adoption of the
standard will have no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and position.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 AND CLARIFICATIONS TO HKFRS
15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is
required on the initial application of the standard. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
will adopt HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018. During
2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15. Based
on the preliminary assessment, the Group anticipated
that the adoption of HKFRS 15 in the future is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the recognition of
service income from the provision of education related
services. However, there will be additional disclosures
upon the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS

(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 LEASES

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS
17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets
the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or
relates to a class of property, plant and equipment
to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS

(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 LEASES (CONTINUED)

generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to
make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS
17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16
on from 1 January 2019. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and
is considering whether it will choose to take advantage
of the practical expedients available and which
transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, at 31
December 2017, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HKD 15,468,000. Upon
adoption of HKAS 16, certain amounts included therein
may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be
needed to determine the amount of new rights of use
assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including,
but not limited to, any amounts relating to leases of
low-value assets and short term leases, other practical
expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered
into before the date of adoption.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



23 ERMEEMRERNEEY

BREER (K)

ERETEAFIORERR
BEYE

R2017F4B B 2 EBE T E
A E405 WIZR] BB B R E R
ME(BREEZERPABRETY
REREZNERBRENE
HVBEfE o 2 SERT 5 B0 - M1 3R /Y

BREREVENEEZERR
ERPAZREBH -ERE
BEHYERENEOELS
BrEUEREABREMEE-
ERERBEREXRERZSEE
ANFERERIIEREE
MYEREZE URKREH
EFRAZEEIT AR -BEREER
HFAMRNEBRERAZSER
ERMEANYMESE I (W
BRIEFDBYEURRE
HNERBR - HEBAKAS
BRER  HAEHEA -A&H
FEEIE2018F1A1H KRR
BRERMZEERT ZFE
RIS EHAEE MR
RELEFENERZE-

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS

(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 40 TRANSFERS OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify
when an entity should transfer property, including
property under construction or development, into or
out of investment property. The amendments state that
a change in use occurs when the property meets, or
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere
change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in
use. The amendments should be applied prospectively
to the changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendments. An entity should
reassess the classification of property held at the date
that it first applies the amendments and, if applicable,
reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist
at that date. Retrospective application is only permitted
if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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3. EXESHBRME 3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which
is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the acquirer measures the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or 10ss.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
(CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised either in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets of liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
(CONTINUED)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its investment properties, at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  Dbased on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

An assessment is made at the end of each of the year
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if;

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

()~ has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group;

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is @ member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an
item of property, plant and equipment is classified as
held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current
assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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3.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (CONTINUED)

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 1.9%
Leasehold improvements 19.4%-33.3%
Motor vehicles 19.4%
Furniture and fixtures 12.1%

Electronic devices 19.4%-32.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 0SS
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment or investment properties when
completed and ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purpose; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

When the properties first became investment property
after a change in use, the fair value of the investment
property is not reliably measurable on a continuing
basis as there are few recent transactions and market
for comparable properties is inactive, and alternative
reliable measurements of fair value are not available,
either. The Group determines that the fair value of
the investment property is not reliably measurable
on a continuing basis and the investment property is
measured using the cost model.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of investment property
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

1.9%
2%

Building
Land used right
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3.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of five years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL) (CONTINUED)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products not exceeding five to seven years,
commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.

LEASES

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included
in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



EXSHHRRME (&)

HE (&)

EEFMERENBAIMMHERRE
ERNEEEARENEED
NAKREHE - WMAKEA Y
HA BEBRELEHEHAN
EEVIARDEE K&
HETWHESKRARBHRIER
BERETABR -MALEEA
AEA REHENENSHES
(BR#EH A BT U BB 1
ER)REHANZRERENE
= HIRR o

KEHENEN L HEERIR
MR AR HRBRAE
HRREGZERT

RERHEMEMEE

NEEARTE

TREENYTEBRIAKIAE
MREWRIEBE-NSTHEIZEH
EERRAFEMEWEZH
EEBRENRBHAGTE HE

BAFEFABRSNEREE
BIBR Sh o

FFEEMEENEREENX
ZB (MAEEAZBERH
EZEEZR)BR -BEHEE
ERAEERAINTEEAEER
ENHEXNEENEREE

==

I:I:nl:l:l:l
BEC®C

3.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and receivables. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in other income and gains in profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primary derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:;

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or
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3.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the assets. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that have occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables
and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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3.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the year, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
pUrpOSES.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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3.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for services provided in the normal
course of business, net of returns, discounts, and
sales related tax.

The tuition fees from the schools of the Group are
paid in advance at the beginning of each academic
year. Revenue is recognised after the price is fixed or
determinable, and services are provided.

Tuition and boarding fees received from college are
generally paid in advance prior to the beginning
of each academic year, and are initially recorded
as deferred revenue. Tuition and boarding fees are
recognised proportionately over the relevant period
of the applicable program. The portion of tuition
and boarding payments received from students but
not earned is recorded as deferred revenue and
is reflected as a current liability as such amount
represents revenue that the Group expects to earn
within one year. The academic year of the Group’s
colleges is generally from September to June of the
following year.

Service income is recognised on the percentage of
completion basis, in the period in which the services
are rendered.

Rental income is recognisedon a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.
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3.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme managed by the local
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of the payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The Group has
no obligation for the payment of retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use of sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the respective assets. The
capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and
used for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalization rate ranging between 4.57% and 7.13%
has been applied to the expenditure on the individual
assets.

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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3.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.
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4.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Contractual arrangements

Certain subsidiaries are engaged in the provision
of education services, which falls in the scope
of “Catalogue of Restricted Foreign Investment
Industries”. Foreign investors are prohibited to invest
in such business.

The Group exercises control over these subsidiaries
and enjoys all economic benefits of certain
subsidiaries through the Structured Contracts.

The Group considers that it controls these subsidiaries,
notwithstanding the fact that it does not hold direct
equity interest in the certain subsidiaries, as it has
power over the financial and operating policies of the
certain subsidiaries and receives substantially all of
the economic benefits from the business activities
of the certain subsidiaries through the Structured
Contracts. Accordingly, the certain subsidiaries have
been accounted for subsidiaries during the year.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Income tax

Significant judgment is required in interpreting the
relevant tax rules and regulations so as to determine
whether the Group is subject to corporate income
tax in respect of income from provision of formal
educational services. This assessment relies on
estimates and assumptions and may involve a series
of judgments about future events. New information
may become available that causes the Group to
change its judgment regarding the adequacy of the tax
liabilities. Such changes to tax liabilities will impact
the tax expense in the period that such determination
is made.

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
year, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below:
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4.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in the production and provision of
services, or from a change in the market demand for
the product or service output of the asset, expected
usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear,
care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment are different from
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each of the year based
on changes in circumstances. Further details of the
property, plant and equipment are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
education services in the PRC.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reporting about components of the Group that
are reqgularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance. The
information reported to the directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision-makers, for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of performance does not contain discrete operating
segment financial information and the directors
reviewed the financial results of the Group as a whole.
Therefore, no further information about the operating
segment is presented.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

During the year, the Group operated within one
geographical location because all of its revenue was
generated in the PRC and all of its long-term assets/
capital expenditure were located/incurred in the PRC.
Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

No revenue from sales to a single customer amounted
to 10% or more of the total revenue of the Group
during the year.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the values of services rendered
during the year.
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An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from
continuing operations is as follows:
20176 20165
2017 2016
AR®T T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue
Tuition fees 380,711 310,678
Boarding fees 33,694 30,318
414,405 340,996
Other income and gains
Service income* 84,931 45,965
Rental income 10,456 6,436
Foreign exchange gains, net 22,306 -
Government grants 6,995 2,917
Interest income 2,808 1,415
Investment income - 2,875
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 29) - 758
Others 1,251 493
128,347 60,859

HZE2017F12831 A L EEMNRB I
HEEREEERER ([RLER])
HAEEN-—IMBLARTLNE
REMBREREBEZHABZBETH
HRWRKEE A A K ¥30,300,0007T
(20164 : AE#513,500,0007T ) LA K54
TREERMEER ([EHER])
HAEEN-—IMBLATTLNE
REMBREREBEZHABZBETH
HBRANWRKE A A K ¥13,600,0007T

(20165 1 £&) »

Service income for the year ended 31 December 2017 included
service fee recognised under the exclusive technical service
and management consultancy agreement between the Harbin
Huade University (“Northeast School”) and a subsidiary of the
Group amounting to RMB30.3 million (2016: RMB13.5 million),
and service fee recognised under the exclusive technical service
and management consultancy agreement between Science and
Technology College of Hubei Minzu University (“Central China
School”) and a subsidiary of the Group amounting to RMB13.6
million (2016: Nil).
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B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

7. BERAX 7. FINANCE COSTS
BFEREXEBEENRMERAE An analysis of finance costs from continuing
DHWT operations is as follows:

20174 20164

2017 2016

AR T AR¥ET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

IRITERFE Interest on bank loans 43,197 41,362

MEHREFRE Interest on finance lease - 2,497

I IEE N FEFTA Total interest expense on

EnEsmasdm financial liabilities not at fair

FERZAEE value through profit or loss 43,197 43,859

A T B Less: Interest capitalised (3,643) (7,770)

39,554 36,089
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8.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

R %t Al & A 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEEFERLEEBMBERE The Group’s profit before tax from continuing
AR F T EHIBR, (5FA) K operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
THRERBEN:
20174 20165
2017 2016
Kz AR¥Tr AR¥Tx
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BERABEX Employee benefit expense
(FTBREER (excluding directors’ and
B = 1T A & % chief executive’s
(HEE09)) - remuneration (Note 9)):
ITERFS Wages and salaries 129,997 128,177
EBHREFTEIHER Pension scheme
(EEHAXFED contributions (defined
contribution plan) 15,333 14,866
145,330 143,043
ME- -BMER Depreciation of items of
REEBIFE property, plant and
equipment 32,374 33,259
REMERE Depreciation of investment
properties 906 904
FE T LI E KA Amortisation of prepaid
55 land lease payments 2,263 2,251
CIQEsE il Amortisation of software* 2,448 1,595
HEla Rental income 6 (10,456) (6,436)
KEHET Minimum lease payments
RIEHEERE under operating leases 5,075 4,596
= e Interest income 6 (2,808) (1,415)
EARE-EZER Provision for prepayments,
Hih W R E&RE deposits and other
receivables 167 496
HENE BER Gain on disposal of items
HBIEA WIS of property, plant and
equipment = (125)
REERNBRGEBETAGSES R * The amortisation of software during the year is included in “Cost of
[E8ERA o sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

EENRBESTHASHMN

Ak BV EECKRMIREE
R 4 2016588198 &
ZEAARQABTES -BE
FEEE BEXREERBEFYF
FHER017FIA20EZEA
KARBILFBITEET -HE
WA ER2017F12H22BES
EFPAEEEARARABEBILIE
HITES - HE2016F12831H
FTFEHEAREMER AA
B EEMIBELIEHITES -

RIELETHREFBQIEH
55383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) R (N A & &
A(HEEEFEER) BHE
I BECAFEEERRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Mr. Li, Mr. Zhao Shuai, Mr. Zhu Lidong and Mr. Zhang
Ke were appointed as executive directors of the
Company on 19 August 2016. Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson, Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis, Mr. Chung Yue
Ping Stephen were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 20 March
2017. Mr. Hu Jianbo succeeded Mr. Chung Yue Ping
to the independent non-executive director of the
Company on 22 December 2017. The Company did
not have any independent non-executive directors at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

THRAEHMUOT Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is
as follows:
20174 20164
2017 2016
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Fees 547 -
HAi sR B Other emoluments:
e EMR Salaries, allowances and
EYEF benefits in kind 2,043 1,963
RIBAEBEICA Performance related bonuses 1,400 1,481
BRIKESFTEIMER Pension scheme contributions 44 44
4,034 3,488
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9.

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

BEERERSITHAEEMH 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
() REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
A BIAIFHITESE (A) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
REAFEAZNFFBILIE The fees paid to independent non-executive
BITESHNHEESOT: directors during the year were as follows:
20174 20164
2017 2016
AR¥T T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERELEE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 167 -
BEXRESE Mr. Wong Man Chung Francis 213 -
BFELELE Mr. Chung Yue Ping Stephen 161 -
REIE £ % Mr. Hu Jianbo 6 -
547 -
RAFER MEREDQE There were no other emoluments payable to the
VBT EETITWEAM independent non-executive directors during the
BN (20165 1 &) o year (2016: Nil).

2017 ANNUAL REPORT #3 239



BB RMTE (BF017F12831ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

9. EERERSITHAEHMH 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
(&) REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(B) BMITESE (B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Year ended 31 December 2017
BR20ITENANBLEE
Salaries,
allowance,  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Fe EMR RBEE Bihed
we BYEA A H"; @zt

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

T4 M, Li * = 520 520 1 1,051
A EE Mr. Zhao Shuai - 44 360 1 812
AUIREHE Mr. Zhu Lidong = 601 200 1 812
RALE Mr. Zhang Ke - 481 320 1 812

= 2,043 1,400 44 3,487

Year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016E12831AILEE
Salaries,
allowance,  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fee in kind honuses  contributions Total
e 28Kk REEE BAR&iE
e  BUEA A R @t

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R Mr. Li * - 520 520 11 1,051
el b Mr. Zhao Shuai - 441 360 11 812
RIREHE Mr. Zhu Lidong - 601 200 1 812
RALE Mr. Zhang Ke - 401 401 1 813
- 1,963 1,481 44 3,488
A HERATHITES * Mr. Li, who acts as an executive director of the Company,
FRERATEESTE - ER is also the chief executive officer of the Company. There

[ was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
G4 2% ) = . . . N .
WREZHFHEESNRSTH executive waiver or agreed to waive any remuneration during

AERERRZHETMENE - the year.
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10, A2 REHFMES

REAEER AEES H W
BEEEOREIBEE (20165 : 4
Z) HEMFBEHN LXK
9B T1& (2016F : 1R) A&
ANRAIEEYRSTHAENR

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017)

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included 4 directors (2016: 4), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details
of the remaining 1 (2016: 1) highest paid employee
who is neither a director nor chief executive of the

SHFMEEFBUT Company are as follows:
20175 20164
2017 2016
AR® T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000

e 2R Salaries, allowances and

EVREF benefits in kind 304 304
RIBMHEBIEA Performance related bonuses 304 304
BIKEFTEHER Pension scheme contributions 11 11
619 619

FMNFUTHENFESR
FBESTRAENRSFHHE
BEHENT:

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employee whose remuneration fell within
the following band is as follows:

20175 20165
2017 2016
Z % AK®1,000,0007T Nil to RMB1,000,000 1 1

REAFER BERSHMNE
ERRIRZHRREMEHHN
REBTEQEMNAERSH
MESE XN EMHFMERRSE
A S BN I A AR SR Y 2R B
HERBEREE-

During the year, no highest paid employees waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration and no
remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.
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B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

1. TEH

ARARE (EFHERARE)
RASESEMALSEHRR
BEREEQAF BHHBEAR
Frig#%i

HRAE B R F R I EEAR
BEBINE BRI ERSB
m A I ERE RN ERE
R

BRE(PEARANBIRBH
BlREZERMKN) ([Eieik
Pl EREREBESTER
FEOH - PYUEZHHUESR
TB-BRANAKREERE T
EXRCHEDHNRMRERSE
1 E 2 BN E AR E BB U
BEGE MEBKRTEAEE
MEABEETERARERSHE
CHERERNBNEZFE
RAABEBE A Bk B Al
ERIE A B E T E 5
BR EBRRBRB - REARQF
RXTHBEHRBERNBEIR
MERBREESNER &
MERKREFMERBRERL
UREEZEERBKETE

11. INCOME TAX

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and
accordingly is not subject to income tax.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits derived from
or earned in Hong Kong during the year.

According to the Implementation Rules for the Law for
Promoting Private Education (“Implementation Rules”),
private schools, whether requiring reasonable returns
or not, may enjoy preferential tax treatment. The
Implementing Rules provide that the private schools
for which the sponsors do not require reasonable
returns are eligible to enjoy the same preferential tax
treatment as public schools, and relevant authorities
under the State Council may introduce preferential tax
treatments and related policies applicable to private
schools requiring reasonable returns. To date, however,
no separate policies, regulations or rules have
been introduced by the authorities in this regard. In
accordance with the historical tax returns filed to the
relevant tax authorities and the confirmation obtained
therefrom, the Guizhou School and the Yunnan School
have historically enjoyed preferential tax treatment
since their establishment.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

1. rEH (&) 11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

RIFH S BB R KRB R
B mHENER LEME
MERKREMEBREHRZEHK
BRBAGSVRABWEZEFRE
BieBL  RERLEGRIEMHRS
BEHBRBEAERABRIAE
BB

BEATNCERSHRHET
RIE7E & B A & Y AE B B 75 0%
BRE15%st E o AR th 5 B
H2015F1B1H £ E2017F12
ABLE=FHHE HAREB
FENEXRBEEMESH
40% cE It RIFE=FEANE
BATMNBRCEMEHRBRE
AB9% WA BH018FE=ZFR&FH
BEEHERRREZRI% -

H ity B B SR B A A B IR T5
REAEEEEMERLZER
MRITHERTE -

Based on the confirmations from the local tax bureaus
and the local offices of the State Administration of
Taxation, there was no corporate income tax imposed
on the income from the provision of formal educational
services of the Guizhou School and the Yunnan School.
As a result, no income tax expense was recognised for
the income from the provision of formal educational
services during the year.

The corporate income tax rate for Huihuang Company
is 15% based on the relevant tax regulations of Tibet
Autonomous Region. The Tibet local government has
exempted 40% of corporate income tax payable from
enterprises in Tibet Autonomous Region for a period
of three years commencing from 1 January 2015 to
31 December 2017. Therefore the effective corporate
income tax rate of 9% applicable for Huihuang
Company for the last three years will be returned
to 15% beginning in 2018 when the three year
preferential tax exemption expires.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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BB RMTE (BF017F12831ALLEE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

. FniE®t (&

AEBFREHAXHNEZANK
BT

11.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The major components of income tax expense of the
Group are as follows:

20174 20164

2017 2016

AR T AR¥ET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BIER Fr S B Current income tax

— R E A i — Mainland China 12,659 2,358

EFERIE (B72E26) Deferred tax (note 26) 3,975 -

FRABEZ HERE Total tax charge for the year 16,634 2,358
BERRNBIREXREBOHE AT A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
FrER BN EER RFTE before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in

AY BR B A1 g A 8 A R BEIR B X

HZERNEFTENHIERX
HER URZEZEREXEERH
ZEWEBRWT -

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the statutory tax rates to
the effective tax rates, are as follows:
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11.

Frig® (&)

BB R (BE017F12831A LFE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

RELEXBRER

BLAT R R

Profit before tax from
continuing operations

REERRITEMSHIE Tax at the statutory rate

HHERAEAR
HAHEARTZ
AHbEE

BEEOREHKE
BETNREHRE
BARBBA
RBEFENEES
PR AR

RBEFEH R
BEER

AERHHEBR
RUEHNEREE

BRANBEX

BRASEERAZ
STENBEX

Effect of withholding tax

on earnings remitted and
anticipated to be remitted

by subsidiaries

Lower tax rates for specific

provinces or enacted
by local authority
Income not subject to tax
Adjustments in respect
of current tax of
previous years
Tax losses utilised from
previous years
Tax losses and deductible

temporary differences not

recognised
Expenses not deductible
for tax

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

2017F 20165
2017 2016

ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

249,956 112,889
62,489 25.0 28,223 25.0
7,314 2.9 - -
(7,038) 2.8) (1,860) (1.6)
(103,601) (41.4) (85,009) (75.3)
20 — - -
(3,321) (1.3) - -
7,408 3.0 14,958 13.3
53,363 21.3 46,046 40.8
16,634 6.7 2,358 2.1
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2. DRILIEEER

R2016F6A  RAREMES
BRAELHEEPRERZRTER
¥ERREEZERMEERZ
BERFERRELEETERS
BERAF -AEKEERER LB
X¥ERBE UEEHRERE
EeEE2RHERT - LER
PAERARPERELERRERS
BEEAABREEBERE N8A
FER °

B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In June 2016, the Company announced the decision of
its board of directors to dispose of Kunming Science
and Technology Vocation College and Yunnan Einsun
Science and Technology College to Songming Zhonghe
Enterprise Management Consulting Co. Ltd. The Group
has decided to cease its vocational education service
because it plans to focus its resources on its formal
higher education service. The disposal of Kunming
Science and Technology Vocation College and Yunnan
Einsun Science and Technology College was completed
in August.
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12. CRIEREXEE (EF)
ERERAPEREERRE
HERARMREECEREZ

20165 12B31H L EEE£E W

T

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED)

The results of Kunming Science and Technology
Vocation College and Yunnan Einsun Science and
Technology College for the year ended 31 December
2016 are presented below:

20176 20165
2017 2016
AR¥T T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue - 2,029
$HE R A Cost of sales -~ (787)
Hi iz R IE s Other income and gains - 8,668
HERDHMAX Selling and distribution expenses — (1,341)
ITHREX Administrative expenses — (399)
HAiBe Other expenses — (7,599)
B IEEEERRA  Profit from the discontinued
operations - 571
HEBRERIER Gain on disposal of disposal
EEBINHE group constituting the
#H Bl 1T & discontinued operations — 1,267
ERIEREEK Profit before tax from
BR %L Al & A the discontinued operations - 1,838
Fr8®t: Income tax:
B AR A B B Related to pre-tax profit - (172)
EBARIEREETE Profit for the year from
F &= F the discontinued operations —~ 1,666
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B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

12. ERILEREXEK (&) 12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED)
ERBRERPEREBRRKE The net cash flows incurred by Kunming Science
EMEEAABRECEREEN and Technology Vocation College and Yunnan Einsun
REREFHNT : Science and Technology College are as follows:

20174 20164

2017 2016

ARET T ARBTF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

K& TEE Operating activities — 1,219

REED Investing activities - 11

HWERANFEE Net cash inflow = 1,230
13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS

20174 20164

2017 2016

ARETF T ARBTF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

RER—EREIEMR  Interim — RMBO0.021 (2016: Nil)

AE¥0.0217T per ordinary share
(20164 : #%) 30,053 -
EERAH -8R Proposed final — RMB0.025
BB ARB0.0257C  (2016: Nil) per ordinary share
(20164 : ##) 35,778 -
65,831 -
FRAEBZAREREENERR The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
HAFAES FE&KRNTKREH the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
EBELAEE- forthcoming annual general meeting.
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

4. BRAREERKRRELER 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

27
EREXABNESEIRBEFR
BAREBRRREGSENR
F A M1,347,619,16788 (2016
F:1,144,870,4590% ) B B 1T &
B INEFIIEETE -

BEREBERENESEIOIREFA
BLRAEBERRREARNG
B ERAANEERME
FHBRITEBRERNERNR
ANFRERTHERREE
DR BREBRMEFDHR
FERBEEINEBRMA
ERETEIABAEBERED
UERERAET

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average numbers of ordinary shares of 1,347,619,167
(2016: 1,144,870,459) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

14 BAAEERBRRELER
B2 (&)

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(CONTINUED)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per

BREAKBERNNTED

2R share are based on:
20174 20164
2017 2016
AR¥ET AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZF Earnings
BAEEBERRE Profit attributable to ordinary
P& A 35 F equity holders of the parent 233,368 111,755
20174 20164
B 14 Shares
FREBITEBER Weighted average number of
InREF 5 ordinary shares in issue during
the year 1,347,619,167 1,144,870,459
BERER Earnings per share

HEAK#E (AK®) Basic and Diluted (RMB) 0.17 0.10
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B M RME (BE017FE12A3NBLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

Sl -
15. ME - -BERRZRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2017512A31H 31 December 2017

BT HEXE "E  RAREE ETRE ERIR b
Leasehold Furniture and Electronic Construction
Buildings  improvements  Motor vehicles fixtures devices in progress Total
ARBTR ARMTR AR¥Trn ARETz ARETr AR%Tn ARET:n
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RO17E1A18: At1 January 2017:

2% Cost 785,631 4,868 9,356 71,343 37,245 81,559 990,002

EHEiN- Accumulated depreciation (63,328) (2,454) (5,814) (32,832 (18,334) - (122,762)

EHFE Net carrying amount 722,303 2,414 3,542 38,511 18,911 81,559 867,240
R017E1B18 At 1 January 2017,

SHRZHTE net of accumulated depreciation 722,303 2,414 3,542 38,511 18,911 81,559 867,240
RE Additions 19,091 - 1,278 14,208 8,943 123,335 166,855
ERGHRIE Depreciation provided during the year (16,978) (497) (1,443) (7,786) (5,670) - (32,374)
ERpHEIR Transfers from construction in progress 177,182 - - - - (177,182) -
ERERENE Transfer to investment properties (16,420) = - - = - (16,420)
R2017E12A318 At 31 December 2017,

BNBRRHTE net of accumulated depreciation 885,178 1,917 3377 44,933 22,184 27,712 985,301
R2017E12A318 At 31 December 2017:

B Cost 965,484 4,868 10,634 85,418 45,724 21,112 1,139,840

itE Aecumulated depreciation (80,306) (2,951) 7.257) (40,485 (23,540) - (154539)
FHFE Net carrying amount 885,178 1,917 3,377 44,933 22,184 21,7112 985,301
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B |RM T (BE017F12831 B LLFE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

15. M%E - -BERSKE (&)

2016512 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

31 December 2016

R016E1A1A:
BA
FEHRE

REFE

R016E1R18
ENBRIE
HE
heE
HETRIEEEER
HENBLR (Ai29)
FRITRITE
ERAERIE
ERERENE

0165128318
ENREIE

R016512A31R
HA
FithE

REFE

At 1 January 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2016,

net of accumulated depreciation
Additions
Disposals
Disposal of discontinued operations
Disposal of subsidiaries (ofe 29)
Depreciation provided during the year
Transfers from construction in progress
Transfer to investment properties

At 31 December 2016,
net of accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2016:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

EF BEEE RE RAR%E ET%E EEIR @z
Leasehold Furniture and Electronic Construction
Buildings improvements ~ Motor vehicles fixtures devices in progress Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
626,423 3,985 7,840 62,783 35,393 91,464 827,888
(49,455) (2,921) (4,528) (26,258) (16,456) - (99,618)
576,968 1,064 3,312 36,525 18,937 91,464 728,210
576,968 1,064 3,312 36,525 18,937 91,464 728,210
4707 3211 1,616 9,613 12,115 147,138 178,466
_ - - (139) 81) - (219
- (184) (56) (258) (2,094) - (2,592)
- (682) - (215) (21) - (918)
(13,874) (1,061) (1,330) (7,049) (9,945) - (33,259)
154,502 - - 3 - (154,535) -
- - - - - (2,508) (2,508)
722,303 2,414 3,542 38,611 18,911 81,559 867,240
785,631 4,868 9,35 71,343 37,245 81,559 990,002
(63,328) (2,454 (5,814) (32,832 (18,334) - (122,762)
722,303 2,414 3,542 38,611 18,911 81,559 867,240
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16.

ME BEERE (&)

2017 12A31H  EREFE

BB R (BE017F12831A LFE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The application for the property ownership

B ANRKRM®122,416,565.987T certificates for certain buildings with net book values
(2016F M )NETREFN®E of approximately RMB122,416,565.98 as at 31
EYEFTBERESE- December 2017 (2016: Nil) was still in progress.
REYE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
20174 20164
2017 2016
AR T T AR®F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FUNEREE Carrying amount at beginning of
the year 31,817 30,213
EREREYE KR Transfer from property,
R E plant and equipment 16,420 2,508
FRIFTRTE Depreciation provided during
the year (906) (904)
FARMKRAE Carrying amount at end of
the year 47,331 31,817
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16. REWXE (&)

TEBNREVEATERE
RREMNEREVEREEER
BENEBFRLHE - RXATE
ECREBEEVENHEE - $E
KEBEERENEAEBEY
¥ oA2017F 128318 & &
BHWREMEERBILIYWEM
EMETHNHEEGAARY
143,300,0007T °

ZRENMERBEEHENHE
FTE=H HE-IBRABR
EEAYHRKRMEES2 -

NFEER

TRAPBEAEERENENR
FEFERA:

B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s investment properties are the buildings
and land leased as canteen and shops in the Yunnan
School and the Guizhou School. The Directors of
the Company have determined that the investment
properties are commercial properties, based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The
Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2017, based on valuations performed by an
independent property valuer, at RMB143,300,000.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 32 to financial statements.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties:

DFEFEEMNERE © Assets for which fair values

are disclosed:
[EE3/ES Commercial properties

AVEHE
R2017E12831 B TR EE

Fair value measurement
As at 31 December 2017 using

RERBMSE EARTEE EAFTERE
N&RE BARE BAYE
(5-%) (£=4) (B=4R) At
Significant Significant
Quoted prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTRT AR%®Tx
RMB'’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
- - 143,300 143,300
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

16. REW= (&) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

AFESE
F2016F 12831 B BT A 8115
Fair value measurement
As at 31 December 2016 using

RERTS BEATHEE EXTIEER
HRE BAHE BAHE

(£-%) (E=H) (B=8) A&t

Significant Significant

Quoted prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETT ARBTRT ARETR AR%ETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

DFEFUIREMNEE : Assets for which fair values
are disclosed:

[GE3/ES Commercial properties - - 99,523 99,523
REBEMBAREREEL A FE Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
NDEAREEFRANAMERE estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits
MaraEhREaE (B8R and liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life
BLHBEIREKERE) - ZH LY including an exit or terminal value. This method
REYERD — RS fﬁ%iﬁ% involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
MFER miBEITENEREEE property interest. A market-derived discount rate is
AREANRERE LMEﬁE_LEEi applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish
EEEBENKERNEBEE-R the present value of the income stream associated
WX BEERERETAES with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately

AIABEIR =R o determined and differs from the discount rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

16.

17.

REW=E (&)
BERENFERBARAAR
REMBEEBKBEBIAZEWNEAS
M HEEEKEBEEE.
ERYHBHSESEHNRE-ER
SERBZIHSETRA(BYE
BRI —EBE) TE - TR
ERERBUREHRZE T
AEKREN - WRIEX -HER
B-#EE8H REKAEER
RHMEEREEE MG
Z—RINERKEE RN FEAE
BENBAHRATHRRE
BT BEERE.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing
of inflows and outflows are determined by events such
as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting,
redevelopment or refurbishment. The appropriate
duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic
cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease
incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission
costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along
with an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at
the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

ML HBEENRE 17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
20174 20165
2017 2016
AR®ET Tt AR®TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHREE Carrying amount at beginning of
the year 99,173 103,030
FRAE Additions during the year — 153
FR#EHE Amortisation during the year (2,263) (2,251)
HEKHE A A Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29)
(K1at29) - (1,759)
FARIREAE Carrying amount at end of
the year 96,910 99,173

ZEHEIHURFPEA M
TIRRABNFE-

These pieces of leasehold land are located in Mainland
China and are held under long term leases.
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BB R (BE017F12831A LFE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

18. Htt R EE 18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
LIS
Software
AR¥F T
RMB’000
20175128318 31 December 2017
M2017F1 B1H B S » Cost at 1 January 2017,

KA BR 2511 8 net of accumulated amortisation 8,318
wNE Additions 5,257
FRFHIEEE Amortisation provided during the year (2,448)
20175128318 At 31 December 2017 11,127
20175128318 : At 31 December 2017:

X AR Cost 17,050

Rt Accumulated amortisation (5,923)

REFE Net carrying amount 11,127
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

18. b ELEE (&)

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

20165128318

20161 B1H IR A »
KPR E ST 8

B

FRcHR#E

HEDKRIEEE £

HEMWB AR (Hit29)

2016512831 H
20165128318 :
5N
E- g £

fREFE

31 December 2016
Cost at 1 January 2016,

net of accumulated amortisation
Additions
Amortisation provided during the year
Disposal of discontinued operations
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29)

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Eg
Software
AR®TF T
RMB’000

4,921
5,875
(1,595)
(23)
(860)

8,318

11,793
(3,475)

8,318
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19. HtERBEE

BB R (BE017F12831A LFE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

19. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

REFEMN IR
(BTEz())

+ it TR R

Hib B EEEN

IR
W% BERRE
AN

Prepayment for investments
(note (1))

Prepayment for land use rights

Prepayment for other intangible
assets

Prepayment for property,
plant and equipment

20175 20164
2017 2016

AR T T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,019,667 679,571
155,130 40,000
1,659 797

9,517 217
1,185,973 720,585

Batn): BEBREDRERKBIEZRMN
BHHF O HF AR #331,865,0007T
DRERLERNEHET AR
#587,802,000 Tt NIREEFER
HH R R AR #100,000,00073 4
B EMACAREHBERNEH

=h
FA °

Note (i): The amount represents the down payment for investments
and acquisition of new schools, of which RMB331,865,000
is the down payment for acquisition of Northeast School,
RMB587,802,000 is the down payment for investment on Central
China School and RMB100,000,000 is the down payment for
acquisition of Xinjiang Institute of Finance and Economics.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

20. ERE -REREMEWR 20.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

FIE RECEIVABLES
20175 20165
2017 2016
AR® T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FENEERHEA Prepaid rent and other prepaid
ENEA expenses 2,541 9,442
BN HAEYWFIE  Advance and other receivables 69,742 24,352
BEITEX Staff advances 757 755
BE R EMEUWMIE Deposits and other miscellaneous
FIE receivables 15,626 15,967
88,666 50,516
ZEFEAREREK T RIE The amounts are interest-free and are not secured
Ko with collateral.

T EERMEBHRIRE £
MEBREENEREEETH
I 48 80 H R SR Y FE IR IE B B -

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.
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B M RME (BE017FE12A3NBLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

CBRERBEEEYREEF 21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

X DEPOSITS
20174 20164
2017 2016
KraE AR® T AR¥T T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ReRIBITER Cash and bank balances 73,648 123,785
EHEFER Time deposits 75,000 107,749
148,648 231,534
B IRITERW Less: Pledged deposits
2EBFR for bank loans 24 (30,000) (52,749)
RERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 118,648 178,785
SHEME: Denominated in:
AR RMB 109,801 167,023
Ey UsD 4,686 11,762
B T HKD 4,161 -
HehBREeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 118,648 178,785
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

2. RERBEESEEYRCEKF
FR(E)

RER AEBUAREEG
BENEERERBITESHRAAR
#£109,801,0007c (20164 :
167,023,000) - AR ¥ T EE B H
HBREMER - A RIBEF
COPNEEEERA) K (GEE -
EERNESEBEE) XK&
EEBERELSEIINEER
MEBTEAREZABAEME

o

ROTAECERBEBARTER
MERFENFHNRT R -E
HEMEFRNERHERTFEAE
BRI EFRMAB AR
Wiz % B R EREFERANERE
B-RITEHRRECERERT
FRREEIHENTHEARE
ERIFHRIT

22. EIEW A

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB109,801,000 (2016: RMB167,023,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

22. DEFERRED REVENUE

28

EBEE

Tuition fees
Boarding fees

20176 20164
2017 2016

AR® T AR®FT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
224,629 195,718
24,970 21,329
249,599 217,047

SERREREXRRE R REHAIR
BIRBERBLL AR

The students are entitled to the refund of the
payments in relation to the proportionate services not
yet provided.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

23. HENREREGTER 23.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

20175 20164
2017 2016
AR® T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BEYE -BE Payables for purchase of property,
BB R plant and equipment 19,029 32,286
FEETIEA R EERE  Accrued bonus and social
insurance 42,380 46,179
o 24 I EN R 18 Miscellaneous expenses received
BH (MaE0)) from students (Note (i) 63,016 67,524
H{th FE S FK 18 Other payables 64,014 86,146
FETE R Accrued expenses 4,544 8,127
192,983 240,262
LRI ERBER AR The above balances are unsecured and

RER BRERBANIES H
ENFEREFERNERE
EHEEQFEES-

Wan): ERREDWRNBESENMEE
A BREBEEX -

non-interest-bearing. The carrying amount of
other payables and accruals at the end of the year
approximated to their fair value due to their short term
maturity.

Note (i): The amount represents the miscellaneous expenses received from
students which will be paid out on behalf of students.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

> /= I
24, SFER|ITRHEMERK 24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
W17% 216%
217 2016
BBAZ©Y) IE  ARETn  BERAERWY IH  ARETR
Effective interest Effective interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
B Current
BEARTEX Bank loans - secured 5.22%-6.86% 2018 152,819 457% 2017 80,000
0185
RAGEARTEDNABES Current portion of long term bank loans - secured 4.75%-7.13% 2018 55,000 5.70%-7.13% 017 22,500
20185
207,819 102,500
FEH Non-current
BRARTER Bank loans - secured 4.75%-7.13% 2019 144,440 Libor*+3.3% 218 493,968
20198
144,440 493,968
REBAK Transaction costs = (17,840)
144,440 476,128
352,259 578,628
I I
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BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

24, SFERITREMER (F) 24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20176 20164
2017 2016
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Al Analyzed into:
EEEZERTER: Bank loans repayable:
R—FR Within one year 207,819 102,500
REZ In the second year 144,440 476,128
352,259 578,628
LIBOREE fm R TR EF B - Ik BICE * Libor, the London Interbank Offered Rate, which is the average
Benchmark AdministrationE {E{a] & % B interest rate for short-term interbank loans that is calculated on any
STEMRITRERPERFHIRE. business day by the ICE Benchmark Administration.
FFERITERHTIZIELE All of the bank loans are jointly secured and pledged
fEL BRI by:
() EMAEAFAGEZAE () 80% equity interest of Yunnan Daai Fangzhou
PR A B BY80% PR #E ; Information Consultancy Co., Ltd.:
(i) tREREHEREER (i) all shares of Beijing Aiyinsheng Education
EXQTANEIHKRM Investment Co.,Ltd.;
(i) MSEFQ T EI70%HR FE ; (i) 70% equity interest of Haxuan Company;
(ivy RAREEZTEEREBEME (iv) personal guarantees executed by Mr. Li, a
Bt (IBzt] =% director of the Company, and Ms. Yang Xuging
S 2EBREB)BEINMEAE (“Ms. Yang”, spouse of Mr. Li) (note 34);

& (FEEE34) 5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

24, SFERITREMMER (F) 24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

V) AABESBFTLEEFDN (v) corporate guarantees executed by subsidiaries
AEENBARELHNA of the Group, which are controlled by Mr. Li, a
AR R director of the Company; and

vy REBWERS R2017F (v deposits of the Group with an amount of
12A3HEEAARYE RMB30,000,000 at as 31 December 2017 (2016:
30,000,0007T (20164 = A RMB52,749,000).

R #52,749,0007T) °
25. IEFE N &= 25. DEFERRED INCOME
20174 20165
2017 2016
AR¥E T AR®F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

REA] At beginning of year 32,634 24,352

FRAE Additions during the year 6,686 28,161

HE Disposal -~ (13,128)

BABR Released to profit or loss (6,595) (6,751)

R F R At end of year 32,725 32,634

B - BN ER R 19 Less: Current portion (4,088) (2,122)

JE BN HA R Non-current portion 28,637 30,512

EEWREMREBEBEEEEH Deferred income represents the government grants

BB BRT#E A RER received for subsidies in connection with certain

HEXZFEENENIEEE- leasehold improvements and the excess amount

ZEBRBEONREBEENTE arising from sales and lease back transactions. These

A EAFHRBAEBR government grants are released to profit or loss over

the expected useful lives of the relevant assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

26. i fE B IR 26. DEFERRED TAX

AEEASEEZEES S
BEWT :

The movement in deferred liabilities of the Group
during the year is as follow:

HKE AR
TEHARE A
BAzAAB
Withholding

tax on

the earnings
anticipated to

be remitted

by subsidiaries

20175

2017

AR¥T

RMB’000

20171 B1H At 1 January 2017 -

TEERAREBERR Deferred tax charged to the statement of

A 0 BR BY IR FE L 1E profit or loss during the year 3,975
2017512831 HHKY  Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2017

BEEBIEEEHE 3,975

REC(PEZEAREMEI D ZERN
BEE) RHPBE AL
SERELERIIEREEES
KB BR B A IR10%% R & 40 78
MH - ZREEH2008F1H1H &
£ BE AR2007F12A831H
BB R o fif BB At KN R
BEEREEBIT LB WG E
AR BEENFBEFR A
EEMmME BABEEA10% -H
o AEERZERTE R
XS #Y B B A B B 200841 A1
HEFMEEEN 2RO KRB
ANTFEIHL -

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

26. IEZERE (&)

27.

20175128318 AEERR
REURNEREE THER A
FEHEABMZHBELERS
e E AR%ES3 9750005 (2016
F.8|) RITABERRVR2017F &
HETHEBARDIRER 2
FEHB A E ARYS 339,000t
(20165 : ) - R &R & B & 3R
rKERNSBEN SEJES
BEHTENBARREM TS
ROTRHEREAIIERBREE
MEFFENHNARK0048
Bt (2006 172388 )&
RELEBE- ZEERB 258
TEMNESREEPE A AR
AEERENER HLLAEE
=N D A =R OF = T
TERRZERTRA -

HZEEBEBIIHESEER
—BEBENMNBAREER
RABTAATREERRN &
A AERERIEEE R
AMZEBEEAN2017F12
AIWEMNEZEMEBEE ARYK
73,677,0007C (20165 : AR ¥
69,757,0007T ) °

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recognised
relevant deferred income tax liabilities of RMB3,975
thousand (2016: Nil) on earnings anticipated to be
remitted by certain subsidiaries in the foreseeable
future, and also recognised withholding tax liabilities of
RMB3,339 thousand (2016:Nil) on earnings distributed
by certain subsidiaries in 2017 interim. Other than
the amount recognised in the consolidated financial
statement, deferred tax has not been recognised for
withholding taxes for the earnings of approximately
RMB300.4 million (2016: RMB172.3 million) expected
to be retained by the PRC subsidiaries and not to
be remitted to a foreign investor in the foreseeable
future. In the opinion of the Directors, such remaining
earnings will be retained in Mainland China for the
expansion of the Group’s operation, so it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
remaining earnings in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets amounting to RMB73,677,000 as
at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB69,757,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against the taxable
losses which can be utilised.

B 2 27. SHARE CAPITAL
20176 20165
2017 2016
AR T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
CEITRHE Issued and fully paid:
1,431,100,000 1,431,100,000
% & B AR (2016 5F (2016: 1,431,100,000)
1,431,100,0004%) ordinary shares 983 -
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BB HERRMTE (BFE017F12831ALEE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

RRARWRASER M T A summary of movements in the Company’s share
capital is as follows:
20174
2017
g 4= o] o]
Number of
shares Amount Amount
ARBT R
FER ZE
RMB’000
usD’000 Equivalent
2 Registered: 2,000,000,000 200 1,355
ERITRHRE: Issued and fully paid:
R2017FE1 A18 At 1 January 2017 14,311 - =
B RMDBEER  Capitalization of
share premium
account 1,144,865,689 114 786
BITH RO Issue of new shares 286,220,000 29 197
2017512 831H At 31 December 2017 1,431,100,000 143 983
28. f# & 28. RESERVES

REBRAKAFEARNFEEHE
FESBEBEMBRRNGEER
mRBRANZS

BEXRf#FE
AEBHNENRBRE RSB
BLoaRERESE ANRAKN
EE-RAFEANREEARE
BB A RRERESE AR
IEBECHERAE (R25 &
FPHHLEMBARRH*
BHFLEROAREHNA
HEES) - AN FEERNBNRE
REBUWEEZF £ m L E 2
TEBEHRWEBARRES
RHEEFRERD

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity of the
financial statements.

CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions from the then equity holders of the
Group’s subsidiaries. The additions during the year
represent the injection of additional paid-up capital by
the then equity holders of the Group’s subsidiaries,
which were consolidated from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the subsidiaries and/
or businesses first came under the common control
of Mr. Li. The deduction during the year represents
the decrease in the Group’s net assets resulting from
the acquisition of equity interests in subsidiaries from
Mr. Li for businesses combination under common
control.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

28. f#fE (&)
EZEREMEEGFE

REBEFBEBEBEELZE XAFMN
FEIM B A B S DR R
MoBzEfraskiFE:S (A
BEeHEHEBETEMBLARAN
EXTEET) ZEREBEIE()
BREMTE QAW — MR E K )
BERNERES-

)

RESFBEQXARELE XEH
ETHBAREAREDR
¥ AHREBEEBYTES
FEAFEENRBZ G
AME10%ERZHEZEW
TEBHREHRE BERE
ZINHZBETMELRMN
50% c EHF B A BEEE
TR&MHERT 3145
E B g A
HERLEBENESRTER
HMEARAI25% o

RIBHBKBBERER -
HRERSERRN R P
ER -ABBHERTD
R25%H A s (AR1E +E
NREHEUNEE) 2B
ERREZ-BRESH
RERWERREZIH
BRBHOREBAR

28. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
STATUTORY AND OTHER SURPLUS RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC shall make
appropriations from after-tax profit to non-distributable
reserve funds as determined by the boards of directors
of the relevant PRC subsidiaries. These reserves
include (i) general reserve of the limited liability
companies and (i) the development fund of schools.

)

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC, certain subsidiaries of the Group which are
domestic enterprises are required to allocate
10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting
standards, to their respective statutory surplus
reserves until the reserves reach 50% of their
respective registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the Company Law of the
PRC, part of the statutory surplus reserve may
be converted to share capital, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalization is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

According to the relevant PRC laws and
regulations, for private schools that require
reasonable returns, they are required to
appropriate to the development fund not less
than 25% of the net income of the relevant
schools as determined in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in
the PRC. The development fund is for the
construction or maintenance of the schools
or the procurement or upgrade of educational
equipment.
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29.

& K B 2 F]

MR2016F5831H  REB [ A
EENE=ZFHEHNESE
BERYEEBVHEBEATINE
MEE-ZEMHBELTEIEL
FEAEREEHEEFEGR AT
EHEIEVEREERQT
EREBEEALCEEEZHAER
AE - EHERZRESEEAERA
ABEMNEABEERRAREERR
EXQE EXNFRAIREER
ERAT -BMAHERERR
AR -BPHEREERL T
HEEMBERERBREEL
A-EERFAERATARILER

BB HERRMTE (BFE017F12831ALEE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 May 2016, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interests in the subsidiaries which were not
related to formal higher education to third parties of
the Group. These subsidiaries include Beijing Daai
Investment Management Group Co, Ltd., Kunming
Baifenbai Property Services Co., Ltd., Kunming Einsun
Enterprise Management Consulting Co. Ltd., Kunming
Einsun Advertising Co. Ltd., Guizhou Siboyuan
Education Investment Group Co., Ltd., Yunnan
Qingchuang Investment Management Co., Ltd., Shuren
Education Investment Co., Ltd., Wuhu Education
Investment Co., Ltd., Gansu Qihang Investment Co.,
Ltd., Heima Technology Co., Ltd. and Beijing United
Education Technology Co., Ltd.

BEMBBBENRERAT -

Wit 20174 20164
Notes 2017 2016
AR¥ETR AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
CHEEETME:  Netassets disposed of:
¥ BERKZME  Property, plant and
equipment 15 - 918
BeRIBITHER Cash and bank balances - 20,437
BERREREM Prepayments and other
FE Uk 5h 18 receivables - 167,170
VLW ERKIE  Prepaid land lease payments 17 - 1,759
HithBEEE Other intangible assets 18 — 860
FEETERREM Accruals and other payables
B RIE = (162,053)
EIEWA Deferred revenue — (103)
- 28,988
HEHRBA A Gain on disposal of
2 subsidiaries - 758
- 29,746
BUTHAXA:  Satisfied by:
B& Cash - 29,746
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29. HEWBLAR (&) 29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
FHEHENBEATIMNEERE An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
SEBYRAFEINAOT equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is

as follows:
20174 20164
2017 2016

AR®T T AR®ET T

RMB’000 RMB’000
ReRE Cash consideration — 29,746
EHERS Cash and bank balances
R IR 1T & &R disposed of — (20,437)
EBREEMBATAR Netinflow of cash and
HeRkBEEEE cash equivalents in respect of
RN FEE the disposal of subsidiaries - 9,309
30 KEBRERERHMFT 30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
A FEFRERSZ (A) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
RABRFEEINEFEEIH There were no major non-cash transactions
MERH o during the current financial year.
B) BEZBHEL-EES (B) CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
3] FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RITR
Hth 18 =K
Bank and
other loans
AR®T T
RMB’000
20171818 At 1 January 2017 578,628
FEBRESREZEE Changes from financing cash flows (226,369)
20175128318 At 31 December 2017 352,259
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3. WIBEXBHENKE LA 31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY THAT IS NOT

20158 H27TH - AEFHE R
BEARENRRIELEERE
BEBEEILIBERZE UE
BORBRITEREREQT
H968%M% #E - }R2015%F 9818 »
EEAAMNEMELRABAR
#50,000,000CEMME AR
300,000,000t 2 B AR EEHB
SEE AR %120,000,0007T @ 14
WERHEEE QAR T7T%IRE -
BEZWBEE BREARLE
#EATE M ZEF - R2016F6 8 -
AEBERBEEHZE —DE
& A R #84,000,0007T ° 742016
FUA AEEE— P FTER
SAR¥MNSEET WURK
B AR #570,0007T Y 38 S0 &
EEHENREQAT2UK MG
REAEBEFEREELTAN
82% MR 19 20178108 » A&
B LA 1B A B %71,000,0007T Uk
BEHEBLELEFEENEEAT
10.8%W k10 B AR QA FAFE
B #E D TE100%8R 14 e

HRASBEWBENEREIL T&
BREB MU ELEWRBEARA
AEBNEEWBSEE-

A BUSINESS

On 27 August 2015, the Group entered into a capital
increase agreement with Mr. Guo Hui and Mr. Jiang
Mingxue, the then shareholders of Enchang Company,
to acquire 68% equity interest in Enchang Company
via capital injection in phases. On 1 September 2015,
the registered capital of Enchang Company increased
from RMB50,000,000 to RMB300,000,000. Then
the Group injected RMB120,000,000, representing
77% equity interest in Enchang Company as of the
acquisition date. Up to the date of acquisition, Enchang
Company has not carried out any business. In June
2016, the Group further injected RMB84,000,000
in accordance with a capital increase agreement.
In November 2016, the Group further injected cash
of RMB41.55 million and acquired 0.2% of shares
of Enchang Company held by Mr. Guo Hui at a
consideration of RMB570,000, and the Group held
82% of shares of Enchang Company hereafter. In
October 2017, the Group acquired 10.8% of shares
of Enchang Company held by Mr. Jiang Mingxue at a
consideration of RMB71,000,000, and held 100% of
shares of Enchang company hereafter.

The above acquisition has been accounted for the
Group as an acquisition of assets as the entity
acquired by the Group does not constitute a business.
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3. WIBEERMENKHB LA
(#%&)
AEER LARZWBNFEE
EWMT:

31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY THAT IS NOT
A BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

The net assets acquired by the Group in the above
transaction are as follows:

B REE:
ReRhReSEY
BANRE -RE

Ko H Aty & WK TR
M- BEKRE
FERER

LT 5G4

B4 Cash

Satisfied by:

20176 20164
2017 2016
AR®T ARBFT T
RMB’000 RMB’000

Net assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents - 19
Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables —
Property, plant and equipment - 190
Non-controlling interests =

35,635

(35,844)
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31.

32.

WIBEXBHEENHNE QA
(#&)

EEWBRERE L AANEBEESRE
DHWMT :

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY THAT IS NOT
A BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of Enchang Company is as follows:

20175 20165
2017 2016
ARBET T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EERNNRE Cash and cash equivalents
LEEZEEY acquired — 19
EBEWEBEE ATR Netinflow of cash and cash
HeRkBEEEE equivalents in respect of
IR A FEE the acquisition of Enchang
Company - 19
FTARETE Transaction costs of the
EREREW acquisition included in cash
WEEEE R 5 KA flows from operating activities - -
- 19

REMERE
ERHEHEA

AEBERBEEEHEZHHE
HREWx HEWREHN
F-FENF-HERARER
TERBEFXAREBE LR
BERHREREESFLA

o

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
AS LESSOR

The Group leased its investment properties under
operating lease arrangement, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to eight years. The terms
of the leases generally also require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
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32. REMERE (&) 32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

ERHBAAN (&)

20178128318 » ZXEB B
FEMWEEAFEITNTITRE
HEREHEBETHWARRKEERA
EEWNREBAENT

(CONTINUED)
AS LESSOR (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

20175 20164
2017 2016
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 16,886 9,011
—F Uk After one year but not

BEFRHEBHRSF more than five years 21,613 10,567
EELE More than five years 280 600
38,779 20,178

ER &AM A AS LESSEE

AEBERBEEEHE 2 HEM
ETHRAEYRR P LORME-
MEEENEHEYPNF—=D
FoMPARBHAEBANF

—E=%o

The Group leases certain of its office properties and
office equipment under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to four years, and those for office equipment
are for terms ranging from one to three years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

32. KREHEEHRE (8F) 32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)
EREEA (K) AS LESSEE (CONTINUED)
R20175F128318  ZE BB $ At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future
AP TRHELEHEEET minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
MR R EREKEEE W RIEARRE operating leases falling due as follows:
mT
201746 20164
2017 2016

AR®TR ARBETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within one year 5,243 4,813
—FLE After one year but not

BERBBRAEF more than five years 4,790 7,519

10,033 12,332
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33. A&iE
Bk XM i EEHE
AEN REERETEERE
LT & AR &L !

33. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 32 above, the Group had the following
capital commitments as at the end of the year:

20176 20164
2017 2016
AR® T AREFT T
RMB’000 RMB’000

EHENEES T Contracted but not provided for:
ME -BMERKZE Property, plant and equipment 30,935 22 724
BE Investments 124,000 -
154,935 22 724

A2017F 128318 NEF I £
BEACREBERTHNEREKIE
(20165 : £E) ©

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant
capital commitment authorised but not contracted for
(2016: Nil).
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4. BB AR Z R &R

RKRABEZERR RAEFE MU
TRLS/PAAEAEEER
5 X, 45 B 1Y B8 Bk

A EEBLT2EMRIS:

WK 24PN B A EE A
THRHERITERBAARRF
EEFRERFTEENE
BELTHEER-

B) AEEXTEEEBAEMN

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following parties/companies are related parties that
had transactions or balances with the Group during
the year.

(A) OTHER TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

As set out in Note 24, certain of the Group’s
interest bank loans were jointly guaranteed by
Mr. Li, a director of the Company, and Ms. Yang,
spouse of Mr. Li.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT

B & PERSONNEL OF THE GROUP
20174 20164
2017 2016
AR® T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EHEERR Short term employee benefits 5,554 6,087
RIKEFHEIERK Contributions to the pension
scheme 91 103
5,645 6,190
EHEESERFETHAEMNE Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s

WiE—FHFEBER I EREMN
9 o

emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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3. EMIENDE
REAFER SEEHITAN
SREIEWMT :

M20175F12A31H

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the year were as
follows:

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

TREE Financial assets
BEXR
& W X 18
Loans and
receivables
AR Tt
RMB’000
T AFEASFRIE Financial assets included in prepayments,
e R HAMEWTIE deposits and other receivables
HWermEE 86,125
2R BFX Pledged deposits 30,000
REFEMNNRIE Prepayment for investments 1,019,667
RERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 118,648
1,254,440
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

3. TR TENSE (H&) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)
20175128318 (&) AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)
EA =R Financial liabilities
RS A BR
WeEmes
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR¥T
RMB’000
A H M FE A FRIE Financial liabilities included in other payables and
REGTERW accruals
THAE 150,603
T RBITREMMET  Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 352,259

502,862

2017 ANNUAL REPORT &3 281



282

B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

3. T ENDE (&) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)
20165128318 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
StREE Financial assets
EXRK
FE U SR 18
Loans and
receivables
AR¥FT T
RMB’000
FTATERIE Financial assets included in prepayments,
BRERHEMBUWTRIE  deposits and other receivables
MEmEE 41,074
2EFFER Pledged deposits 52,749
REFESRE Prepayment for investments 679,571
ReERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 178,785
952,179
= =R Financial liabilities
R
AR A BR
WEmEeE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR®T T
RMB’000
T AH A FE (T FRIE Financial liabilities included in other payables and
KEEETE M accruals
TRERE 194,083
STESRITREMMAEI  Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 578,628
772,711
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36. TR I AENAFERATE 36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

& A%
AEEERIAENREERA
FE(RAEEESERRIF
EFFEH)WMT:

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, for those with carrying amounts
that require recurring fair value measurement, are as
follows:

- ] Group Carrying amount Fair value
REE AYE
201745 20164 20176 20165
2017 2016 2017 2016
ARETRT AR¥Tr AR¥Tr AR%Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
tHEE Financial liabilities
TREBTEN Interest-bearing bank loans
REMBER and other borrowings 352,259 578,628 352,259 578,628

EEEEHMEH BekReE
BEY SEMEFREHED 51
ARNREBE -ZEREMER
RENETMEE -FFAHME
NREREBFEANERER
MAFERAEKREEMES £
ERENZETAENHRE:

REBUBBEELSENTH
HEesgeMmIANQFES
EEEHRRRERF MBEE
MEFNBEEEER-RF
FER MBEBAIMEHT

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged
deposits, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At the end of

BEfNEEEHYET ARGE each of the year, the finance department analyses the
NEEHAEBE -HECHE movements in the values of financial instruments and

FMBEETERNRTELE-

determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.
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36. EMTANAFERAFE

B#& (&)
TRMEEREBBENAFEUZ
TEARBEEXZLEBAINR
Z (BERFEHERN) I
RETHEAR - TXHIAR
TR FENFTERREBR:

5T B8R 17 & H 4th f5 5k 3k BN HA &P
PR AFEREBEREHRR
CERBESBTEFHIANE
BFa] AL RUUBAIRFEHA R 2R IR
EREFTE - LM R20175F
12A31  AEEBEFERTR
HMERWTHENNRRR
R-ZEIAXEENTENOR
B A RREZEEHONA
FTERZEUITRRESFNWESE
MBFREBEFFHARREER
EHE-

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings as at 31 December 2017 was
assessed to be insignificant. The fair value of the
liability portion of the convertible bonds is estimated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using
an equivalent market interest rate for a similar
convertible bond with consideration of the Group’s
own non-performance risk.
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36. EMTANAFERAFE
& (%)
NFEER

TRAPAEEESHIEN R
FEFEER:

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:
BEAFENARE Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
AVPEHEFAUS
x5E Group Fair value measurement using
REBR EATEE EAFTHER
2017 HHENRE BAYE BAYE
12A318 £-& et 1 F=R
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
31 December markets inputs inputs
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ARSTr AR®Tn AR%Tn AR%®T=x
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
TRETEN Interest-bearing bank loans and
REMER other borrowings 352,259 - 352,259 -

REBZE2017F12831BLLFE
F-RREF_HFzBALELQF
BiFE2EBR ME=ZRNQIFE
FETEERERSES

R2017F12831H » KA B W&
FTHemEEREBRQAFE

e

During the years ended 31 December 2017, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurements, and no transfers into and out of
Level 3 fair value measurements.

The Company did not have any financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December

2017.
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37. EBEEEERBXK

AEENETESH T AGRE
BHRTER EMEMHIE A
R eRMEE REekRE
ZEYRCEAER -ZE T
BMTENTEREZERAXREHEH
MEEBEEEE-

AEETHTETRNEIEZR
b DA RE R SNEER - FE
REkRiBEchRB E5F
AEEZARARMENRGHGE

BB T o

F = @ K
AEEHBHNHERNREHH
ERETEEAEERBNZERT
EREHE - BERHNANEREER
BRFA B 5T 244 55 o

7N £ [ 30 £ i A AR A A B k= A
LA e EL T i B A 2R B o

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings, other payables,
other current financial assets, cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks which are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank
borrowings with floating interest rates. The interest
rates and terms of repayments of the borrowings are
disclosed in note 24.

The Group has not used any interest swaps to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk.
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37. MKEREEBERBE

(&)

MEmb (&)
TRABEFREE BB ERER
TEHNBRT AEBEERBA
BAHMNESEARESH N
RE(EBIERBERMINE
2)mT:

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INTEREST RATE RISK (CONTINUED)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonable possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) as follows:

EFH S (TEE) B Bt Al 28 7
2 ORd) #m

(Decrease)/

Increase/ increase
(decrease) in profit

in basis points before tax

AR®ETT AR®ETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EZE20178F 128318  Year ended 31 December 2017

ItEE
AR RMB 50 (1,628)
AR RMB (50) 1,628
B Z20165FE 128318  Year ended 31 December 2016

ItEE
AR RMB 50 (2,618)
AR RMB (50) 2,618
S BE & B FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

AEBEHRZEBER - Z
ZERBIDEERARMBERT
Rt BRITEREENBEM
EE-EHEBSOLAERN
HHTHEBEZ2EBHB ANEH
MBRBIEREEAR ST

AIVEHEN-

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the proceeds denominated in
HKD from IPO and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
The forward currency contracts must be in the
same currency as the hedged item. It is the Group’s
policy not to enter into forward contracts until a firm
commitment is in place.
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7. BEAERBEEEERBXK

(#%&)

SME R B (4E)
AEBHNBREZEHFITE
TENBRAREHHFEED
RR 0 A EH PR AW o

TRELENRARBEETR
BTEERNSEAREE T
FEHMSEREIENER
T -HASEBERKRE YRR
RAEN (ERNEBEERE
ENAFEEEZD)REAEH
ER (EREPEBESIND
FEEZE) WBREDN -

B | RK T (BE017F12831BLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (CONTINUED)

It is the Group’s policy to negotiate the terms of the
hedge derivatives to match the terms of the hedged

item to maximise hedge effectiveness.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rate of RMB against USD
and HKD, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and the
Group’s equity (due to changes in the fair value of
forward currency contracts).

EnkER
fE &
(T&),/ £#
(Decrease)/
increase in
USD and
HKD rate
%
%
20174 2017
MARYSR If RMB weakens against USD
ExlRE (5)
MARYSR If RMB strengthens against USD
EnHE 5
fMARBR If RMB weakens against HKD
BLTRE (5)
MARYR If RMB strengthens against HKD
BRAE 5
20164 2016
MAR®H If RMB weakens against USD
EnlRE (5)
HMARER If RMB strengthens against USD
EnAE 5
MARYSR If RMB weakens against HKD
BLTRE (5)
MARYER If RMB strengthens against HKD
BLTHE 5

BR B A 4 A

#n,/ (M)

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
before tax
EY
USD’000

656

(656)

187

(187)

(21,879)

21,879

B

#in,/ (D)

Increase/
(decrease)

in equity
ARBT T
RMB'000
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37. MKEREEBERBE

()
EERR

AEBEHEAMZEEEREN
BZFETXRZ - AEEHR
RAUREREERRETS
MITEEEREFEERETE
ERERER - BWRFRIES
BREREEEEERZHAEER
REVRIREFER - ZRIF
R EEE Mt EHst
ENXZ AEBEREREFE
EHMEEMHEMNTIERLE
8-

rEBHEMHEREE (BRER
ERREFEYPUREMER
RE)NEERRBIEAXZ Y
FENEI RARABEER
ZETAWREE-

HRASBEEEANEREER
FHNE=ZLEITRSE HILHE
AEMERAR - FERRES
EREFP/HFH HERT

XEB - ARETESESEF
MEERE-

BB HERRMTE (BFE017F12831ALEE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

3

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all students and cooperative schools who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does
not offer credit terms without the specific approval of
the Head of Credit Control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by customer/counterparty, by geographical region
and by industry sector. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.
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37.

MBERREEEERBEE
(#%&)
AEBANBEEMERBESF
S TEERHESRRER-
ZITEZESRRERERE
Efla HtetmEE)ME
MEHBERRRBEEXEBTN
AEFRERE -

AEBEREEBANARITERN
HEESHEMHEETMEZH
HY S 7 -

TRELFEMRERERS
NABRARNSREEHS
B

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial investments
and financial assets (e.g., other financial assets) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities at the end of year based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

20178128318 31 December 2017

FERTR Interest-bearing bank and
HiER other borrowings

ST AEAMPENFRIE  Financial liabilities included
REGERN in other payables and

tREes accruals

20165128318 31 December 2016

FERTR Interest-bearing bank and
HiER other borrowings

STAEMPEMFIE  Financial liabilities included
REGERN in other payables and
tRERE accruals

=2
REXE =@EAm +T=BA —-ZI%f Bt
Less than 31012 1105
Ondemand 3 months months years Total

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

19,909 197,313 166,858 384,080

150,603 = = = 150,603

150,603 19,909 197,313 166,858 534,683

7,082 121,355 496,617 625,054

194,083 - - - 194,083

194,083 7,082 121,355 496,617 819,137
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37. MKEREEBERBE

(&)

EXER
REEEAEENTERRA
BRAEENISELER IR
ERBBRINEARE R UXF
HEBLERREEBZKAL

AEBRBEBRINEDH R
FHEENARBEREREH
ERARBIHHFEHAE-B
HERRAREARRB A&HEH
FERAERNTTRRORE
RBEARNT IR EEITHIRA ©
REBRZEMIIREMNE
RER-RFR AEBEHNER
EEER BRI BEFBEL
&g -

RERNEEEGLLRNT :

BB HERRMTE (BFE017F12831ALEE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

3

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

The debt-to-asset ratios at the end of the year were
as follows:

Total liabilities
Total assets

Debt-to-asset ratios

201745 20165
2017 2016
ARBT T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
845,048 1,070,082
2,569,903 2,012,598
33% 53%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

38. MEHRER

(1)

R2017F12827H A& H
WEEMBATILERKE
BHABRBERBHERRK
EREBRAR (FEH
RREHBEERNERE)
B H6%IRE REAA
FE#5183,275,680 0 o dEk K
BERANTRERZERRKR
H AR #40,724,320Tt N E
U BEEBERRER R
REBH FEIFEHAE
REBRATNBRHESE
HARTH RIFEFEK

EEBERNESSEHK
EEEEE-

MR2018F 1848 BB A
FEBEMNFER LB
T FERARELEESR &
It BEEARKEBEBKI
FEWREZRNES L
EAE REAARK
165,670,0007T ° 5% ith 8 #9482
1 tth ] #& %9 £390,605.60F
FR URABEHEESR
MW E - AREKE B Al 5t 2
AZME FBREE TER
BF URZALLIEE
¥28p ([ALER]) I
TEHR S A 2019FE B B F &
HrELERLER B
PR2019F9R BIBE —# 2
Ko

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(1)

On 27 December 2017, Beijing Daai Consulting,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, agreed
to acquire an aggregate equity interest of
56% in Xinjiang Siyuan Education Investment
Co., Ltd., sponsor of Xinjiang Institute of
Finance and Economics, at a consideration of
RMB183,275,680. Beijing Daai Consulting also
agreed to grant a loan of RMB40,724,320 to
the college to settle its shareholder’s loan. As at
the date of report, the share transfer of Xinjiang
Siyuan Education Investment Co., Ltd. is not yet
completed, and board of directors of Xinjiang
Institute of Finance and Economics are not yet
re-elected.

On 4 January 2018, Lanbo Company entered
into a land use right transfer agreement with the
Department of Land and Resources of Lanzhou,
pursuant to which Lanbo Company would acquire
a state-owned land use right in respect of a piece
of land at a consideration of RMB165,670,000 by
a successful bidding. The Land covers a total site
area of approximately 390,605.60 square metres
and is situated within Lanzhou New Development
Zone, Gansu Province, PRC. The Group currently
plans to construct certain school buildings on
the Land for the establishment of Northwest
Technology and Business Institute (“Northwest
School”) and expects the operation of Northwest
School to be commenced in the financial year of
2019 including the enrolment of the first batch of
students in September 2019.
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38. MEHEREER (&)

(3)

MR2018F1H8H  AK HE
WEEMBARLERKE
BHELEEE - LR
EEBRBEZHABRA
([T E®H])ET L —
meEEHmZE - -REBESIEW
2 RRXEBETRE KB
BIEBEZSMR ([TEE
Rl —iRHERKEN
ENSERR) N EHE
BHIERBEEHER-
TRAREZABZUARE
101,500,000t B9 X & Uk B8
SR SRR VE5 %R AE - AR
ZREBRE LEZAEZH
BRAmER -HERA
HELEROTMmERE
B AR ¥223,000,0007T °
EHRBTEER _HER
BT KERBGE—
TETHEERITEARK
71,000,0007T » LA H # —
TEERE—DTERE-R
WREAH HESREHR
EEZEERERETITE
EENEBRRBLEEFEAN
EHMEARERDE
FRBEPIER

BB T (BE017F12B31ALLEE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(3)

On 8 January 2018, Beijing Daai Consulting, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a cooperation agreement with Mr. Rong, Ms.
Kong and Henan Rongyu Education Consulting
Co., Ltd. (“Henan Rongyu”). In accordance with
the cooperation agreement, upon closing of the
transaction, the sponsor interest in Luoyang
Science and Technology Vocational College
(“Henan School”), a private higher education
institution providing junior college education,
will be wholly owned by Henan Rongyu. Then
Beijing Daai Consulting will acquire 55% equity
interest in Henan Rongyu at a consideration
of RMB101,500,000. Upon the completion of
the transaction, Beijing Daai Consulting shall
contribute RMB223,000,000 to Henan Rongyu
for the preliminary construction costs for phase
two construction of Henan School. Upon the
commencement of phase two construction of
Henan School, Beijing Daai Consulting shall
further contribute RMB71,000,000 to Henan
School for its further construction and further
development. As at the date of report, the
relevant application to transfer the school
sponsorship from the current school sponsors
to Henan Rongyu is pending the final approval
of the provincial department of education and
the registration with the provincial civil affairs
authorities.
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38. MEHREER (&)

(4)

MERI 23R BE20165F12
A31HILEE K&EH—
XMBARKE QT ER
HR2016F1B -4 R7TAFT
N—RYHE O BEOR
TEREENERERE
(ABYE=F)WREERIL
BROME - SRENEE
mo BRKEAARME3S9
BB T -BZE2017F12812
B sE19FT IR B - &
SEEXZH ARSI E
ExEREHR -RERE
HE - BREEREBRESE
FEREPRETRE QT
HWEBERBESFENEKE
MAREAZERBERR
BEBFY & 5C o

M2018F 28220 » &N T
EH=ERTHMEFTZLER
BMEHZE B XEET
BE—FUHLREEAS00
BEBTNESEHERG
E(HBEmESERS
B1000EEBET) cZmE
HEHEEAQTERKR
BAREETHINENER
MR BRERELRRQF
ERBRREBZREN S
i — RS ENSEHo

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(4)

As previously reported, during the year ended 31
December 2016, through a series of agreements
entered into in January, April and July 2016,
Haxuan Company, subsidiary of the Group,
agreed to acquire the sole sponsorship interest
in the Northeast School from the current school
sponsors, which are independent third parties,
at a total consideration of RMB381.9 million.
As of 12 December 2017, the Group has paid
RMB331.9 million as down payment as disclosed
in the Note 19. As at the date of report, the
relevant application to transfer the school
sponsorship from the current school sponsors to
Haxuan Company is pending the final approval
of the provincial department of education and
the registration with the provincial civil affairs
authorities.

On 22 February 2018, the Company entered
into a loan facility agreement with a consortium
of three banks, pursuant to which a 5-year
term loan facility in the initial principal amount
of HKD500 million with a greenshoe facility
amount of up to HKD1,000 million was made
available to the Group. The facility agreement
contains provisions which require certain specific
performance obligations on the controlling
shareholder of the Company, including requiring
the controlling shareholder of the Company to
avoid series of events of default as stated in the
facility agreement.
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BB R (BE017F12831A LFE)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2017)

39. KA T MEAMRRE 39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
20175 20165
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AR®T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
NG NG Interests in subsidiaries 446,239 446,239
RBEEEE Total non-current assets 446,239 446,239
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
RERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 994 -
FE U Bt /B8 /2 ] Due from subsidiaries 705,238 -
REE BB Total current assets 706,232 -
EEFRE Net assets 1,152,471 446,239
= EQUITY
% Zx Share capital 983 -
ERFEE Capital reserve 1,151,488 446,239
4R 2 Total equity 1,152,471 446,239
40. #HEAEBTFE R K 40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR R C R2018F 2528 & The financial statements were approved and
EEEMERIRERE M- authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

February 2018.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
K F BENANBLEE
Results of operations Year ended December 31,
2013 20144 20155 201645 20174
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ARBTT AR%Tn AR%®Tx AR%®Tn AR¥ETx
RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in
thousands thousands thousands thousands thousands
W &= Income 138,942 206,495 273,994 340,996 414,405
EA Gross profit 64,732 100,770 135,627 163,587 227,500
FEREF Profit for the year 54 477 81,308 103,821 112,197 233,322
RERGR (faE1)  Adjusted net profit (rofe 7) 54,477 81,308 103,821 130,051 259,443
BNREREE AW Atributable to equity
holders of the parent 54,477 81,308 103,823 111,755 233,368

KraFr . RPEBRGRTDEFAN LM EHEEX Note 1:  The adjusted net profit as calculated based on the adjusted profit for

(NAEE—EIFLEMEE) ARER the year and listing expenses (the non-recurring expenses of the year).
BB
Bt ® BZ12A3BILEE
Financial ratios Year ended December 31,
20134 20144 20155 20165 20174
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
EHE%) Gross profit margin (%) 46.6% 48.8% 49.5% 48.0% 54.9%
4R 2 (%) Net profit margin (%) 39.2% 39.4% 37.9% 32.9% 56.3%
ARG B 4 R = (%) Adjusted net profit
margin (%) 39.2% 37.8% 38.9% 38.1% 62.6%
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EERER BZ12A31BLEE
Assets and liabilities Year ended December 31,
20135 2014%F 2015 20165 201745
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
AR®BTR AR®Tn AR%®Trx AR®Tn AR%Tx
RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in
thousands thousands thousands thousands thousands
ERBEE Non-current assets 627,374 757,485 1,044,878 1,727,133 2,326,642
REEE Current assets 154,343 356,549 171,815 285,465 243,261
RBER Current liabilities 369,335 401,456 681,541 563,442 667,996
RBBEFHE Net current liabilities (214,992) (44,907) (509,726) (277,977) (424,735)
BEABMRBER  Total assets less current
liabilities 412,382 712,578 535,152 1,449,156 1,901,907
FRBEE Non-current liabilities 100,632 331,520 153,528 506,640 177,052
s Total equity 311,750 381,058 381,624 942,516 1,724,855
NE BEKRE Property, plant and
equipment 506,002 601,786 728,270 867,240 985,301
ReERHESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 103,687 299,170 82,979 178,785 118,648
EZLWA Deferred revenue 103,843 138,908 180,019 217,047 249,599
STERTREMMBETR  Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 210,266 417,795 450,996 578,628 352,259
ML= BE12A318 /HZE12R3BLEE
Financial ratios As of December 31/for the year ended December 31,
20135 20145 20154 20165 201745
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ARETR AR%TR AR®Tn AR®TR AR%Tx
RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in
thousands thousands thousands thousands thousands
FEnt = Current Ratio 04 0.9 03 0.5 0.4
B E (H:22) Gearing ratio (note 2) 67.4% 109.6% 118.2% 61.4% 20.4%
Ko . ERZEEREREEHLBERUEER Note 2:  Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by total equity as of the end of
EEAEETERTERREMER. the year. Total debt refers to all interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings.
ReRE BZ12A3BLEE
Cash flows Year ended December 31,
20135 201445 20155 20165 20175
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ARBTRT AR¥®Tn AR®BTx AR¥Tn AR¥Tx
RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in
thousands thousands thousands thousands thousands
RETHMERE Net cash from operating
FE activities 160,702 156,160 254,364 225,100 287,060
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B
DEFINITIONS

[ Advance Vision |

“Advance Vision”

[EEBAL]

“affiliate(s)”

[AASERMR ] =48]

“Articles of Association” or
“Articles”

[ Aspire Education Consulting |

“Aspire Education Consulting”

Advance Vision Investment Co, Ltd. » — B 7201655818 B R 15
FHERELEIMALMNAT BAFETLRE (KE)
BROBRAR (—EBRPBEEMALHNBROBER AR A
REERTEMR (ORI 2318) R EBESHERFZ AT (RH
X35 :601318) L) B &= #E A o Advance VisionB KM A £
ZERRz—

Advance Vision Investment Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands on 18 May 2016 and beneficially
owned by Ping An Insurance (Group ) Company of China, Ltd.* ( A
BE¥ZRE (S8)RMDER2AE), a joint-stock company
incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2318) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601318). Advance Vision is one of our substantial
shareholders

BREMEEAIMES ENEEIEEZEFEEA LR
B HETHEF T HE RS AELAREFNEAM
At

with respect to any specific person, any other person, directly or
indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect
common control with such specified person

KRATR2017FEIR20B BERGRMANABZERMA (K
TEHEET)

the articles of association of our Company conditionally adopted on
20 March 2017 and as amended from time to time

Aspire Education Consulting Co, Ltd.» — R 12015%F10815H
REXABERAHELIERNINERLAT HELXE B
B#E-ZIRE -BFR - FRE-IZE GRERKF D AIE
B79.20% ~14.37%~3.52% ~ 0.98% > 0.80% * 0.59% ~ 0.40% &
015% " BREEEREEZFNWIRKBZBEIN 2 HHTAEE
3 5 =75 ° Aspire Education ConsultingZ FE I E A — Z =%
Iz R

Aspire Education Consulting Co., Ltd., a limited liability company
established under the laws of the BVI on 15 October 2015 and
owned as to 79.20% by Mr. Li, 14.37% by Yang Xuwei (#3 JB4E) |
3.52% by Liu Fengming (2@ 88) , 0.98% by Pan Yi (GEZ) ,
0.80% by Qin Hongkang (Z=2 %2 &) , 0.59% by Wang Lei (%) ,
0.40% by Yang Junxiong (#5318 % ) and 0.15% by Yao Li (k%) .
Except for Mr. Li and Yang Xuwei (#3 fB#E) , the sister-in-law of
Mr. Li, all are Independent Third Parties. Aspire Education Consulting
is one of our Controlling Shareholders
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B=
DEFINITIONS

[ Aspire Education Group J Aspire Education Group Co., Ltd.» — R A2015%F108208 £
EHETMAZEER R ER A F) ° Aspire Education Group
REEEEHTHAABRATME—RRE

“Aspire Education Group” Aspire Education Group Co., Ltd., an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability on 20
October 2015. Aspire Education Group was the sole shareholder
of our Company prior to the completion of the Corporate
Reorganization

[ Aspire Education Holding J Aspire Education Holding Co., Limited » — 420155108308
EEBREMALNERLE ARATNEZENE L A
“Aspire Education Holding” Aspire Education Holding Co., Limited., a limited liability company

incorporated in Hong Kong on 30 October 2015 and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

[ Aspire Education Information J Aspire Education Information Co., Ltd. » — & 20155108 29H
REXBEBAHELERINEBRATF  AXQFN
ZEMNE AT

“Aspire Education Information” Aspire Education Information Co., Ltd., a limited liability company

established under the laws of the BVI on 29 October 2015 and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

[ Aspire Education International | Aspire Education International Limited - — 7420165586 H 1R
BEBABMIHELERNIINERAT BEMEH —
ZERRR

“Aspire Education International” Aspire Education International Limited, a limited liability company
established under the laws of the BVI on 6 May 2016 and is one of
our Controlling Shareholders

[ Aspire Education Management | Aspire Education Management Co., Ltd. » — R /A2015510815H
RERXBEBRAHELZERNINERLAA HEXES
% A o Aspire Education ManagementBEFE P —BEER
iR R

“Aspire Education Management” Aspire Education Management Co., Ltd., a limited liability company
established under the laws of the BVI on 15 October 2015 and
wholly owned by Mr. Li. Aspire Education Management is one of our
Controlling Shareholders

(BB A BB FmRAETHRE
“associate(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
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DEFINITIONS

REPREN

“Bai Fen Bai”

[dEE R F ]

“Bei Ai Company”

[HeREBES

“Beijing Lianhe”

[EEE
“Board” or “Board of Directors”

(RESEHER

“BPPE”

ERBEIBENERBERLE - —ER2005F108188 1R
BHRBEEZEXINERAFR -HBE—BBIE=F2E&
wa

Kunming Baifenbai Property Services Co., Ltd.* (EEBB{ED1EY
¥RIEEMRADTF), a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC on 18 October 2005. It is wholly owned by an
Independent Third Party

ETREREHBERERAREME L AE  —BEN2012F10816
BREFEEERINERAT HEEEEZEHE -
EERAAHERALEREXKNYEETALERNER
Bk

Beijing Aiyinsheng Education Investment Co., Ltd.* (It R &
HEHEREBREME LT, a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on 16 October 2012, and
wholly owned by Yun Ai Group. Bei Ai Company will act as the school
sponsor of the Northwest School upon the official establishment of
the Northwest School

TRBEHRBEREBRLT —BER20145F6A17H
REBEFBREERINERAB HAZEBZANZENWE
RAREEEZERE REZHAAUBAEFTRERTEAE
BB 2+ 2 BI#E B 90% K 10%H# &=

Beijing Lianhe Open Education Technology Co., Ltd.* (it REE & B8
BMEBREARDT), a limited liability company established
under the laws of the PRC on 17 June 2014, and wholly owned by
Daai Management, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Daai Consulting,
which is in turn owned by Mr. Li as to 90% and Ms. Yang, the
spouse of Mr. Li as to 10%

AKAREBEESE
the board of Directors of our Company

MMNFLESEHER EMMNEEESKIN— @S
EEEEEMMNEENTI LS SHREER

California Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education, a unit of the
California Department of Consumer Affairs charged with regulation
of private postsecondary educational institutions operating in the
State of California
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[RBEFE =R

“Business Cooperation Agreement”

[&%H]

“Business Day” or “business day”

[ RBERRES
“BVI”

[ California Academy

“California Academy”

[ INF| & fE s E 4
“California School”

“Central China School”

B=
DEFINITIONS

[EBEEHRIBEAR -PESKEHBERBRTER
RA2016FIA8H BRI MEKSFEHZH

the business cooperation agreement entered into by and among
Huihuang Company, the PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and the
Registered Shareholders dated 8 September 2016

ERBBRT-—ROAREARNPEXBZNBE F (EHR-EH
B &BARBEKRIS)

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for business
to the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday
in Hong Kong

REEFAAES
the British Virgin Islands

California Academy of Business, Inc.» — /2016578188 7
EZEMAMEBEREEMNEMALNERLAT BEAAEE
Bt A =

California Academy of Business, Inc., a company incorporated in the
State of California the United States, with limited liability on 18 July
2016 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

AEESERMABEEEMAINRRISSHAKE
a private higher education institute to be established by our Group
in the State of California

[ERERIPIEREERDFZER - — B N2003F R &
FEZEZREMINSSEHERB- NERERTIREEK
BHRBNEERENESKTARMNKEXER
Science and Technology College of Hubei Minzu University* ( 8
ttEEZER AR ZER), an institution of higher education
established under the laws of the PRC in 2003. The results
attributable to students admitted after the completion of the new
campus of Central China School will be included in our results of
operation
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DEFINITIONS

[EERE ]

“Chengxin Investment”

[ E

“China” or “PRC”

[ERBE A
“close associate(s)”

NSRSV

“Companies Ordinance”

RN

“Company” or “our Company”

EAAREREREEEGBELEX (BRER)  —BAR
2015 12A1N2AMRBHEEERINERER AT EE
EREERERARBTEEAEREEREZA(E
ReBE (ZEXTENZETFNHRRK)ERRLEERRR) o #
EREAEFP-EBTLERR BFEEEEEMI377T%R
HE

Kashi Daai Chengxin Investment Management Limited Partnership*
(BT ABHEREEESHLE (BRER) ), a limited
partner established under the laws of the PRC on 12 December
2015 with Mr. Li as its general partner and ten individuals acting
as its limited partners, including Yang Xuwei (#5 fE #£) , the
sister-in-law of Mr. Li, and the Principal of Northeast School.
Chengxin Investment is one of the Registered Shareholders and
holds 1.3177% equity interest of Yun Ai Group

REANRANE REAREMS TEEEB - RMHEH
THERGE

the People’s Republic of China excluding for the purpose of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and
Taiwan

BB EmWRBIFETARSE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEBEDIE22E X RRA IR EI -HRIUE
ftt 75 KA 2k

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

PEFSHBEEERAR (FEIFREFAEEEFTRA
A1) —ER2016F7AR EHEHSEMRLNERR
BRAF

China New Higher Education Group Limited (B #F S HEE
BPFR 7)) (formerly known as “China New University Group Co.,
Ltd. (FFEIFT REEBBR AT ) "), an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 July
2016
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[EEE A L]
“connected person(s)”

[ R AR R

“Controlling Shareholder(s)’

[EXEA ]

“Corporate Reorganization”

[ RELQF]

all

“Daai Company”

>|_
i
B
%

“Daai Consulting”

B=
DEFINITIONS

BB EmERETRRE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEELWRAFMBFHERER RXEESEREMN EEXQ
)5 IR BR 3R - BN Aspire Education Technology ~ Aspire Education
Management ~ Aspire Education Consulting ~ Aspire Education
International & Z= 55 4

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and
unless the context requires otherwise, refers to the controlling
shareholders of our Company, namely Aspire Education Technology,
Aspire Education Management, Aspire Education Consulting, Aspire
Education International and Mr. Li

AEBASHELTMETHNEESEA
the corporate reorganization of our Group conducted in preparation
for the Listing

TRAAREREEEEEARAA (B[R AREREE
BERLT])  —RBR2015F9821BREFEEER L
WERAR - H—BBIYE=L25#H

Beijing Daai Investment Management Group Co., Ltd.* (dEZE K
EREEEEBEAER2DA) (formerly known as “Beijing Daai
Investment Management Co., Ltd* (R AEREEEB/R D
AJ) "), a limited liability company established under the laws of the
PRC on 21 September 2015 and wholly owned by an Independent
Third Party

REZHAEERNDERARA (B KERXEEERNE
PRATE])  —BR2015F5 86 B RIBFBERER LR M
ERAR HEZEEBEBIWERZRBAZTEENERBE L
THEB10%E

Daai Consulting Management Co., Lid* (K EBHAEERHE
PR 2 &) ) (formerly known as “Daai Education Management Co.,
Ld* (REHBEEERMERLQT) "), a joint stock company
with limited liability established on 6 May 2015 under the laws of
PRC, which is owned as to 90% by Mr. Li and 10% by Ms. Yang, the
spouse of Mr. Li
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DEFINITIONS

[ REEHE]

“Daai Management”

[REEH]

“Daai Partnership”

[T FEE ]

“Deed of Non-competition”

[

“Director(s)”

[ES=SREE

“Directors’ Powers of Attorney”

ERARELEEERRAT —BER2015FIA18H R
FENEERIMNERAR BAEZHZTEREE

Beijing Daai Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* (It R AE X E
BAEPMR/AT), a limited liability company established under the
laws of the PRC on 18 September 2015 and wholly owned by Daai
Consulting

EHRAEREEESHLE (BRER)  —BR2015%F
NASHREBETBHEZERINEREE HERZAEE
AERERBAURBZTEERSEZEZZIFRERER A
AREERABZMEP—EZEREF FEEEZEEN
22.8102% % #&

Kashi Daai Investment Management Limited Partnership* ( 5§ {1
AREREEEESRLEX (BIRERE) ), a limited partnership
established under the laws of the PRC on 8 December 2015 with
Ma Chongliang ( 5§52 5% ) acting as the general partner and Mr.
Li and Ma Chongliang ( §5 52 %) acting as the limited partner.
Daai Partnership is one of the Registered Shareholders and holds
22.8102% equity interest of Yun Ai Group

ERBRRNR2017FIA20BUAERAB (BAEME S RES
BHTAEHMBARANZEN) AZ R AR THRFA L
M5 3 225

a deed of non-competition dated 20 March 2017 entered into by
our Controlling Shareholders in favor of our Company (for ourselves
and as trustee for each of our subsidiaries from time to time)
regarding the non-competition undertaking

RATRES

the directors of our Company

EHEEEEREEREHE LB HA2016F9A8AMWE
RESE#ES

the school directors’ power of attorney executed by each of the
directors of each PRC Operating School dated 8 September 2016
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[HERIREEESR]

“Draft Foreign Investment Law”

o
J
I
Il
| I—

“Enchang Company”

[IREE =

“Equity Pledge Agreement”

[BRABHEE

“Exclusive Call Option Agreement”

[ % =5 117 AR 7% &%
EEBAIDE

“Exclusive Technical Service
and Management Consultancy
Agreement”

B=
DEFINITIONS

BB EN2015F 1 B19R BEMUEARBANPEARHT
MEIEREE(ERFEREER)
the draft version of the Foreign Investment Law* (R E A R H Al
BI/NEIREE (ERERZRH) ) issued by the MOFCOM
on 19 January 2015 for public consultation

RiBRAMNETHAERREBREE LA —BER20145F11
ﬁ13EI$E$F¢I*}£?$ﬁ£iE’JﬁBE’AE°HEEE§§EI&
BHE D B EES.2%R10.8% R RHUEIRREXLZE
ROBERRBEENMELE -M’_\—.lﬂ-rﬁk%é_éq:'ﬁa
ROBEERENE

Enshi Autonomous Prefecture Changging Education Development
Co, LLd* (REBAMESTSHERREREMELA), a
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC
on 13 November 2014. It is owned as to 89.2% by Yun Ai Group
and 10.8% by Jiang Mingxue (# 88*) . Enchang Company will
be a joint school sponsor of Central China School pending final
approval of the MOE and registration with the provincial civil affairs
authorities

RERR - EFEERBEARZE S N2016F9A8BE]
YHREERT =

the equity pledge agreement entered into by and among the
Registered Shareholders, Yun Ai Group and Huihuang Company
dated 8 September 2016

BENT KM P E l%?AH?“JE%ﬁ@&%E%Hﬁif;%%E
R2016F9B8HT UM BRAEHER =

the exclusive call option agreement entered into by and among
Huihuang Company, our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and the
Registered Shareholders dated 8 September 2016

BEARRKMOFPERSH Esﬁ—
8HF] M N B REMARE K EEEHAIH=E
the exclusive technical service and management consultancy
agreement entered into by and among Huihuang Company and our
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities dated 8 September 2016

B HA20165F9H
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DEFINITIONS

[ShERZE ]
“FIE”

[ShERE B 8

“Foreign Investment Catalog”

[ Gainful Asset J

“Gainful Asset”

[AsE ] = [

[T

“Group”, “our Group”, “we” or “us’

[ EMER ]

“Guizhou School”

SIERERE

foreign invested enterprise

AEBRAPEARANBERERALEZESESN2015
FIR10RHEEMN IPEREEXEIEE B #(2015)) -
R2015F4B108 AR BRRKIEET

the Guidance Catalog of Industries for Foreign Investment ( ¢k
EIREEZ£IEEH(2015)) ), which was promulgated
jointly by the MOFCOM and the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC(REARAEMBEERER MK E
ZE9E) on 10 March 2015 and became effective from 10 April
2015, which is amended from time to time

Gainful Asset Management Limited - — B 72016528158 R 15
REARAHELEIMA YN ERLAT ARLEESR
B A o Gainful Asset BERPIE P —BRE

Gainful Asset Management Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of the BVI on 15 February 2016 and
wholly owned by Mr. Chen. Gainful Asset is one of our Shareholders

KA HAENMEBAR TEHEESERREAEHEE
B HEFNEME REAQXTNBERNERRNZER
AR ZA AN EREREACELREEBEAEENER

our Company, its subsidiaries, our PRC Operating Schools and the
consolidated affiliated entities from time to time, or, where the
context so requires in respect of the period before our Company
became the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the
entities which carried on the business of the present Group at the
relevant time

EMNIEBELR —BER2012F7A3AREBEFEEER
VHEPSEZEEHEHKB HERERERZRER
SEZERE AXLARNGREHESR

Guizhou Technology and Business Institute* (& M T R B £ &
B ) , a private institution of formal higher education established
under the laws of the PRC on 3 July 2012, of which the school
sponsor’'s interest is wholly owned by Yun Ai Group and a
consolidated affiliated entity of our Company
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[t &2 3 ]

“Haxuan Company”

[CAEER]

“Henan School”

(&7t [ A4
“HK$”, “Hong Kong dollar(s)”,
“HKD” or “cents”

[ &8 B % R &5 % Al
“HKFRSs”

[ &% ]
“Hong Kong” or “HK”

RoVWNCl

“Huihuang Company”

B=
DEFINITIONS

REEHEMNEERAR  —BNR2016F48198 BFEH
Bl AR YNERAR AEZREEHEB3INURHAEE
NAEEB26.09% RUBHNBEZRELZERDERER
TENDFBLE RHARABERARLERNE -2/
B E

Harbin Xuande Technology Co., Ltd.* (B BETERIE AR A
A]) , a limited liability company established under the laws of the
PRC on 19 April 2016 and owned as to 73.91% by Yun Ai Group
and as to 26.09% by Ningde Company. Haxuan Company will be
the sole school sponsor of the Northeast School pending final
approval of the MOE and registration with the provincial civil affairs
authorities

BRI ESR ) —ER2013F6 BB BPEEREK L
NWRRSEEREHNEHE

Luoyang Science and Technology Vocational College* (& & &t
FEEZEPR) , a private institution of formal higher education
established under the laws of the PRC in June 2013

DRIABRAKNETE LB T KB
Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency for
the time being of Hong Kong

BRI ERELER
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s)

FEEEFNITHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

ARAZEEGFEREZARAT  —ENR20165F8H5B R
B BDEEA KA R QR 0 B Aspire Education HoldingZ &
%A

Tibet Daai Huihuang Information and Technology Co., Ltd.* (7
BAZEEEFEEREABR AT, a limited liability company
established on 5 August 2016 under the laws of the PRC, which is
wholly owned by Aspire Education Holding
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[TERERE ]

“Huihuang Investment”

(BIE=

“‘Independent Third Party(ies)”

[ £
“Listing”

[ET BH
“Listing Date”

[Em&R A
“Listing Rules”

B

“Loan Agreement”

EAAXEBEREEEAB X (BRER)  —AR
2015 12A1N2AMRBHEEERINERER AT EE
EREEBERBARMEBEBAFEREERERA (B
RN ITESHAEE RUEERRILRIELE) o fF
BREFEEEZEE.2956%K#E

Kashi Daai Huihuang Investment Management Limited Partnership*
(BT ABEBEREEESHLE (BARE®) ), a limited
partner established under the laws of the PRC on 12 December
2015 with Mr. Li acting as its general partner and 44 individuals
acting as its limited partners, including Mr. Zhao Shuai ( #
BP) , Mr. Zhang Ke (3&#9) and Mr. Zhu Lidong (%R 3ZER) , our
executive Directors. Huihuang Investment holds 1.2956% equity
interest of Yun Ai Group

BYRARAR HHMBAREMNES  TETHAEHE
ERR(ERRLTRANIBESEEMNHEARERSE
BMEBAE (TR LEMRA)NEALQF

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are independent
of and not connected with (within the meaning of the Listing Rules)
any Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) of our Company, its subsidiaries or
any of their respective associates

BRORBERZAMERLES
the listing of our Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

201754 R19R
19 April 2017

XS MR R (BRRKERET)
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, as amended from time to time

BEAR -TEEEEREEZEBMN2016F9A8HFT L
M & K it &

a loan agreement entered into by and among Huihuang Company,
the PRC Operating Schools, and Yun Ai Group dated 8 September
2016
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DEFINITIONS

EX GFRITRENELSRGM (T EIEHEMS) BN
R PATGEMB B H I 1T E1F

“Main Board” the stock exchange (excluding the option market ) operated by the

Stock Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel
with the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange

b2 IN HE AN RRABR2017FIA0BHKANABER A (BREE

ED)
“Memorandum of Association” or the memorandum of association of our Company adopted on 20
“Memorandum” March 2017 and as amended from time to time
[BREAE PRIEMEE TEENPRR—BBIYE=F REEAR
A E & — B BRE Gainful Assetfy i — IR 3R
“Mr. Chen” Mr. Chen Weisong (BR{Z#2) , a friend of Mr. Li and an

Independent Third Party. Mr. Chen is the sole shareholder of Gainful
Asset, which is one of our Shareholders

[Z= 50 4 | TEHEE BMANEARA - HP—FERRR - ZEES
FERBTES
“Mr. Li" Mr. Li Xiaoxuan (Z=Z&F) , our founder, one of our Controlling

Shareholders, chairman of the Board and an executive Director

[E &+t ] TERHZT FTEENPRR—BBEIYE=F -Tuzt+#
B R MEF — FZ R EKAspire Education Worldwide#999.995%#E
=

“Ms. Wang” Ms. Wang Xueping ( EE %) , a friend of Mr. Li and an

Independent Third Party. Ms. Wang owns 99.995% interest in Aspire
Education Worldwide, which is one of our Shareholders

[ &+t BEERZ L FTEEWEE
“Ms. Yang” Ms. Yang Xuging (#3 /B8 ) , the spouse of Mr. Li
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DEFINITIONS
[Z2ERE ]

“Ningde Company”

[RIEER ]

“Northeast School”

(2R

“Northwest School”

ERBILEARNBEELTERESR X (BREE)  —
BR2016F4B7ARIBHRENERERIINEREE HEH
e THRILELERRERRERGKEREE -EEQAHE
B I B A B #926.09% A% #&

Ningbo Meishan Bonded Port Area Deshida Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)* (ZEBLRARBRBEEZ LT ERESR
% (BMRA%) ), a limited liability partnership established
under the laws of the PRC on 7 April 2016, of which the partnership
interest is owned by the Principal of the Northeast School and his
family members. Ningde Company owns 26.09% equity interest of
Haxuan Company

MHEBEEEZER  —BR200M4FRIEFEEZERNLINE L
BB RUEBERERZERDERREREEINMAE
REREBEAREYEBEESNR RILERERA
RRARNGEHEER

Harbin Huade University* (RS RE B ZEEE PR ) , an independent
institute established under the laws of the PRC in 2004. Northeast
School will be a consolidated affiliated entity of our Company
pending final approval of the MOE and registration with the
provincial civil affairs authorities and following the execution of the
structured contracts with Huihuang Company

AIETITEBESR —BERBEFEEENINGSEK
BELRRPEE NALEREXAKRLE  HERERE
EEEHLLBARZERR

Northwest Technology and Business Institute* ( # dt T % B8
¥ E2P7) , a private institution of higher education college to
be established under the laws of the PRC, of which the school
sponsor’s interest will be wholly-owned by Bei Ai Company after the
official establishment of the Northwest School
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[ HEET 5] ERFHEKEEEZRAEBRAT — & BA2010$6H2E|
RIBRBEEKNIZINBERD A EEEZ:E?EE ZRAL B
B BER-IB-BEE - =0 RS BE-BEH-

% @%@»%@§&%@%%5%%%&%14%%
2.74%~4.85%~1.30%14.23%0.95%+0.95%2.39%~0.51%
0.48%+0.47%0.57%%2.93% - BREFXE - BHEF (FTE4E
WEFHEEB) ZBA (FEENEY) REEYS (%
EMEFNEEB)N 2BIABLE=F -HFHHERH
P-ERERR FEEZEEEA20.0568%MK &

“Pai Dui Pai” Kunming Paiduipai Economic Information Consultancy Co., Ltd.* ( &
AR HE ¥ BE RS BB BR AT ) , alimited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on 2 June 2010, which is
owned as to 53.35% by Mr. Li, 14.28% by Li Yaohong ( Z=#B4T) |
2.74% by Miao Qiongfen (%) , 4.85% by Huang Wei (&
1&), 1.30% by Wang Yan (GEJ&) , 14.23% by Yang Xuwei ( #5
JE4E) , 0.95% by Jiang He (Z30) , 0.95% by Yuan Song (&=
=), 2.39% by LiuYun (BIZ) , 0.51% by Lv Xuerui (B EE) |
0.48% by Wu Shiyi (Rt ) , 0.47% by Fu Zigang (& FR&I) ,
0.57% by Yang Xufen (45 fBZ¥) and 2.93% by Yang Xuyan (%5 &
%) . Except for Mr. Li, Yang Xufen (#2fB%¥) , the sister-in-law of
Mr. Li, Li Yaohong (Z=¥&4L) |, the sister of Mr. Li, and Yang Xuyan
(= MB%) | the sister-in-law of Mr. Li, all are Independent Third
Parties. Pai Dui Pai is one of the Registered Shareholders and holds
20.0568% equity interest of Yun Ai Group

[FEGEHEERE ] MEMHNERERERFELEER EEALXRAAN
mEHMEER
“PRC Consolidated Affiliated namely, our School Sponsors and our PRC Operating Schools, each
Entities” a consolidated affiliated entity of our Company
[FEIEEZR] BN EBER NEHERREMNER
“PRC Operating Schools” our consolidated affiliated entities, namely, Yunnan School and

Guizhou School

[ERER] KAT AHA2017F4ABNERER
“Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated 5 April 2017
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DEFINITIONS

[FC B IR R ]

i

“Registered Shareholders’

(¥R HHAME ]
“Reporting Period”

[AR¥ ]
“‘BMB” or “Renminbi”

[ERERE ]

“School Sponsors”

[ERERENRESENES

t i

“School Sponsors’ and Directors’
Rights Entrustment Agreement”

[ERBRERESE

“School Sponsors’ Powers
of Attorney”

[BEGIRHBSHR
HEEKERZES

“SFC” or “Securities and
Futures Commission”

[ 3% B 451 | =
(385 K EE &G
“SFO” or “Securities and
Futures Ordinance”

EREENRE BZ4a4 HEHE - BRE - KREEE-
BEERE BERE - LEAERTRAF

the shareholders of Yun Ai Group, namely Mr. Li, Pai Dui Pai, Ba Mu
Pu, Daai Partnership, Huihuang Investment, Chengxin Investment,
Shanghai Taifu and Zhongyi Company

BZE2017F12A31BLLEE
the year ended 31 December 2017

PERGHNEEEBARE
Renminbi, the lawful currency for the time being of the PRC

REERENEZEZER URAREREPREREF AT
BERAAIRIEELNT

the current school sponsor, Yun Ai Group, and the future school
sponsors, Haxuan Company, Enchang Company and Bei Ai Company

EZEE -LEQAR -FEHEEER BFEHEEERE
EREE AT N016FIAHBRTHNERERERESE
HERZ T =R

the school sponsors’ and directors’ rights entrustment agreement
entered into by and among Yun Ai Group, Bei Ai Company, the PRC
Operating Schools, the directors of each PRC Operating School and
Huihuang Company dated 8 September 2016

EREREUBERATDNAZT T ARTNWHEHH201659A4
SHMWERERERES

the school sponsors’ power of attorney executed by the School
Sponsors in favor of Huihuang Company dated 8 September 2016

ERRSNMEEBREREZES

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BREVFINEEZRPEMRY ETERETRER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended and supplemented from time to time
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DEFINITIONS

[EBXE] FBAEHIEBREREESER X (BRE®)  — &
2015 12A15ARBHEEERINERER HER
ERAAFITIELZERREAERAA - RYITFRE
REREERATDHFINFZERBMEZAEGRAAETE
A RNTZERMBEEAERAAHPEFZRE (£
B)ROPAERAR (—EARPEEMEZNRGERD A
WHREBERFTER (RO 2318) R EERFRF AT (KR
B3 601318) L) HEHIGS2% =R HFINFELHES
6.38% R - LBAEAREBERRZZ— HEEEEEWN
15.5265% A% #&

“Shanghai Taifu” Shanghai Taifu Xiangyi Equity Investment Fund Limited Partnership*
(LBAEHEREREESERBEX (AREE)), a
limited partnership established under the laws of the PRC on 15
December 2015 with Shenzhen Pingan Decheng Investment Co.,
Ltd. CRIIT FZEZHIREBR A F) acting as its general
partner. Shenzhen Pingan Decheng Investment Co., Ltd.* GFEIII T
TR ERBRERMR DT is wholly owned by Shenzhen Pingan
Financial Technology Consulting Co., Ltd.* GRIIF Z € wi Rl
ZEAEMR AT ) , which in turn is owned as to 96.52% by Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. ( Bl ¥ &Rk
(EE)RMABMRADTE), ajoint-stock company incorporated
in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2318) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
601318) and as to 6.38% by Shenzhen Pingan. Shanghai Taifu is
one of the Registered Shareholders and owns 15.5265% equity
interest of Yun Ai Group

[z ] ARABRAFFR0.0001EZ T B

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of US$0.0001 each in the share capital of our
Company

[ &8 Iz et 2l RATR2017FE3IA 208 B IR ER A B IR FE ST 2

“Share Option Scheme” the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on

20 March 2017

[z ] EESZ SN
“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of the Share(s)
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DEFINITIONS

[RRREE

“Shareholders’ Powers of Attorney’

[ B R FE R & 7ttt o

“Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment

Agreement”

[ 18 54

“Spouse Undertakings”

(BT P = [ B BB
“Stock Exchange” or
“Hong Stock Exchange”

[EBHEH]

“Structured Contracts”

(KB =]

“subsidiary(ies)”

Ffl

i

RERREAREEZEEEUEBEEAARZIEABEIAHA
20165F9A8HMRREES

the shareholders’ power of attorney executed by the Registered
Shareholders and Yun Ai Group in favor of Huihuang Company dated
8 September 2016

RERR - BREHERIER DT R2016F9IB8H 27T /Y
RERERZEHE

the shareholders’ rights entrustment agreement entered into by
and among the Registered Shareholders, the School Sponsors and
Huihuang Company dated 8 September 2016

TRENBBH LT N2016F9IA8H 2 M B (B &S

the spouse undertakings executed by Ms. Yang, the spouse of Mr.
Li, dated 8 September 2016

EBBERZAMBMRAA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Kong Stock Exchange”

EXBEFEHBE BREMBRBEREEZAGE BRIB
HEDR REERDE RRENEXTHZE BREW
EREESRANEZERAHR SRENEREE ESREE .
REEEES ERHEREBEBOLRE

collectively, the Business Cooperation Agreement, the Exclusive
Technical Service and Management Consultancy Agreement, the
Exclusive Call Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement,
the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreement, the School
Sponsors’ and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement, the School
Sponsors’ Powers of Attorney, the Directors’ Powers of Attorney,
the Shareholders’ Powers of Attorney, the Loan Agreement and the
Spouse Undertakings

BERELETmRAFFE TN ER - ARLERB - WELARERE
PREEERREREBRE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Subsidiaries include the PRC Operating
Schools and the School Sponsors
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“substantial Shareholder(s)”

[#rEER

“Xinjiang School”

L]
R
i
o]

“Yun Ai Group”

ELEEY

“Yunnan School”

B=
DEFINITIONS

BERELETRAFAETHER
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

SEMEREFBER  —BER2003FREBEPBEEER L
NWRPISSEEHAHE

Xinjiang Institute of Finance & Economics* ( #7588l & K BB #§
Pz ) , a private institution of formal higher education established
under the laws of the PRC in 2003

EHEERRHAEREEEERAA (B EMEERR
EERAAIRIZEEEZERARESEBEERAAL)  — @
RR2005F9R19B RIBHR B ERK LN BR AR - HEFL
£ HEHE - BABE - AEZEH BERE BERE L
BAERFEAT D AIHEE29.8806% 20.0568% *5.7305% *
22.8102% > 1.2956% ~ 1.32% ~ 15.5265% %2.3.3822% - H B E R
ERREMNERNERERE

Yunnan Einsun Education Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (Em@ =
HRBEREEBEAMR2DE) (formerly known as “Yunnan
Einsun Investment Co., Lid* (EERAKREBR A T)
and “Yunnan Einsun Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (EE 2 E &
REEBABR2AT) "), a limited liability company established
under the laws of the PRC on 19 September 2005, which is owned
as to 29.8806% by Mr. Li, 20.0568% by Pai Dui Pai, 5.7305% by
Ba Mu Pu, 22.8102% by Daai Partnership, 1.2956% by Huihuang
Investment, 1.32% by Chengxin Investment, 15.5265% by Shanghai
Taifu and 3.3822% by Zhongyi Company. It is the school sponsor of
the Yunnan School and the Guizhou School

EHImeh (REEZEERTHTBEZR ([R42
BT 1) ) > —ER2005F 98298 RIE R B EEK L 1R i
SEEREYAERE HEREBPERZHEZEELZE
BE AEXQNBINGEHEER

Yunnan Technology and Business University* (£ T &2 k)
(formerly known as Yunnan Einsun Software Vocational College* ( &
MEREABEREEZR) (“Software College”) ), a private
institution of formal higher education established under the laws
of the PRC on 29 September 2005, of which the school sponsor’s
interest is wholly owned by Yun Ai Group and a consolidated
affiliated entity of our Company
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“Zhuan Xiu School”

[2016F1EIEZR ]

‘2016 Amendments”

[% |
uo/oll

EEERAREEESER ) —BR2011F12A31BRES
BIZERINRBRBERE HEREREESZR — B
BAIE=F2EHE

Yunnan Einsun Science and Technology College* ( E F & H 7 &}
FREIEZER) , a private education institution established under
the laws of the PRC on 31 December 2011, of which the school
sponsor’s interest is wholly owned by an Independent Third Party

2EAREZER2016F11AHER BIRER (FEA
RANBRBBEFREEL WWRE)  EiR20175F9A1
HEMX

the Decision on Amending the Law for Promoting Private Education
of the PRC ( {EERMEN (FEARAMBIRPHRBREE)
KISRTE) ) approved by the Standing Committee of the National
People’s Congress in November 2016, which will take effect on 1
September 2017

[Elidne
per cent
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